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DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS 
In this Information Memorandum, unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, the following terms have the 
following meanings in this Information Memorandum, and references to any legislation, act, regulation, rules, guidelines 
or policies shall be to such legislation, act, regulation, rules, guidelines or policies as amended from time to time. 
 
Further, unless the context otherwise indicates, all references in this Information Memorandum to “the Issuer”, “our 
Company”, “the Company” or “MBL” or “we” or “us” or “our” are to Music Broadcast Limited and references to “you” 
are to the Eligible Investors, as the case may be, in the NCRPS. 
 
COMPANY RELATED TERMS 
 

Term Description 
₹ / Rs. / INR / Rupees / 
Indian Rupees 

The lawful currency of the Republic of India 

Articles / Articles of 
Association / AOA 

The Articles of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time  

the Board / our Board The Board of Directors of Music Broadcast Limited 
Company / our Company / 
MBL/ Issuer / we / us / our 

Unless the context otherwise requires, refers to, Music Broadcast Limited, a public 
limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 

Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer 

The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company, Ms. Arpita Kapoor 

Bonus Committee Bonus Committee as constituted by the Board of Directors 
Director(s) Director of our Company, unless otherwise specified 
Equity Shares Equity shares of our Company of face value of ₹2 each 
Independent Director A Non-Executive, Independent Director as per the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 who are currently 
on the Board of our Company 

Key Managerial Personnel The Key Managerial Personnel of the Company appointed in accordance with the 
provisions of SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013 

JPL Jagran Prakashan Limited, Holding Company of our Company 
Memorandum / 
Memorandum of 
Association / MoA 

Memorandum of Association of our Company 

Promoter  Jagran Prakashan Limited 
Promoter Group  Ms. Ruchi Gupta 
Registered Office/ our 
Registered Office 

5th Floor, RNA Corporate Park, Off Western Express Highway, Kalanagar, Bandra 
(East) Mumbai 400 051, Maharashtra, India 400 051 

RoC Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Mumbai 
Shareholder(s) The holder(s) of Equity Shares of our Company, unless otherwise specified in the 

context thereof 
Statutory Auditor The current statutory auditors of our Company, Price Waterhouse Chartered 

Accountants LLP 
Governmental 
Authority 

Any (a) government (central, state or otherwise) or sovereign state; (b) any 
governmental agency, semi-governmental or judicial or quasi-judicial or administrative 
entity, department or authority, or any political subdivision thereof; and (c) international 
organisation, agency or authority, or including, without limitation, any stock exchange 
or any self-regulatory organization, established under any Applicable Law 

Statutory Auditors / 
Auditors  

The Statutory Auditors of our Company, M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants 
LLP, FRN: 012754N/ N500016, having office at Building 8, Tower B, DLF Cyber City, 
Gurgaon - 122 002 
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ISSUE RELATED TERMS 
 

Term Description 
Accumulated Profits The undistributed profits of the Company as reflected in the accounts of the Company, 

which have been built over the years and which forms part of the reserves and surplus 
of the Company. The reserves and surplus of the Company includes the accumulated 
profits available in the General Reserve & Other Reserves as well the balance in profit 
and loss accounts (retained earnings) 

Applicable Laws Any statute, notification, by-laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, common law, policy, 
code, directives, ordinance, schemes, notices, orders or instructions, laws enacted or 
issued or sanctioned by any appropriate authority in India including any modifications 
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force. 

Allotment/ Allot/ Allotted The issue and allotment of the NCRPS to non-promoter shareholders pursuant to the 
Scheme 

Effective Date / upon the 
Scheme becoming effective / 
effectiveness of the Scheme / 
upon the Scheme coming 
into effect 

December 29, 2022 

Appointed Date Appointed Date is the Effective Date of the Scheme, that is, December 29, 2022  
Allottee(s) The Other Shareholders to whom the NCRPS are Allotted, either in full or part, 

pursuant to the Scheme 
BSE BSE Limited 
Client ID Client identification number maintained with one of the Depositories in relation to the 

demat account 
Dividend Rate The rate of dividend payable in connection with the NCRPS in accordance with this 

Information Memorandum. Please see the section titled “Issue Structure” on page 59. 
Credit Rating Agency For the present Issue, the credit rating agency being CRISIL  
CRISIL CRISIL Ratings Limited 
Date of Allotment January 19, 2023 
Depositories Act The Depositories Act 1996  
Depository(ies)  National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and /or Central Depository Services 

(India) Limited (CDSL) 
DP / Depository Participant  A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act 
Designated Stock Exchange  BSE Limited  
Eligible Shareholders It shall have the meaning given to the term in “Issue Structure” 
Information Memorandum The Information Memorandum dated January 19, 2023, filed by our Company with 

the SEBI and Stock Exchanges in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI NCS 
Regulations in pursuance to the Scheme of Arrangement 

Issue  Issuance of NCRPS by Music Broadcast Limited of 89,69,597 NCRPS of the face 
value of ₹10 each aggregating to ₹ 8,96,95,970/- in pursuance to the Scheme of 
Arrangement 

Issue Size 89,69,597 NCRPS of the face value of ₹10 each, to be issued at a premium of ₹90 per  
NCRPS amounting to a total of ₹89,69,59,700/- 

Listing Agreement  The uniform listing agreement entered into between our Company and the Stock 
Exchanges in connection with the listing of NCRPS of our Company 

NCLT / Tribunal The National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench 

NCRPS Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of face value of 
₹10 each, being issued at a premium of ₹90 each, pursuant to the Scheme of 
Arrangement. 

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited  
Other Shareholders Shareholder other than shareholder residing outside India, Promoter and Promoter 

Group, as defined under the Scheme. 
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Term Description 
Recovery Expense Fund  The recovery expense fund created by our Company with the Designated Stock 

Exchange, in the manner as specified by SEBI in circular no. 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/CRADT/CIR/P/2020/207 dated October 22, 2020 as amended 
from time to time and in Regulation 11 of SEBI NCS Regulations 

Record Date January 13, 2023 
Redemption Amount The amount repayable on redemption of the NCRPS, as specified in the Information 

Memorandum 
Redemption Date The date on which our Company is liable to redeem the NCRPS 
Register of Preference 
Shareholders  

The Register of preference shareholders maintained by the Issuer in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

Registrar / RTA / Share 
Transfer Agent  

KFin Technologies Limited 
 

Scheme of Arrangement Scheme of Arrangement between Music Broadcast Limited and its shareholders under 
Sections 230 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Compromises, 
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 for issuance of NCRPS to the non-
promoter shareholders of the Company by way of Bonus 

Stock Exchange(s) BSE and NSE  
Tripartite Agreements  Tripartite agreement dated July 08, 2016 among our Company, the Registrar and 

CDSL and tripartite agreement dated September 22, 2016 among our Company, the 
Registrar and NSDL 

Wilful Defaulter  Includes wilful defaulters as defined under Regulation 2(1)(lll) of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018, as amended 

 
CONVENTIONAL AND GENERAL TERMS OR ABBREVIATION 
 

Term Description 
AGM Annual General Meeting 
AS Accounting Standards 
CCP The Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 
CIN Corporate Identification Number 
CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
Companies Act Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules, regulations, clarifications, and 

modifications thereunder, as amended from time to time 
CRISIL CRISIL Ratings Limited 
Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time 
Depository / Depositories A depository registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Depositories and Participant) 

Regulations, 1996, as amended from time to time, in this case being NSDL and 
CDSL 

Depository Participant / DP Depository Participant as defined under the Depositories Act 
EBIT Earnings Before Interest and Tax 
EBITDA Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization 
EGM Extra-ordinary General Meeting 
ESOP Employees Stock Option Scheme 
ESP Scheme Employees Stock Purchase Scheme 
Financial Year / Fiscal Year / 
FY 

Twelve months ending on March 31 of a particular year 

GoI Government of India 
HUF Hindu Undivided Family 
Ind-AS Indian Accounting Standards  
IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards issued by International Accounting 

Standards Board (IASB) 
IT Act Income-tax Act, 1961 
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Term Description 
KMP Key Managerial Personnel 
N.A. Not Applicable 
NEFT National Electronic Funds Transfer 
NSDL National Securities Depository Limited 
NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
PAN Permanent Account Number 
RBI Reserve Bank of India 
RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement 
SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 as amended from time to time 
SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulations) Rules, 1957 as amended from time to time 
SEBI The Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act 
SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended from time to time 
SEBI Circulars SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated 

November 23, 2021 and Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 
2017, issued by SEBI and as amended from time to time or any other circular(s) 
issued by SEBI applicable to a scheme of arrangement by Listed Entities and 
Relaxation under sub-rule (7) of rule 19 of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) 
Rules, 1957, as amended or any other circulars issued by SEBI applicable to schemes 
of arrangement from time to time 

SEBI ICDR Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended from time to time 

SEBI NCS Regulations  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 
Securities) Regulations, 2021, as amended 

SEBI Listing Regulations / 
SEBI LODR Regulations 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended  

SEBI Operational Circular  Circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS_Div1/P/CIR/2022/0000000103 dated July 29, 
2022 issued by SEBI, as amended 

SEBI Recovery Expense Fund 
Circular 

The SEBI circular bearing reference number 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/CRADT/CIR/P/2020/207 dated October 22, 2020 on 
"Contribution by Issuers of listed or proposed to be listed debt securities towards 
creation of "Recovery Expense Fund" 

SEBI Takeover Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as amended from time to time 
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CERTAIN CONVENTIONS, USE OF FINANCIAL, INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA AND CURRENCY 
OF PRESENTATION 

 
Certain Conventions 
  
All references in this Information Memorandum to “India” are to the Republic of India and its territories and possessions 
and all references to the “Government”, the “Central Government” or the “State Government” are to the Government of 
India, central or state, as applicable.  
 
Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Information Memorandum are to the page numbers of this 
Information Memorandum. 
 
Presentation of Financial Information 
 
Our Company’s financial year commences on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year and ends on March 31 
of that particular calendar year, so all references to a particular financial year or fiscal are to the 12 months period 
commencing on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year and ending on March 31 of that particular calendar 
year. Unless the context requires otherwise, all references to a year in this Information Memorandum are to a calendar 
year and references to a Financial Year are to the year ended on March 31 of that calendar year. 
 
Our Company publishes its financial statements in Rupees in lakhs. Our Company’s financial statements as at and for 
the year ended March 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020 and Limited Review Financial Statements for the period ending 
September 30, 2022 have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS. 
 
Any discrepancies in the tables included herein between the amounts listed and the totals thereof are due to rounding off. 
 
• In the Information Memorandum, unless the context otherwise requires, all references to one gender also refers to 

another gender and the word “Lac / Lakh” means “one hundred thousand”, the word “million (mn)” means “ten lac/ 
lakh”, the word “Crore” means “ten million” and the word “billion (bn)” means “one hundred crore”.  

 
• Throughout the Information Memorandum, unless otherwise stated, all figures have been expressed in “₹ lakhs”. 

Unless indicated otherwise, the financial data in the Information Memorandum is derived from our financial 
statements prepared in accordance with Ind-AS and included in the Information Memorandum. In the Information 
Memorandum, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding 
off. 

 
• There may be some differences between Ind-AS and IFRS and / or US GAAP; accordingly, the degree to which the 

Ind-AS financial statements included in the Information Memorandum will provide meaningful information is 
entirely dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting practice and Ind-AS. Any reliance by 
persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial disclosures presented in the Information 
Memorandum should accordingly be limited. We have not attempted to explain those differences or quantify their 
impact on the financial data included herein, and we urge you to consult your own advisors regarding such differences 
and their impact on our financial data. 

 
• For additional definitions used in the Information Memorandum, see the section “Definitions, Abbreviations and 

Industry related terms” on page 1 of the Information Memorandum. 
 

USE OF MARKET DATA 
 
• Unless stated otherwise, market data used throughout the Information Memorandum was obtained from internal 

Company reports and data, public websites and industry publications. Industry publication data and public website 
data generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but 
that their accuracy and completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed, and their reliability cannot be 
assured. 
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Although, we believe market data used in the Information Memorandum is reliable, it has not been independently verified. 
Similarly, internal Company reports and data, while believed by us to be reliable, have not been verified by any 
independent source. 
 

General Risk 
 
Investment in Non-Convertible Non- Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares involve a degree of risk and investors 
should not invest any funds in such securities unless they can afford to take the risk attached to such investments. Investors 
are advised to take an informed decision and to read the risk factors carefully before investing in this offering. For taking 
an investment decision, investors must rely on their examination of the issue including the risks involved in it. 
 
Specific attention of investors is invited to statement of risk factors contained under Section “Risk Factors” of this offer 
document. These risks are not, and are not intended to be, a complete list of all risks and considerations relevant to the 
debt securities/non-convertible redeemable preference shares or investor’s decision to purchase such securities. 
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT 
 
We have included statements in the Information Memorandum which contain words or phrases such as “will”, “believe”, 
“expect”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “intend”, “future”, “objective”, “goal”, “project”, “should” and similar expressions or 
variations of such expressions, that are “forward-looking statements”.  
 
All forward looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us that could cause actual results 
to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement. Important factors that could 
cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include but are not limited to: 
 

• General economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate and in the local, regional and national 
economies; 

• Changes in laws and regulations relating to the industries in which we operate; 
• Increased competition in these industries; 
• Our ability to successfully implement our growth strategy and expansion plans, and to successfully launch and 

implement various projects and business; 
• Challenges in meeting capital expenditure requirements; 
• Fluctuations in operating costs; 
• Our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel; 
• Changes in technology; 
• Changes in political and social conditions in India or in countries that we may enter, the monetary and interest rate  

policies of India and other countries, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, equity prices or 
other rates or prices; 

• The performance of the financial markets in India and globally; and 
• Any adverse outcome in the legal proceedings in which we are involved. 

 
For a further discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ, please refer to the sections titled “Risk 
Factors” and “Our Business” on pages 8 and 28 respectively, of the Information Memorandum, respectively. By their 
nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in 
the future. As a result, actual future gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated.  
 
Neither we nor our Directors, officers nor any of their respective affiliates or associates have any obligation to update or 
otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of 
underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition.  
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RISK FACTORS 
 
The Company believes that the following factors may affect its ability to fulfil its obligations under the NCRPS. These 
risks may include, among others, business aspects, equity market, bond market, interest rate, market volatility and 
economic, political and regulatory risks and any combination of these and other risks. Prospective investors should 
carefully consider all the information in this Information Memorandum, including the risks and uncertainties described 
below, before making an investment. All of these factors are contingencies which may or may not occur and the Company 
is not in a position to express a view on the likelihood of any such contingency occurring. 
 
INTERNAL RISK FACTORS 
 

1. Early Termination for Extraordinary Reasons, Illegality, etc. 
 
If the Issuer determines that, for reasons beyond its control, the performance of its obligations under the Bonus 
NCRPS has become illegal or impractical in whole or in part for any reason, the Issuer may without any obligation 
terminate early the Bonus NCRPS. If the Issuer terminates early the Bonus NCRPS, the Issuer will, if and to the 
extent permitted by applicable law, pay the holder of each such Bonus NCRPS an amount determined by the Issuer. 
 

2. Advertisement is our main source of income and we are heavily dependent on continuous flow of advertisements 
at effective rates. 
 

We are heavily dependent on advertisements as the main source of our revenue. Any reduction in ad-spend by the 
advertisers or a reduction in effective advertising rates due to market forces, competition, excess inventory, inability 
to maintain market position or the loss of advertising customers or our inability to attract new advertising customers 
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. 
 

3. Radio may become obsolete and it will adversely affect our business, financial conditions and results of 
operation. 
 
In recent past, the music entertainment space has witnessed various technological developments including the 
introduction of internet radio and mobile applications for online radio and music. If radio as a medium becomes 
obsolete and new mediums overtake the radio space, such as online and mobile application based music, it will 
adversely affect our business, financial conditions and results of operation. We cannot assure you that we will be 
able to adapt to the technological advancements in future and successfully operate and/or continue our business. 
 

4. The FM radio broadcasting industry is highly competitive.  
 
We operate in a highly competitive industry. In the markets where we operate, and especially in the three major 
metro cities of Delhi, Mumbai and Bengaluru, we face intense competition from other private FM radio operators 
for listenership, utilisation of available broadcasting time for advertising, and advertising rates. Our existing and 
future competitors or new entrants into the market may result in a reduction in our effective advertisement rates 
and/or volume in the future and could have an adverse effect on our income and profitability. Other private FM 
radio broadcasting companies may be larger and may have more financial resources than we do, which may intensify 
the competition further. Our radio stations may also not be able to maintain or increase their current audience ratings, 
advertising revenues and advertising rates. Further, the level of competition we face may further increase due to 
future changes in policies of the Government. Our market position also largely depends upon effective marketing 
initiatives and our ability to anticipate and respond to various competitive factors affecting the industry. Any failure 
by us to compete effectively, including in terms of pricing or providing innovative services, could have an adverse 
effect on our income and profitability. We cannot predict either the extent to which these competition will 
materialise or if it materialises, the extent of its effect on our business. 
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5. We could be harmed by employee misconduct or errors that are difficult to detect and any such incidences could 
adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and reputation. 
 
Employee misconduct or errors could expose us to business risks or losses, including regulatory sanctions and 
serious harm to our reputation. There can be no assurance that we will be able to detect or deter such misconduct. 
Moreover, the precautions we take to prevent and detect such activity may not be effective in all cases. Our 
employees may also commit errors that could subject us to claims and proceedings for alleged negligence, as well 
as regulatory actions on account of which our business, financial condition, results of operations and goodwill could 
be adversely affected. 
 

6. In case the Company does not have adequate profits, the Company will not be able to pay dividends on the 
NCRPS. 

 
 As per the provisions of the Companies Act, the dividends payable on the NCRPS can only be out of profits of the 

Company for that year, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act. Further, it is clarified 
that the dividend on NCRPS is required to be paid out of respective current year’s profit only. In case the Company 
does not have adequate profits, the Company will not be able to pay the dividends on the NCRPS. 

 
7. There could be adverse changes in the future to the credit rating assigned to the NCRPS, which will adversely 

affect the holders of the NCRPS. 
 

The current issue has been rated ‘CRISIL AA (STABLE)’. 
 
In the event of deterioration in the financial health of the Company, there is possibility that the rating agency may 
downgrade the ratings of the NCRPS. In such a case, a potential investor may incur losses on revaluation of the 
investments or may have to make provisions towards sub-standard / non-performing investment as per their standard 
norms. The rating is not a recommendation to purchase, hold or sell the NCRPS in as much as the ratings do not 
comment on the market price of the NCRPS or its suitability to a particular investor. There is no assurance either 
that the rating will remain at the same level any given period of time or that the rating will not be lowered or 
withdrawn entirely by the rating agency. 

 
8. There may not be an active secondary market for the NCRPS which will affect the tradability of NCRPS in the 

market. 
 

While the NCRPS are being issued, investors are requested to note that there may not be an active secondary market 
for NCRPS. There is no assurance that a trading market for the NCRPS will exist and no assurance as to the liquidity 
of any trading market. Further, the liquidity and market prices of NCRPS can be expected to vary with changes in 
market and economic conditions, our financial condition and prospects and other factors that generally influence 
market price of such instruments. 
 

9. Failure to receive listing approval for issuance of NCRPS will affect the holders of NCRPS. 
 

An Issuer is desirous of making an offer of NCRPS and shall make an application for listing to the Stock Exchanges. 
The Issuer is required to comply with conditions of listing of such NCRPS as specified in the listing agreement with 
the Stock Exchanges where the NCRPS are sought to be listed. Failure to receive listing approval will adversely 
affect the holders of NCRPS. 
 

10. We are heavily dependent on our management team, qualified and experienced employees and our on-air talent 
and radio hosts. Our inability to attract and retain them may have an adverse impact on our business. 
 
The success of our business is dependent upon its ability to attract and retain qualified and experienced staff 
(including senior and middle management personnel with professional qualifications). We are led by a dedicated 
senior management team with several years of experience in the media and radio industry, along with experienced 
and qualified team of employees. Many of our personnel possess skills that would be valuable to other companies 
engaged in similar business as us. Whilst we offer compensation in line with the demand for such skills, some of 
our competitors may be able to pay our employees more than we are able to pay to retain them. Our ability to 
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profitably operate is substantially dependent upon our ability to locate, hire, train and retain our personnel. We may, 
therefore, incur additional costs in order to attract talented individuals and to retain existing experienced staff. If we 
are unable to attract or retain qualified and experienced staff, our ability to operate and expand our business may be 
affected, and our operating costs may increase. Our inability to recruit and retain qualified and experienced staff 
may limit our competitiveness, interrupt our operations and/or cause customer dissatisfaction, any of which could 
reduce our revenues and profitability. 
 
Further, the performance and success of our radio stations, and their listenership are dependent on the expertise and 
services of our on-air talent and radio hosts. We independently contract with several on-air personalities that have 
significant loyalty and popularity among listeners in their respective markets. However, we can give no assurance 
that these personnel will remain with us and that the number of our listeners will not reduce if our popular on-air-
personalities terminate their services with us, and join a competitor. The loss of the services of such on-air talent 
and radio hosts could have an adverse effect on our listenership and consequently our business, financial condition 
and results of operation. 
 

11. We derive certain benefits from our Promoter which is actively involved in the media industry 
 
We depend on our relationship with our Promoter JPL in many ways. We have access to JPL’s resources including 
relationships, expertise and experience and also have advertising arrangements on arm’s length basis in relation to 
our businesses and certain property leasing arrangements. For details, see “Our Promoter” on page 39. We cannot 
assure you that JPL will continue to allow us to have access to the benefits of this relationship in the future. If JPL 
does not allow us access to such benefits, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be 
adversely affected. 
 

12. We are responsible for the content, which we broadcast on our radio stations. We may face libel, defamation 
or intellectual property rights infringement charges 
 
We have the primary responsibility to ensure that no objectionable, obscene, defamatory or racist comments or 
comments hurting any religious sentiment, including those forming part of a live interview, or any unauthorized or 
other content infringing any third party’s intellectual property rights and any other broadcasting laws in any form 
are carried on our radio stations. In terms of the Phase III Policy and Grant of Permission Agreement, we are required 
to follow the Programme and Advertisement Code as followed by All India Radio, which prescribe standards of 
conduct to develop and promote advertising practices. Our failure to adhere to these regulations, codes and policies 
may lead to adverse consequences, including suspension, revocation and termination of our licenses. 
 
We rely on our creative team, on-air talent and other artistes for our program content for our radio stations. Also, 
some of our programs include live interviews and interactive participation of our listeners, and some of such content 
may be construed as offensive or insensitive by a certain section of the society or certain individuals and may expose 
us and/or employees to litigation for libel, defamation or infringement of intellectual property rights, which could 
adversely affect our reputation as well as our business, operations and financial performance. Presently, our 
Company is involved in a defamation litigation. For details, see “Outstanding Litigations” on page 48. 
 

13. A decrease in our listenership may adversely affect our business and results of operations. 
 
Listenership of our FM radio channels is the prime indicator of our popularity compared to other operators in the 
FM radio broadcasting industry. Our listenership significantly influences the advertisement spend by our advertisers 
and our advertising rates. Listenership is dependent on various factors, including the program content quality of our 
broadcasts and the loyalty of our listeners. Any failure by us to meet to our listeners’ preferences, including due to 
departure of our on-air talent, could adversely affect our income from advertising. A decline in our listenership for 
any reason may lead to decline in advertisement revenue, which could adversely affect our business, operations and 
financial performance.  
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14. We may not be able to adequately protect our intellectual property 
 
Our commercial success depends in part on our ability to protect our existing intellectual property and to obtain 
other intellectual property rights. If we do not adequately protect our intellectual property, competitors may be able 
to imitate our programs and shows. We have obtained registrations for various trademarks in relation to our business. 
Further, we have entered into an assignment agreement for the use of the trademark “Radio City”. For details of 
this agreement see “History and Certain Corporate Matters” on page 29. We have obtained registrations for various 
trademarks in relation to our business activities. 
 

15. There are outstanding litigations against our Company, Promoter and Group Company. An adverse outcome in 
any of these proceedings may affect our reputation and standing and impact our future business and could have 
a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows 
 
As on the date of this Information Memorandum, we are involved in certain civil, tax and criminal legal proceedings 
that are pending at different levels of adjudication before various courts, tribunals, forums and appellate authorities. 
We cannot assure you that these legal proceedings will be decided in our favour. Decisions in proceedings adverse 
to our interests may have a significant adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and 
cash flows.  

 
EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS 

 
16. Changing regulations in India could lead to new compliance requirements that are uncertain. 

 
As in most other businesses, the regulatory and policy framework in which we operate is evolving and is subject to 
change. The GoI may implement new laws or other regulations and policies that could lead to new compliance 
requirements, including requiring us to obtain approvals and licenses from the Government and other regulatory 
bodies, or impose additional requirements. 
 
Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation or implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing 
law, regulation or policy applicable to us, including by reason of an absence, or a limited body, of administrative or 
judicial precedent may be time consuming as well as costly for us to resolve. We may incur increased costs and 
other burdens relating to compliance with such new requirements, which may also require significant management 
time and other resources, and any failure to comply may adversely affect our business, results of operations and 
prospects.  
 

17. Slowdown in economic growth in India 
 
The Company's performance, quality and growth of the Business are necessarily dependent on the health of the 
overall Indian economy. Any slowdown in the Indian economy could adversely affect the Business of the Company 
including but not limited to its ability to meet the significant sale targets of various products and ability to implement 
its strategy etc. 
 

18. Financial instability in other countries may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets. 
 
The Indian market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries, 
including conditions in the United States, Europe and certain emerging economies in Asia. Any worldwide financial 
instability may cause increased volatility in the Indian financial markets and, directly or indirectly, adversely affect 
the Indian economy and financial sector and us. 
 
Although economic conditions vary across markets, loss of investor confidence in one emerging economy may 
cause increased volatility across other economies, including India. Financial instability in other parts of the world 
could have a global influence and thereby negatively affect the Indian economy. Financial disruptions could 
materially and adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 
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19. Natural disasters, fires, epidemics, pandemics, acts of war, civil unrest and other events could materially and 
adversely affect our business. 
 
Natural disasters (such as typhoons, flood, earthquakes, etc.), epidemics, pandemics such as COVID-19, acts of 
war, terrorist attacks and other events, many of which are beyond our control, may lead to economic instability, 
including in India or globally, which may in turn materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, 
cash flows and results of operations. 

 
20. Rights of shareholders under Indian laws may be more limited than under the laws of other jurisdictions. 

 
Our Articles of Association, composition of our Board, Indian laws governing our corporate affairs, the validity of 
corporate procedures, directors’ fiduciary duties and liabilities, and shareholders’ rights may differ from those that 
would apply to a company in another jurisdiction. Shareholders’ rights including in relation to class actions, under 
Indian law may not be as extensive as shareholders’ rights under the laws of other countries or jurisdictions. 
Investors may have more difficulty in asserting their rights as shareholder in an Indian company than as shareholder 
of a corporation in another jurisdiction. 
 

21. Civil disturbances, regional conflicts and other acts of violence in India and abroad may disrupt or otherwise 
adversely affect the Indian economy. 
 
Certain events that are beyond the control of our Company, such as violence or war, including those involving India, 
the United Kingdom, the United States or other countries, may adversely affect worldwide financial markets and 
could potentially lead to a severe economic recession, which could adversely affect our business, results of 
operations, financial condition and cash flows, and more generally, any of these events could lower confidence in 
India's economy.  
 
Furthermore, if India were to become engaged in armed hostilities, particularly hostilities that are protracted or 
involve the threat or use of nuclear weapons, the Indian economy and consequently Company's operations might be 
significantly affected. India has from time to time experienced social and civil unrest and hostilities, including riots, 
regional conflicts and other acts of violence. Events of this nature in the future could have an adverse effect on our 
ability to develop our business. As a result, our business, results of operations and financial condition may be 
adversely affected. 

 
Issuer’s Absolute Responsibility: 
The issuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this information 
memorandum contains all information with regard to the issuer and the issue which is material in the context of 
the issue, that the information contained in the information memorandum is true and correct in all material aspects 
and is not misleading, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly stated and that there are no 
other facts, the omission of which make this document as a whole or any of such information or the expression of 
any such opinions or intentions misleading. 
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GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Our Company was incorporated as Music Broadcast Private Limited on November 4, 1999, at Kolkata as a private limited 
company under the Companies Act, 1956. Our Company was converted into a public limited company pursuant to a 
resolution of the Shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held on June 15, 2015 and consequently, the name of 
our Company was changed to Music Broadcast Limited and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon 
conversion to public limited company was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai on June 25, 2015. At present, 
the Equity Shares of our Company are listed on BSE and NSE. The CIN of our Company L64200MH1999PLC137729. 
The PAN is AACCM4036H.  
 
Our Company is a widely held public listed company in which public shareholders hold 25.95% of the issued, subscribed, 
and paid-up equity share capital of the Company. MBL is a subsidiary of Jagran Prakashan Limited. 
 
Registered of our Company: 
5th Floor, RNA Corporate Park 
Off Western Express Highway 
Kalanagar, Bandra (East) 
Mumbai 400 051 
Tel: (91 22) 6696 9100 
Fax: (91 22) 2642 9113 
E-mail: investor@myradiocity.com 
Website: www.radiocity.in 
 
Registrar of Companies: 
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai 
100, Everest, Marine Drive 
Mumbai - 400 002, Maharashtra, India 
Tel. No.: +91 22 2281 2627 / 2202 0295 / 2284 6954 
Fax No.: +91 22 2281 1977 
E-mail: roc.mumbai@mca.gov.in 
 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer: 
Ms. Arpita Kapoor 
Music Broadcast Limited 
5th Floor, RNA Corporate Park 
Off Western Express Highway 
Kalanagar, Bandra (East) 
Mumbai 400 051 
Tel: (91 22) 6696 9100 
Fax: (91 22) 6696 9175 
E-mail: cs@myradiocity.com 
 
Chief Financial Officer 
Mr. Prashant Domadia 
Music Broadcast Limited 
5th Floor, RNA Corporate Park 
Off Western Express Highway 
Kalanagar, Bandra (East) 
Mumbai 400 051 
Tel: (91 22) 6696 9100 
Fax: (91 22) 6696 9175 
E-mail: cfo@myradiocity.com 
 

 
 

Prospective Shareholders may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer or the RTA to the Issue in case 
of any pre-issue or post-issue related problems such as credit confirmations on the allotted NCRPSs in beneficiary 
accounts etc., as the case may be. 

http://www.radiocity.in/
mailto:roc.mumbai@mca.gov.in
mailto:cs@myradiocity.com
mailto:cfo@myradiocity.com
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All grievances relating to the Issue may be addressed to the RTA, giving full details such as name, address of the 
Applicant, Permanent Account Number, Depository Participant name and Client Identification Number. 
 
Debenture Trustee 
 
Not applicable 
 
Credit Rating Agency 

 
CRISIL Ratings Limited 
SEBI Registration No.: IN/CRA/001/1999 
CRISIL House, Central Avenue,  
Hiranandani Business Park, Powai,  
Mumbai 400 076 
Tel No: +91 22 3342 3000 
Email: crisilratingdesk@crisil.com 
Website: www.crisil.com/ratings 
Contact Person: Mr. Rakshit Kachhal 
 
Credit Rating and Rationale 

The NCRPS proposed to be issued under the Issue have been rated “AA/Stable (CRISIL double A rating) (Outlook: 
Stable)” for an amount of ₹ 120 crores by CRISIL Ratings Limited vide their rating letter dated September 16, 2022 
(valid for 180 days) and press release for rating rationale dated September 13, 2022.The ratings given by the Credit 
Rating Agency is valid as on the date of this Information Memorandum and shall remain valid until the ratings are revised 
or withdrawn. The rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and investors should take their own 
decision. The rating may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency and each rating 
should be evaluated independently of any other rating. The rating agency has a right to suspend or withdraw the rating at 
any time on the basis of factors such as new information.  

Disclaimer clause of CRISIL 

A rating by CRISIL Ratings reflects CRISIL Ratings’ current opinion on the likelihood of timely payment of the 
obligations under the rated instrument, and does not constitute an audit of the rated entity by CRISIL Ratings. Our ratings 
are based on information provided by the issuer or obtained by CRISIL Ratings from sources it considers reliable. CRISIL 
Ratings does not guarantee the completeness or accuracy of the information on which the rating is based. A rating by 
CRISIL Ratings is not a recommendation to buy / Sell or hold the rated instrument; it does not comment on the market 
price or suitability for a particular investor. CRISIL Ratings has a practice of keeping all its ratings under surveillance 
and ratings are revised as and when circumstances so warrant. CRISIL Ratings is not responsible for any errors and 
especially states that it has no financial liability whatsoever to the subscribers / users / transmitters / distributors of its 
ratings. CRISIL Ratings criteria are available without charge to the public on the website, www.crisilratings.com. CRISIL 
Ratings or its associates may have other  commercial transactions with the Company/entity. For the latest rating 
information on any instrument of any company rated by CRISIL Ratings, please visit www.crisilratings.com or contact 
Customer Service Helpdesk at CRISILratingdesk@crisil.com or at 1800 – 267-1301 

Registrar and Transfer Agent to the Issue 

 
KFin Technologies Limited 
SEBI Registration No: INR000000221 
Karvy Selenium Tower B 
Plot 31-32 Gachibowli, Financial District 
Nanakramguda, Hyderabad 500 032 
Tel: (91 40) 6716 2222 
Fax: (91 40) 2343 1551 
E-mail: einward.ris@karvy.com 

mailto:crisilratingdesk@crisil.com
https://ind01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.crisil.com%2Fratings&data=04%7C01%7Cvanessa.fernandes%40crisil.com%7Cfef6cbee06354ae2296508d966bf193b%7C4d8b04bf7a7c48a0b6e338da5008297e%7C0%7C0%7C637653793230855226%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Gnhavcplf0mcyBxoQStXbCYAG6aobkofwcER5eSMgGM%3D&reserved=0
http://www.crisilratings.com/
http://www.crisilratings.com/
mailto:CRISILratingdesk@crisil.com
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Website: www.kfintech.com 
Contact Person: Mr Anandan K 
 
KFin Technologies Limited has entered into an agreement dated January 18, 2023 with the Company for its appointment 
as the Registrar and Transfer Agent to the Issue and in all the subsequent periodical communications to be sent to the 
holders of the NCRPS.  
 
Statutory Auditors 
Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Building 8, Tower B 
DLF Cyber City 
Gurgaon 122 002 
Tel: (91 124) 4620 504 
Fax: (91 124) 4620 620 
E-mail: amit.peswani@pwc.com 
Firm registration number: 012754N/N500016 
Auditors since: September 7, 2015  
 
Banker to the Issue 
There is no banker to the Issue 
 
Underwriting 
The Issue is not underwritten 
 
Arrangers to the Issue 
There are no arrangers to the Issue 
 
Guarantor to the Issue 
There are no guarantors to the Issue 
 
Recovery Expense Fund 
 
Our Company has created a Recovery Expense Fund in the manner as specified by SEBI in circular no. 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/CRADT/CIR/P/2020/207 dated October 22, 2020, as amended from time to time, and Regulation 11 
of the SEBI NCS Regulations with the Designated Stock Exchange for the purpose of this Issue. 

 
  

http://www.kfintech.com/
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE 
 

(a) Our Share Capital, pre-scheme and post-scheme:  
 
Pre-Scheme: 
 

Particulars Amount (in ₹) 
Authorized Share Capital  
40,00,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of ₹ 2 each 
50,000 Preference Shares of ₹ 10/- each 
Total 

 
80,00,00,000 

5,00,000 
80,05,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and paid-up share capital 
34,56,85,625 Equity Shares of face value of ₹ 2 each 

 
69,13,71,250 

 
Post-Scheme: 
 

Particulars Amount (in ₹) 
Authorized Share Capital  
40,00,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of ₹ 2 each 
50,000 Preference Shares of face value of ₹ 10/- each 
89,69,600 Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference 
Shares of face value of face value of ₹ 10/- each 
Total 

 
80,00,00,000 

5,00,000 
8,96,96,000 

 
89,01,96,000 

Issued, Subscribed and paid-up share capital 
34,56,85,625 Equity Shares of face value of ₹ 2 each 
89,69,597 Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference 
Shares of face value of ₹ 10/- each 
Total                                                                                                                                         

 
69,13,71,250 
8,96,95,970 

 
78,10,67,220 

 
(b) Changes in the Authorised Share Capital of our Company for the last three years preceding the date of 

this Information Memorandum:  
 

Date of 
shareholders 
meeting 

Authorised 
Share Capital 
(in Rs.) 

Particulars of change AGM / EGM 
/ Postal 
Ballot 

March 03, 
2020 

80,05,00,000 The authorized share capital of the Company was increased 
from Rs. 67,05,00,000 (Rupees Sixty Seven Crores and Five 
Lakhs Only) comprising of 33,50,00,000 (Thirty Three Crore 
and Fifty Lakh) equity shares of Rs 2 (Rupees Two only) 
each and 50,000 (Fifty Thousand) convertible redeemable 
preference shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten each) each to Rs 
80,05,00,000 (Rupees Eighty Crores and Five Lakhs Only) 
comprising of 40,00,00,000 (Forty Crore) Equity Shares of 
Rs. 2 (Rupees Two only) each and 50,000 (Fifty Thousand) 
convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees 
Two only) each. 

Postal Ballot 

June 23, 2022 89,01,96,000 In pursuance to the Scheme, the authorized share capital of 
the Company was increased from Rs 80,05,00,000 (Rupees 
Eighty Crores and Five Lakhs Only) comprising of 
40,00,00,000 (Forty Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 2 (Rupees 
Two only) each and 50,000 (Fifty Thousand) Convertible 
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Two only) 
each to Rs 89,01,96,000 (Rupees Eighty Crores and Five 
Lakhs Only) comprising of 40,00,00,000 (Forty Crore) 
Equity Shares of Rs. 2 (Rupees Two only) each, 50,000 

NCLT 
Convened 
Meeting 
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(Fifty Thousand) Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares 
of Rs. 10 (Rupees Two only) each and 89,69,600 (Eighty-
nine Lakhs, Sixty Thousand and Six-hundred) Non-
Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 
of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. 

 
(c) Equity Share capital history of our Company for the last three years preceding the date of this 

Information Memorandum 
 

(in ₹, except share data) 
Date of 

Allotment 
No. of Equity 

Shares 
Face 

Value 
Issue 
Price 

Consideration 
(Cash, Other 

than Cash, etc) 

Nature of 
Allotment 

Cumulative Remarks 
No. of 
Equity 
Shares 

Equity 
Share 

Capital 

Equity 
Share 

Premium 
As on December 31, 2019 27,65,48,500 55,30,97,000 - - 
March 16, 

2020 6,91,37,125 2.00 2.00 NA Bonus 
Issue 34,56,85,625 69,13,71,250 - Note 1 

As on date of Information Memorandum 34,56,85,625 69,13,71,250 - - 
 

Note: 
1. Bonus issue of equity shares in ratio of 1 bonus share for every 4 equity share held as on record date, March 13, 

2020. 
 

(d) Preference Share capital history of our Company for the last three years preceding the date of this 
Information Memorandum  

(in ₹, except share data) 
Date of 

Allotment 
No. of 

Preference 
Shares 

Face 
Value 

Issue 
Price 

Consideration 
(Cash, Other 

than Cash, etc) 

Nature of 
Allotment 

Non-Cumulative Remarks 
No. of 

Preference 
Shares 

Preference 
Shares 
Capital 

Securities 
Premium * 

As on January 18, 2021 - - - - 
January 
19, 2023 89,69,597 10.00 100.00 NA Bonus 

Issue 89,69,597 8,96,95,970 80,72,63,730 Note 1 

As on date of Information Memorandum 89,69,597 8,96,95,970 80,72,63,730  
 

Note: 
1. Bonus issue of NCRPS in ratio of 1 (One) bonus NCRPS for every 10 (Ten) equity shares held as on record date,            

January 13, 2023 pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement. 
 

(e) Details of any acquisition or amalgamation in the last one year 
Our Company has not made any acquisition or undertaken any amalgamation in the last one year. 

 
(f) Details of any reorganization / reconstruction in the last one year  

Our Company has not made any reorganization / reconstruction in the last one year. 
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b. Details of the shareholding of the Company as on December 31, 2022 as per the format specified under the Listing Regulations: 
 
 
Table I: Summary statement holding of specified securities 

Cate-
gory 

Category of 
shareholders 

No. of 
share-
holders 

No. of fully 
paid up 
Equity 
Shares held 

No. of 
partly 
paid up 
Equity 
Shares 
held 

No. of shares 
underlying 
Depository 
Receipts 

Total no. of 
shares held 

Share-
holding as a 
%age of total 
no. of shares 
(calculated as 
per SCRR, 
1957) 

No. of voting rights held in each class of securities No. of shares 
underlying 
outstanding 
convertible 
securities 
(including 
warrants) 

No. of shares 
underlying 
outstanding 
convertible 
securities 
(including 
warrants) 

Shareholding as 
% assuming full 
conversion of 
convertible 
securities (as a 
% of diluted 
share capital) 

No. of locked in 
shares 

No. of shares 
pledged 

No. of Equity 
Shares held in 
dematerialised 
form 

(as a % of 
(A+B+C2) 

No. of voting rights Total as % 
of (A+B+C2) 

No. (a) As a % 
of total 
shares 
held (b) 

No. (a) As a 
% of 
total 
shares 
held 
(b) 

(A)(I) (II) (III) (IV) (V) (VI) (VII) = IV + 
V + VI 

(VIII) Class X Class 
Y 

Total (IX) (X) (X) (a) (XI) = (VII) + 
(X) as a % of 

(A+B+C2) 

(XII) (XIII) (XIV) 

(A) Promoter & 
Promoter Group 

1 255989649 -  -  255989649 74.05 255989649 - 255989649 74.05 -  -  74.05 -  -  -  -  255989649 

(B) Public 30115 89695976 -  -  89695976 25.95 89695976 - 89695976 25.95 -  -  25.95 -  -  -  -  89695739 
(C) Non promoter 

non public 
-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

(C1) Shares 
underlying DRs 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

(C2) Shares held by 
Employee trust 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

                    
 Total 30116 345685625 -  -  345685625 100.00 345685625 - 345685625 100.00   100.00     345685388 
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Table II: Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Promoter and Promoter Group 
Cat
e-
gor
y 

Category 
of share-
holders 

No. 
of 
share
-
holde
rs 

No. of 
fully 
paid up 
Equity 
Shares 
held 

No. 
of 
partl
y 
paid 
up 
Equi
ty 
Shar
es 
held 

No. of 
shares 
underly
ing 
Deposit
ory 
Receipt
s 

Total 
no. of 
shares 
held 

Share-
holding 
as a 
%age 
of total 
no. of 
shares 
(calcula
ted as 
per 
SCRR, 
1957) 

No. of voting rights held in each 
class of securities 

No. of 
shares 
underlyi
ng 
outstand
ing 
converti
ble 
securitie
s  

No. of 
shares 
underlyi
ng 
outstand
ing 
warrant
s 

No. of 
shares 
underlyi
ng 
outstand
ing 
converti
ble 
securitie
s and 
No. of 
warrant
s 

Sharehol
ding as 
% 
assuming 
full 
conversio
n of 
convertib
le 
securities 
(as a % 
of diluted 
share 
capital) 

No. of 
locked in 
shares 

No. of 
shares 
pledged 

No. of 
Equity 
Shares 
held in 
dematerial
ised form 
(**) 

(as a % 
of 
(A+B+
C2) 

No. of voting rights Total 
as % 
of 
(A+B+
C) 

N
o. 
(a
) 

As a 
% 
of 
total 
shar
es 
held 
(b) 

N
o. 
(a
) 

As a 
% 
of 
total 
shar
es 
held 
(b) 

(I) (II) (III) (IV) (V) (VI) (VII) = 
IV + V 
+ VI 

(VIII) Class X Cla
ss 
Y 

Total (IX) (X) (XI) (XI) (a) (XI) = 
(VII) + 
(X) as a 

% of 
(A+B+C) 

(XII) (XIII) (XIV) 

A(1
) 

Indian                     

(a) Individua
ls / HUF* 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(b) Central 
Govt / 
State 
Govt 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(c) Financial 
Institutio
ns / 
Banks 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(d) Any other  1 255989
649 

-  -  255989
649 

74.05 255989
649 

- 255989
649 

74.05 -  -  - 74.05 -  -  -  -  255989649 

 Sub-total 
A(1) 

1 255989
649 

-  -  255989
649 

74.05 255989
649 

- 255989
649 

74.05 -  -  - 74.05 -  -  -  -  255989649 

A(2
) 

Foreign                    

(a) Individua
ls (Non 
resident 
Individua
ls / 
Foreign 
Individua
ls) 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(b) Governm
ent 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(c) Institutio
ns 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
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(d) Foreign 
Portfolio 
Investors 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(e) Any 
others 
(Specify) 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 Sub-total 
A(2) 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 Total 
sharehol
ding of 
Promote
r & 
Promote
r Group 
(A) = 
(A)(1) + 
(A)(2) 

1 255989
649 

  255989
649 

 255989
649 

 255989
649 

74.05    74.05     255989649 

 
*Ms. Ruchi Gupta, forms a part of the Promoter Group holding Nil Equity shares in the Company as on the date of this Shareholding pattern  
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Table III: Statement showing shareholding pattern of public shareholder 
Cat
e-
gor
y 

Category of 
share-holders 

No. 
of 
shar
e-
hold
ers 

No. of 
fully 
paid 
up 
Equit
y 
Share
s held 

No. 
of 
part
ly 
paid 
up 
Equi
ty 
Shar
es 
held 

No. of 
shares 
underly
ing 
Deposit
ory 
Receipt
s 

Total 
no. of 
shares 
held 

Share-
holding 
as a 
%age 
of total 
no. of 
shares 
(calcula
ted as 
per 
SCRR, 
1957) 

No. of voting rights held in each 
class of securities 

No. of 
shares 
underlyi
ng 
outstan
ding 
converti
ble 
securitie
s  

No. of 
shares 
underlyi
ng 
outstan
ding 
warrant
s 

No. of 
shares 
underlyi
ng 
outstan
ding 
converti
ble 
securitie
s and 
No. Of 
warrant
s 

Sharehol
ding as 
% 
assuming 
full 
conversio
n of 
convertib
le 
securities 
(as a % 
of diluted 
share 
capital) 

No. of 
locked in 
shares 

No. of 
shares 
pledged 

No. of 
Equity 
Shares 
held in 
demateria
lised form 

(as a % 
of 
(A+B+
C2) 

No. of voting rights Total 
as % 
of 
(A+B+
C2) 

N
o. 
(a
) 

As a 
% 
of 
total 
shar
es 
held 
(b) 

N
o. 
(a
) 

As a 
% 
of 
total 
shar
es 
held 
(b) 

(B)(
I) 

(II) (III) (IV) (V) (VI) (VII) 
= IV + 
V + 
VI 

(VIII) Class 
X 

Cla
ss 
Y 

Total (IX) (X) (XI) (XI) (a) (XI) = 
(VII) + 
(X) as a 
% of 
(A+B+C) 

(XII) (XIII) (XIV) 

1 Institutions(Do
mestic) 

                                    

(a) Mutual Funds 1 18921
468 

-  -  18921
468 

5.47 18921
468 

-  -  5.47 -  -  - 5.47 -  -  -  -  18921468 

(b) Venture Capital 
Fund 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

( c ) Alternative 
Investment Fund 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(d) Bank -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
(e) Insurance 

Companies 
-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(f) Provident funds 
/ pension funds 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(g) Asset 
Reconstruction 
companies 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(h) Sovereign 
Wealth Funds 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(i) NBFCs 
registered with 
RBI 

1 62517 -  -  62517 0.02 62517 -  -  0.02 -  -  - 0.02 -  -  -  -  62517 

(j) Other Financial 
Institutions 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(k) Any other 
(Specify) 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

  Sub Total 
(B)(1) 

2 18983
985 

  18983
985 

5.49 18983
985 

 18983
985 

5.49    5.49     18983985 

(B)
2 

Institutions 
(Foreign) 

                   

(a) Foreign Direct 
Investment 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
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(b) Foreign Venture 
Capital 
Investors 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

( c ) Sovereign 
Wealth Funds 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(d) Foreign 
Portfolio 
Investors 
Category I 

2 60565 -  -  60565 0.02 60565 - 60565 0.02 -  -  - 0.02 -  -  -  -  60565 

(e) Foreign 
Portfolio 
Investors 
Category II 

1 24042
5 

-  -  24042
5 

0.07 24042
5 

- 24042
5 

0.07 -  -  - 0.07 -  -  -  -  240425 

(f) Overseas 
Depositories 
(holding DRs) 
(balancing) 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(g) Any other  1 812 -  -  812 0.00 812 - 812 0.00 -  -  - 0.00 -  -  -  -  812 
  Sub Total 

(B)(2) 
4 30180

2 
-  -  30180

2 
0.09 30180

2 
- 30180

2 
0.09 -  -  - 0.09 -  -  -  -  301802 

(B)
3 

Central 
Government / 
State 
Government(s) 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(a) Central 
Government / 
President of 
India 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(b) State 
Government / 
Governor 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(C) Shareholding by 
Companies or 
Bodies 
Corporate where 
Central/State 
Government is a 
promoter 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

  Sub Total 
(B)(3) 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 (B)
4 

Non-
Institutions 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(a) Associate 
companies/Subsi
diaries 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(b) Directors and 
their relatives 
(excluding 
independent 
directors and 
nominee 
directors) 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

( c ) Key Managerial 
Personnel 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
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(d) Relatives of 
promoters (other 
than ‘immediate 
relatives’ of 
promoters 
disclosed under 
‘Promoter and 
Promoter 
Group’ 
category) 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(e) Trusts where 
any person 
belonging to 
‘Promoter and 
Promoter 
Group’ category 
is ‘trustee’, 
‘beneficiary’, or 
‘author of the 
trust’ 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(f) Investor 
Education and 
Protection 
Fund(IEPF) 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(g) Resident 
Individuals 
holding nominal 
share capital 
upto Rs. 2 Lakhs 

2842
2 

24184
151 

-  -  24184
151 

7.00 24184
151 

 24184
151 

7.00 -  -  - 7.00 -  -  -  -  24183914 

(h) Resident 
Individuals 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs. 2 
lakhs  

43 12197
142 

-  -  12197
142 

3.53 12197
142 

 12197
142 

3.53 -  -  - 3.53 -  -  -  -  12197142 

(i) Non Resident 
Indians (NRIs) 

233 68878
6 

  68878
6 

0.20 68878
6 

 68878
6 

0.20 -  -  - 0.20     688786 

(j) Foreign 
Nationals 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(k) Foreign 
Companies 

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(l) Bodies 
Corporate 

158 24008
923 

  24008
923 

6.95 24008
923 

 24008
923 

6.95    6.95     24008923 

(m) Any Other 
(Specify) 

1253 93311
87 

  93311
87 

2.70 93311
87 

 93311
87 

2.70    2.70     9331187 

 Sub Total 
(B)(4) 

3010
9 

70410
189 

  70410
189 

20.37 70410
189 

 70410
189 

20.37    20.37     70409952 

 Total 
shareholding of 
Public (B) = 
(B)(1) + 
(B)(2)+(B)(3)+(
B)(4) 

3011
5 

89695
976 

  89695
976 

25.95 89695
976 

 89695
976 

25.95    25.95     89695739 
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Table IV: Statement showing shareholding pattern of Non promoter Non public shareholder 
 

Cat
e-
gory 

Category of share-holders No. of 
share
-
holde
rs 

No. of fully 
paid up 
Equity 
Shares 
held 

No. 
of 
part
ly 
pai
d 
up 
Equ
ity 
Sha
res 
held 

No. of 
shares 
underlyin
g 
Depositor
y 
Receipts 

Total no. 
of shares 
held 

Share-
holding 
as a 
%age of 
total no. 
of 
shares 
(calculat
ed as 
per 
SCRR, 
1957) 

No. of voting rights held in each 
class of securities 

No. of 
shares 
underl
ying 
outsta
nding 
conver
tible 
securit
ies 
(inclu
ding 
warra
nts) 

Shareho
lding as 
% 
assumin
g full 
conversi
on of 
converti
ble 
securiti
es (as a 
% of 
diluted 
share 
capital) 

No. of locked in 
shares 

No. of shares 
pledged 

No. of 
Equity 
Shares 
held in 
dematerial
ised form 

(as a % 
of 
(A+B+C
) 

No. of voting rights Total 
as % 
of 
(A+B+
C) 

No. 
(a) 

As a 
% of 
total 
shares 
held 
(b) 

No. (a) As a 
% of 
total 
share
s held 
(b) 

(C)(
I) 

(II) (III) (IV) (V) (VI) (VII) = IV 
+ V + VI 

(VIII) Class 
X 

Cl
as
s 
Y 

Total (IX) (X) (XI) = 
(VII) + 
(X) as a 
% of 
(A+B+C
) 

(XII) (XIII) (XIV) 

1 Custodian / DR Holder                  
2 Employees benefit trust (under SEBI 

(Share based employee benefit) 
Regulations, 2014 

-  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

(b) Total non promoter non public 
shareholding (C) = (C)(1) + (C)(2) 

-  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

 Total (A+B+C) 30116 345685625   345685625 100.00 3456
8562

5 

 34568
5625 

100.00  100.00     345685388 

  30116 345685625   345685625 100.00 3456
8562

5 

 34568
5625 

100.00  100.00     345685388 
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(g) List of top 10 holders of equity shares, on fully diluted basis, of the Company as on December 31, 2022: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Shareholders No. of Equity 
Shares held 

No. of Equity 
Shares held in 

demat form 

Holding 
percentage 

1 Jagran Prakashan Limited 25,59,89,649 25,59,89,649 74.05% 
2 Franklin India Smaller Companies Fund 1,89,21,468 1,89,21,468 5.47% 
3 Rajasthan Global Securities Private Limited 1,37,16,193 1,37,16,193 3.97% 
4 Nanda Kishore Sharma 44,94,280 44,94,280 1.30% 
5 Misrilall Mines Private Limited 23,11,047 23,11,047 0.67% 
6 Ashika Credit Capital Limited 19,75,000 19,75,000 0.57% 
7 Chandana Salgaocar 13,92,405 13,92,405 0.40% 
8 Somani Stock Broking Private Limited 10,00,000 10,00,000 0.29% 
9 Sankaranarayanan Sangameswaran 8,35,237 8,35,237 0.24% 

10 Siddhartha Jain 5,04,808 5,04,808 0.15% 
 
c.  None of the Equity Shares have been pledged or otherwise encumbered by our Promoter and Promoter Group. 

 
d. As on the date of the Information Memorandum, there are no outstanding warrants, options or rights to convert 

debentures, loans or other instruments.  
 

e. As on the date of the Information Memorandum, the issued capital of our Company is fully paid-up. 
 

f. Our Promoter, Promoter Group, Directors and their relatives have not sold or purchased any shares of our Company 
during the period of six months preceding the date of the Information Memorandum.  

 
g. Neither we, nor our Directors, Promoter, Promoter Group Entities have entered into any buyback and / or standby 

arrangements and / or similar arrangements for the purchase of our Equity Shares from any person in past six months. 
 

h. We do not have any ESOP Scheme or ESP Scheme.  
 

i. There shall be only one denomination for the Equity Shares of the Company, subject to applicable regulations and 
Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms, as specified by SEBI, from time to time. 
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SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT 
 

For definitions of the terms used herein, but if not defined, you may refer to the Scheme 
 

The Scheme of Arrangement was presented under Sections 230 of the Companies Act, 2013, other relevant provisions 
thereof, and the rules made thereunder and in accordance with the regulations of the Foreign Exchange Management 
(Debt Instruments) Regulations, 2019 issued vide RBI Notification No. FEMA 396/2019-RB dated October 17, 2019.  
for the issuance of Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares to the non-promoter shareholders 
of Music Broadcast Limited by way of bonus. In addition, the Scheme also provides for various other matters 
consequential and/or otherwise integrally connected herewith. 
 
A. Rationale for the Scheme of Arrangement 

 
1. MBL is a subsidiary company of Jagran Prakashan Limited ("Promoter / Holding Company/ JPL") which holds 

73.21 %* of the equity shares of MBL. JPL is one of the leading media groups in India with interests spanning 
across print, radio, digital, out of home, and brand activations. JPL is a public Limited company and its equity 
shares are listed on BSE and NSE. JPL has a corporate governance framework that ensures transparency in all 
its dealings and in the functioning of its Management and the Board. JPL enjoys the reputation of being 
extremely investor-friendly and has been consistent in rewarding its shareholders meaningfully. It has been its 
philosophy to enrich the shareholders to the extent possible in all the circumstances. It was this reputation that 
helped MBL close successfully its initial public offering in 2017 at a premium which was over 32 times of the 
then face value of Rs 10 each. 
 

2. The radio industry is undergoing a transformation right now and the turn of event in the industry has also 
impacted MBL. In the recent past, its performance has not been commensurate to the potential of the company 
and is reflected in its market performance as well. 
 

3. MBL intends to ensure that it continues to get the support of its esteemed public shareholders who have 
supported the company so far. 
 

4. In view of the above, the Board of Directors of MBL has formulated this Scheme of Arrangement for issuance 
of Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (“NCRPS”) to its non-promoter 
shareholders on a preferential basis by way of bonus. The face value of such NCRPS will be ₹10 (Rupees Ten) 
issued at a premium of ₹90 (Rupees Ninety) per NCRPS to be redeemed on expiry of 36 months at a premium 
of ₹20 (Rupees Twenty) pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 and other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 

5. The Company has a strong net worth with no debt. MBL is also confident in running the business profitably 
and generating sufficient cash to meet its future requirements. However, it is considered prudent to conserve the 
cash to meet any unforeseen requirement that may arise during and aftermath of the Covid 19 pandemic which 
has created an unprecedented challenging business environment. 
 

6. The above-mentioned Scheme is beneficial to MBL, its promoter (JPL being the holding company of MBL), 
and non-promoter shareholders as it strengthen the image of MBL as well as JPL in the market as it commits 
itself for higher distributions going forward. This will also augur well for future fundraising requirement, if any, 
of JPL and MBL. 

 
B. Issuance of NCRPS to the Non-Promoter Shareholders of our Company 

 
Each non-promoter Equity Shareholder is entitled to get 1 (one) Non-Convertible NCRPS for every 10 (Ten) Equity 
Shares held by them as on the record date, ie, January 13, 2023; 
 
 
*As on the date of Information Memorandum, JPL holds 74.05% of the Equity Share capital of the Company 
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Each NCRPS are face value of ₹10 each issued at the premium of ₹90 each carrying a dividend of 0.1% (zero point 
one percent) to be redeemed after 36 months from the date of allotment at a price of ₹120 each. These NCRPS are 
to be issued as Bonus to the non- promoter shareholders of the Company and are proposed to be listed at Stock 
Exchanges. 
 
All such NCRPS shall be issued in dematerialized form only. 
 
The accounting treatment as proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with the accounting standards prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act and other applicable provisions. 
 

C. Increase in the Authorised Share Capital 
 
The authorized share capital has been automatically increased from previous ₹80,05,00,000 (Rupees Eighty Crores 
and Five Lakhs only) to ₹89,01,96,000 (Rupees Eighty-Nine Crores One Lakh Ninety-Six Thousand Only). 
 

D. Approvals with respect to Scheme  
 
a. Approval from Board of Directors, Shareholders and Un-secured Creditors 

 
• The Scheme was approved by the Board of Directors of our Company vide resolution dated October 22, 

2020. 
 

• Further, the Shareholders and Un-secured Creditors of our Company approved the Scheme through the 
NCLT convened meetings on Thursday, June 23, 2022 through video conferencing. 

 
b. Approval from Hon’ble NCLT 

 
• The Hon’ble NCLT approved the Scheme, vide Order dated December 23, 2022 (certified copy received 

by the Company on December 27, 2022).  
 

c. Approval from stock exchanges and SEBI 
 

• The Company has received approval for listing of its NCRPS on BSE and NSE vide their letter no. [●] 
dated [●], 2023 and letter no. [●] dated [●], 2023, respectively. 
 

• Further, the Company has also received a letter bearing no. [●] dated [●] from the SEBI in relation to 
relaxation from applicability of Rule 19(2)(b) of the SCRR for listing of the NCRPS on BSE and NSE. 
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OUR BUSINESS 
 

The following information is qualified in its entirety and should be read together with the more detailed financial and 
other information included in this Information Memorandum, including the information contained in “Risk Factors” on 
page number 8, of this Information Memorandum. 
 
Music Broadcast Limited is the first FM radio broadcaster in India under the brand name Radio City with over two 
decades of expertise in the radio industry. 

Music Broadcast Limited currently has 39 stations across 12 states, comprising 62% of the country’s FM population. 
Radio City reaches out to over 69 million listeners across India covered by AZ Research 2019 (Source: AZ Research 
Report). The network provides terrestrial programming along with 17 web-stations, through its digital interface, 
www.radiocity.in  

Radio City has spearheaded the evolution of FM radio by offering content that is unique, path-breaking and invokes city 
passion amongst listeners with its brand philosophy of “Rag Rag Mein Daude City”. The network introduced humour 
and the concept of agony aunt on radio with Babber Sher and Love Guru respectively. It also initiated Radio City Freedom 
Awards, a platform to recognize independent music and provided a launch pad to budding singers with Radio City Super 
Singer, the first singing talent hunt on radio. This year, the organization launched its first international property ‘Radio 
City Business Titans’ to recognize Indian businesses for their business excellence. 

Radio City has bagged over 130 awards across national and international platforms such as New York Festival, ACEF 
Awards, Golden Mikes Radio Advertising Awards, India Radio Forum, etc. in the recent past. Recently, Music Broadcast 
Limited has received ‘India's Best Company of the Year 2022’ Award by Berkshire media. Radio City has consistently 
featured for the 7th time in ‘India’s Best Companies to Work For’ study conducted by Great Place to Work Institute. The 
company has also been recognized in ‘India’s Best Workplaces for Women – 2019’ and has ranked amongst the Top 75 
organizations on the list. In 2020, Radio City ranked 4th in ‘Best Large Workplaces in Asia’, according to the GPTW 
survey. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 



29  

 

HISTORY AND CERTAIN CORPORATE MATTERS 
 

Brief history of our Company 
 
Our Company was incorporated as Music Broadcast Private Limited on November 4, 1999, at Kolkata as a private limited 
company under the Companies Act, 1956. Our Company was converted into a public limited company pursuant to 
approval of the shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held on June 15, 2015 and consequently, the name of 
our Company was changed to Music Broadcast Limited and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon 
conversion to public limited company was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai on June 25, 2015. Our 
Company came out with its public issue of equity shares in 2017. At present, the Equity Shares of our Company are listed 
at BSE and NSE. The Corporate Identification Number of our Company is L64200MH1999PLC137729. 
 
The changes to the name of our Company were undertaken upon conversion of our Company from a private limited 
company to a public limited company. 
 
Registered Office and Changes in the Registered Office 
 
At present our Registered Office is situated at 5th Floor, RNA Corporate Park, Off Western Express Highway, Kalanagar, 
Bandra (East) Mumbai 400 051. 
 
The details of change in the registered office are as under: 
 

Date of 
Change 

Address Changed 
From To 

23/09/2002 Park Plaza, 6th Floor, 71 Park Street, Kolkata 
700 016 

IL & FS Financial Center, 5th Floor, Plot No. 
C-22, G-Block, North Quadrant, BKC, 
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051 

28/05/2007 IL & FS Financial Center, 5th Floor, Plot No. 
C-22, G-Block, North Quadrant, BKC, Bandra 
(East), Mumbai 400 051 

5th Floor, RNA Corporate Park, Western 
Express Highway, Kalanagar, Bandra (East), 
Mumbai 400 051 

 
Key events, milestones and achievements 

Year Particulars 
1999 Incorporation of our Company 
2001 Our Company won licenses for FM broadcasting in four cities under FM Policy Phase I  
2005 IVF Trustee Company invests in our Company and attains a majority shareholding 
2006 Our Company won licenses for FM broadcasting in 16 cities under FM Policy Phase II  
2010 Our Company launched web radio in India  
2014 JPL invested in our Company through Spectrum Broadcast Holdings Private Limited 
2015 • Issue of Listed NCDs and listing on BSE 

• ‘CRISIL AA/Stable’ rating of Listed NCDs by CRISIL Limited  
2016 • Our Company won licenses for FM broadcasting in 11 cities under FM Policy Phase III 

• Re-affirmation of ‘CRISIL AA/Stable’ rating of Listed NCDs by CRISIL Limited 
2016 The radio division of Shri Puran Multimedia Limited was transferred to our Company pursuant 

to the Scheme of Arrangement 
2017 Our Company made an initial public issue of Equity Shares 

 
Main Objects of our Company 
The main objects contained in the Memorandum of Association include the following: 
 
1. To carry on the business of recording, filming and screening, relaying, producing, distribution of AM & FM 

Broadcast, Satellite Broadcast at Radio, Television, Internet, Cable Television, Computers and other equipment, 
and for that purpose to hire, lease, purchase and sell time, space on any Satellite, Antennas, Transponders, 
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Radio station or Television Centre in India or abroad or any other media currently in vogue or which may be 
in vogue at any time and for that purpose to manufacture and/deal in all kinds of audio and video equipment 
including professional grade equipment such as editing control unit, special effects, generator, video cameras 
telecine etc. setting up and running of the Radio, Television, video studios, audio recording centre, making of 
video vans or like items, filled with electronic equipment and Broadcast programmes either by own production 
or production from others of every kind including intranet, E-commerce, E-business, E.R.P and multimedia 
activities. 
 

2. To carry on business of all communities equipment like receivers, transmitters, trans-receivers, walkie-talkie, 
radio, relay equipment, point to point communication equipment, antennas and associated equipment, single 
channel, multichannel, fixed frequency, variable frequency, static, mobile, airborn, shipborn equipment in any 
frequency spectrum, TV systems, receivers, transmitters, pattern generators and associated equipment, 
amplifiers, oscillators, synthesizers, waveform generating, measuring and associated equipment, sonic, 
ultrasonic and radio frequency ranging and depth finding equipments and telementry coding and data 
transmission equipment, data acquisition, processing and logging equipment, calculators, computers, 
minicomputers, microcomputers, printers, readers display terminal, facsimile transmitting and receiving 
equipments and systems. 

 
Our Holding Company 
As on date of this Information Memorandum, JPL, the Promoter of our Company is our holding company.  
 
Our Subsidiaries 
As on the date of this Information Memorandum, our Company does not have any subsidiary company.  
 
Key terms of our material agreements  
Our Company has not entered into any material agreement, more than two years before the date of this Information 
Memorandum, which are not in the ordinary course of business. 
 
 
Related party transactions based on Financial Information                                           

(₹ in Lakh) 
Nature of transactions For the year ended March 31, 

2022 2021 2020 
Particulars      
Sale and purchase of services:    
Purchase of advertisement space/material:    
Jagran Prakashan Limited 80.15 27.40 304.98 
Midday Infomedia Limited 6.52 52.97 166.97 
Advertisement income (net)    
Jagran Prakashan Limited 189.58 108.59 243.41 
Midday Infomedia Limited 8.12 17.35 183.62 
Other Income    
Jagran Prakashan Limited 5.10 2.13 - 
Revenue from website designing, development & 
maintenance services    
Midday Infomedia Limited - - 75.00 
Purchase of fixed assets    
Jagran Prakashan Limited - 0.39  
Other transaction:    
Rent charged by related parties for use of common 
facilities / utilities:    
Jagran Prakashan Limited 49.19 31.50 31.65 
VRSM Enterprises LLP 44.67 43.64 38.10 
Staff welfare expenses    
Jagran Prakashan Limited - - 5.45 
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Nature of transactions For the year ended March 31, 
2022 2021 2020 

Expenses reimbursement paid    
Jagran Prakashan Limited 41.15 35.69 26.30 
Midday Infomedia Limited 46.22 5.91 - 
Expenses reimbursement received    
Jagran Prakashan Limited 0.33 3.59 7.71 
Midday Infomedia Limited 70.59 58.75 9.58 
MMI Online Limited  - 5.82 
 Security deposit given    
Jagran Prakashan Limited  50.00 - 
VRSM Enterprises LLP  - 35.00 
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OUR MANAGEMENT 
The Board of Directors of the Company consist of 7 (Seven) Directors among which 5 (five) are Independent Directors 
and 2 (Two) are Non-Executive Directors. The following table sets forth the details regarding the Board of Directors as 
on the date of the Information Memorandum: 
 
 
Sr. No. 

Name, Designation, DIN, Address, 
occupation, Date of appointment 

Nationality Age 
(Yrs.) 

Directorships in other Companies 

1. Mr. Vijay Tandon 
Chairman, Non-Executive 
Independent Director 
DIN: 00156305 
Address: C-356, SFS Sheikh Sarai, 
Phase I, New Delhi110 017 
Occupation: Consultant 
Date of appointment: November 24, 
2016 

Indian 78 Jagran Prakashan Limited 
 
 

2. Mr. Anuj Puri 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 
DIN: 00048386 
Address: Flat 202, Second Floor, 
Raheja Haven, Road No. 10, JVPD 
Scheme, Juhu, Mumbai 400 049 
Occupation: Business 
Date of appointment: May 30, 2016 
 

Indian 56 Jagran Prakashan Limited 
Mahindra Lifespace Developers Limited 
Puri Crawford Insurance Surveyors & Loss 
Assessors India Private Limited 
Embassy Office Parks Management Services 
Private Limited 
Anarock Property Consultants Private Limited 
Trespect India Private Limited 
Joyville Shapoorji Housing Private Limited 
Homexchange Private Limited 
Upflex Anarock India Private Limited 
Anarock Investment Advisors Private Limited 
Anarock Group Business Services Private 
Limited 
Anarock Capital Advisors Private Limited 
HVS Anarock Hotel Advisory Services Private 
Limited 
 

3. Mr. Rahul Gupta 
Non-Executive Non-Independent 
Director 
DIN: 00359182 
Address: 7/51, Puran Niwas, Tilak 
Nagar, Kanpur 208 002  
Occupation: Business 
Date of appointment: June 10, 2015 

Indian 42 Jagmini Micro Knit Private Limited 
Jagran Micro Motors Limited 
Shri Puran Multimedia Limited 
Jagran Infotech Limited 
 

4. Mr. Shailesh Gupta 
Non-Executive Non-Independent 
Director 
DIN: 00192466 
Address: 7/51, Puran Niwas, Tilak 
Nagar, Kanpur 208 002  
Occupation: Business 
Date of appointment: January 28, 
2019 

Indian 53 Jagran Prakashan Limited 
Midday Infomedia Limited 
Rave Real Estate Private Limited 
MMI Online Limited 
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Sr. No. 

Name, Designation, DIN, Address, 
occupation, Date of appointment 

Nationality Age 
(Yrs.) 

Directorships in other Companies 

5. Mr. Madhukar Kamath 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 
DIN: 00230316 
Address: A 1203/1204, Chaitanya 
Towers, Appasaheb Marathe Marg, 
Prabhadevi, Mumbai – 400 025 
Occupation: Consultant 
Date of appointment: May 25, 2017 

Indian 68 Multiplier Brand Solutions Private Limited 

6. Ms. Anita Nayyar 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 
DIN: 03317861 
Address: Flat No. 8811, Sector C, 
Pocket 8, Vasant Kunj, New Delhi – 
110 070 
Occupation: Service 
Date of appointment: January 27, 
2020 

Indian 61 Midday Infomedia Limited 
 

7. Mr. Ravi Sardana 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 
DIN: 06938773 
Address: 7C, H Block, SFS Flats, 
Saket, New Delhi – 110 017 
Occupation: Professional 
Date of appointment: May 24, 2022 

Indian 57 Jagran Prakashan Limited 

 
Relationship between the Directors 
 
None of the Directors are related to each other. 
 
Brief Profile of Directors 
 
Mr. Vijay Tandon, is a Non-Executive Independent Director and Chairman of the Company since November 24, 2016. 
Mr. Tandon is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Qualifying in 1969, Mr. Tandon was 
associated with a leading firm of Chartered Accountants (Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co.) in New Delhi and was a 
partner of the firm between 1977 and 1999. As a Chartered Accountant and Financial Management Consultant, with over 
41 years of professional experience in various capacities, Mr. Tandon has been associated with number of private and 
public sector companies and banks in the capacity of auditor. Mr. Tandon has extensive knowledge of corporate laws 
and headed the Corporate Division of the CA firm. Mr. Tandon has been associated with print media industry in various 
capacities, as publisher auditor, representing the Audit Bureau of Circulations and as director in Associated Journals 
Limited (The National Herald Group). Also, as a management consultant, Mr. Tandon has been associated with a number 
of consulting services in diverse sectors of economy, industry and public utilities funded by the Asian Development 
Bank, the World Bank and the UK Department of International Development in India as well as South & Central Asia. 
Between 2000-2015 Mr. Tandon was Principal Consultant/ Director India with ICF Consulting Services (earlier GHK 
Consulting) a UK based development consulting. Mr. Tandon is currently an advisor on Urban Governance and 
Management and a Non-Executive Independent Director of Jagran Prakashan Limited. 
 
Mr. Anuj Puri, is a Non-Executive Independent Director of our Company and has been associated with the Company 
since May 30, 2016. Mr. Puri is Chairman of ANAROCK Group and is widely acknowledged for revolutionizing the 
real estate sector with his visionary outlook and tech-driven solutions. He has been the trusted advisor to developers, 
occupiers, and investors for decades. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce, is an Associate of Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, Associate of Chartered Insurance Institute -UK, Associate of Insurance Institute of Surveyors & 
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Adjusters (India), and an Associate of Insurance Institute of India. Until February 2017, he was Chairman & Country 
Head of international property consultants - JLL India overseeing a team of over 9000 employees in 11 cities. Mr. Puri 
was also a key member of JLL’s Asia Pacific Leadership Group and Head of its Global Retail Leasing Board. Anuj set 
up ANAROCK in 2017 which is now India’s leading independent real estate consulting services company with 13 
offices in India and Gulf Cooperation Council (GCC) and an employee strength of 1800+. Under his leadership, 
ANAROCK has added Residential Broking & Technology, Retail(in partnership with Vindico- UAE headquartered retail 
real estate specialist in tenant coordination and design review services), Commercial, Investment Banking, Hospitality 
(in partnership with HVS- a global leader in hospitality consulting & transaction advisory), Land Services, Industrial and 
Logistics(in partnership with Binswanger- US-headquartered industrial advisory & brokerage firm), Investment 
Management, Research, Strategic Advisory & Valuations, and Project Management Services (in partnership with Mace- 
UK headquartered project management and construction specialist), Flexi Spaces(in partnership with myHQ & Upflex) 
and Society Management Services(acquisition of Apna Complex) and is aggressively expanding to newer geographies 
and real estate business verticals. Mr. Puri has held various key positions in the real estate industry including MoHUA- 
Urban Expert Committee, Member of the Advisory Committee of Maharashtra Chamber of Housing Industry & 
Confederation of Real Estate Developers Association of India (MCHI-CREDAI), Member of Young Presidents 
Organization (YPO), Member of Construction Week India National Advisory Board, Member of Hotelier India 
Magazine’s Advisory Board and Advisory Board Member of CREDAI MCHI Forum for Real Estate Marketing 
Experience & Innovations.He is also Fellow Member of Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors, UK (FRICS). Mr. Puri 
is a Non-Executive Independent Director of Jagran Prakashan Limited and Mahindra Lifespace Developers Limited. 
  
Mr. Rahul Gupta, is a Non-Executive Director of the Company and has been associated with the Company since June 
10, 2015. He holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Lancaster University (UK) and a Bachelor’s 
Degree in Science (Business and Management Studies) from the University of Bradford (UK). With almost two decades 
of experience in the media industry, Mr. Gupta has worked in top media groups in Ireland, UK & India. He started his 
career with Independent Newspapers (Ireland) and later worked in The Independent’s advertising department in London. 
He has been instrumental in helping in building the radio business for the Jagran Group, which involved setting up the 
Radio Mantra Stations in 2006, and the acquisition of Radio City in 2015. Mr. Gupta also served as the Senior Vice 
President of the Association of Radio Operators for India (AROI). He headed the music committee, which helped 
rationalize music royalties for radio in India. Currently, he heads and manages the operations of Jagmini Micro Knit 
Private Limited, one of the largest producers and exporters of legwear in India. Leading the expansion and growth story 
of JMKPL, Mr. Gupta sets the company’s strategic direction and is guiding its exponential growth in North America & 
mainland Europe. Driven by his strong entrepreneurial spirit, vision, and ability to forge best-industry partnerships, he 
has established “Balenzia” as one of the fastest-growing D2C brands in the apparel industry, collaborating with iconic 
brands like Disney, Marvel, Warner Brothers, and Cartoon Network. 
 
Mr. Shailesh Gupta is a Non-Executive Director of the Company and has been associated with the Company since 
January 28, 2019. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce. Mr. Gupta has more than 30 years of experience in the 
print media industry. Mr. Gupta holds various key positions in the industry including being the President of The Indian 
Newspaper Society (INS) and Chairman of Council of Audit Bureau of Circulations (ABC). He is currently member of 
the Governing Board/Council of INS, ABC and Vice Chairman of Media Research Users Council (MRUC), Director of 
Rave Real Estate Private Limited, MMI Online Limited and Mid-day Infomedia Limited. In December, 2017, The Indian 
Newspaper Society (INS) nominated Mr. Shailesh Gupta as INS Nominee on the Board of WAN-IFRA. Mr. Gupta is a 
Whole-time Director of Jagran Prakashan Limited. 
 
Mr. Madhukar Kamath is a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company and has been associated with the 
Company since May 25, 2017. Mr. Kamath is an Economics graduate from the Loyola Collage, Chennai. He studied 
Management at XLRI Jamshedpur, which has also conferred on him a Distinguished Alumnus award. Mr. Kamath has 
more than four decades of experience in Advertising and Marketing Services and has spent over 26 years in erstwhile 
Mudra now the DDB Mudra Group, in two separate stints. Under his leadership, Mudra Group transformed itself from 
an Advertising Agency into one of India’s leading Integrated Marketing Communications Groups. Mr. Kamath also 
played a key role in the Omnicom acquisition of the Mudra Group and the integration with the Global DDB Network. 
Subsequently, he facilitated the entry of Interbrand, the leading Global Brand Consultancy into India, and functioned as 
its Chairman. In between his two stints at DDB Mudra Group, Mr. Kamath led Bates India as its CEO and was 
instrumental in the acquisition of Clarion. He also introduced Zenith Media into India. 
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Following his retirement, he has been appointed as the Chairman Emeritus of the DDB Mudra Group and as a Mentor 
by Interbrand India. He has also turned an entrepreneur and is now the Chairman of Multiplier, an Insights & Solutions 
company, connecting Brands with Shoppers. Mr. Kamath has served as the President of the AAAI (Advertising Agencies 
Association of India), the Chairman of ASCI (The Advertising Standards Council of India) and the ABC (Audit Bureau 
of Circulation). 
 
As the Chairman of the Mudra Foundation and the Chairperson of the Governing Council of MICA, for over a decade, 
Mr. Kamath helped build MICA into India’s foremost Strategic Marketing and Communications Management Institute. 
Mr. Kamath also served as the President of MICA, for the academic year 2016-17. In 2013, he became an Executive 
Board member of the NGO, Plan India. In 2020 he was elected to the Global Board of Plan International and currently 
is the Vice-Chair. 
 
Ms. Anita Nayyar is a Non-Executive Independent Director of our Company and has been associated with the Company 
since January 27, 2020. Ms. Nayyar holds a Bachelor’s degree in Microbiology and has a PG in Advertising and 
Marketing Management & Business Management along with a Masters in Management. Ms. Nayyar has an experience 
of 35+ years in the Advertising, Marketing & Media industry having worked for top advertising agencies like Saatchi & 
Saatchi, Ogilvy & Mather, Initiative Media, Media Com, Starcom Worldwide & Havas Media Group. She has also 
worked with publishers like The Times of India & Zee 5. 
 
Ms. Nayyar was voted the 2nd most influential media person in India by The Brand Equity Survey in 2006 and has 
always been in the top list of the influential media personalities ever since. She is on the list of Impact top 50 women in 
Media, Marketing and Advertising and also the top 100 by Campaign Asia in APAC, along with - APAC VISION 
LEADER of the Year 2019 & APAC CEO of the Year 2018 by Campaign Asia Women Leading Change. She has 
immense respect and credibility in the industry and has been recently conferred with Women Disruptors 2022 Life Time 
Achievement Award 2022 and 20 Most Influential Women in India in Marketing & Advertising 2022. Ms. Nayyar is 
currently the COO-Media & Communication at Patanjali Ayurved Limited, largest Indian FMCG Company. Ms. Nayyar 
was also Non-Executive Independent Director of Jagran Prakashan Limited from 2014 to 2019. 
 
Mr. Ravi Sardana is a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company and has been associated with the Company 
w.e.f. May 24, 2022. He is a Chartered Accountant and a Chevening Scholar. He has over three decades of experience 
in investment banking and corporate finance and has contributed to more than two hundred successful transactions. He 
was the past Executive Vice President in ICICI Securities Limited. Mr. Sardana is presently a Consultant with Ebner 
Stolz, an accounting and management consulting firm as part of their India desk. Mr. Sardana has worked extensively in 
the media sector advising companies on advisory and fundraising assignments. Also, he is a Non-Executive Independent 
Director of Jagran Prakashan Limited. 
 
Confirmations  
No Director in our Company is a director, or is otherwise associated in any manner, with any company that appears in 
the list of the vanishing companies as maintained by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, wilful defaulter list maintained 
by the RBI or Export Credit Guarantee Corporation of India Limited or any other regulatory or governmental authority.  
 
None of our Directors have committed any violation of securities laws in the past and no proceedings in such regard by 
SEBI, RBI are pending against any of our Directors.  
 
None of our Director is restrained or prohibited or debarred by the Board from accessing the securities market or dealing 
in securities in any other manner.  
 
None of our Director is a promoter or director of another company which is debarred from accessing the securities market 
or dealing in securities by SEBI. 
 
None of our Director is in default of payment of interest or repayment of principal amount, in respect of debt securities 
issued to the public, for a period of more than six months.  
 
None of the Director has any interest in the promotion of our Company. For details of the Promoter of the Company, 
please refer to “Our Promoter” on page 39. 
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Compensation of Directors 
 
Non-Executive Directors 
The Non-Executive Directors, other than Independent Directors, are not entitled to receive sitting fees.  
 
The Independent Directors are paid remuneration in the form of sitting fees within the limits prescribed under the Act 
and decided by the Board of Directors.  

(₹ in Lakh) 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Independent 
Director 

Nine Months 
Period ended 
December 31, 

2022 

Year ended 
March 31, 

2022 

Year ended 
March 31, 

2021 

Year ended 
March 31, 

2020 

1. Mr. Vijay Tandon 2.40 2.40 2.40 3.00 
2. Mr. Anuj Puri 1.80 3.00 2.40 3.00 
3. Mr. Madhukar Prabhakar 

Kamath 
2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 

4. Ms. Anita Nayyar 2.00 2.50 2.00 0.50 
5. Mr. Ravi Sardana 1.00 - - - 

 
Interest of our Directors 
 
All of our Independent Directors may be deemed to be interested to the extent of sitting fees payable to them for attending 
meetings of the Board and Committees thereof. All of our Directors are interested to the extent of reimbursement of 
expenses payable to them by our Company.  
 
None of the other Directors have any interest in immovable property acquired or proposed to be acquired by the Company 
in the preceding two years as of the date of this Information Memorandum.  
 
As on date of this Information Memorandum, none of the Directors are interested in any contracts, agreements/ 
arrangements entered into or to be entered into by our Company with any company in which they hold directorships or 
any partnership firm in which they are partners as declared in their respective declarations.  
 
None of the relatives of our Directors have been appointed to an office or to a place of profit in our Company.  
 
None of our Directors are interested in their capacity as a member of any firm or company and no sums have been paid 
or are proposed to be paid to any Director or to such firm of company in which he is interested, by any person, in cash 
or shares or otherwise, either to induce them or to help them qualify as a director or for services rendered by him or by 
such firm or company, in connection with the promotion or formation of our Company.  
 
Our Directors or their relatives have not purchased or sold any Equity Shares of our Company in the six month preceding 
the date of this Information Memorandum. 
 
Shareholding of Directors including details of qualification shares held by Directors as on the date of the 
Information memorandum 
As on the date of this Information Memorandum, none of the Directors hold any equity shares in our Company.  
 
Changes in the Directors of our Company during the last three years  
 
The changes in the Board of Directors of our Company in the three years preceding the date of this Information 
Memorandum are as follows: 
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Name of the Director, Designation 
and DIN 

Date of 
Appointment 

Date of 
Cessation, if 
applicable 

Date of 
Resignation, if 

applicable 

Remarks 

Ms. Anita Nayyar  
Non-Executive Independent Director 
DIN: 03317861 

September 15, 
2020 

- - Appointed 

Ms. Apurva Purohit 
Non-Executive Director 
DIN: 00190097 

July 1, 2016 July 1, 2021 July 1, 2021 Resigned 

Mr. Ravi Sardana 
Non-Executive Independent Director 
DIN: 06938773 

May 25, 2022 - - Appointed 

 
Corporate Governance 
 
Our Company is in compliance with the corporate governance code in accordance with Companies Act and SEBI LODR 
Regulations, as amended from time to time, particularly those relating to composition of Board of Directors and 
constitution of committees thereof. The corporate governance framework is based on an effective independent Board, 
separation of the Board‘s supervisory role from the executive management team and constitution of the Board 
Committees, as required under law. Our Board has been constituted in compliance with the Companies Act and the SEBI 
LODR Regulations. The Board functions either as a full board, or through various committees constituted to oversee 
specific operational areas. 
 
Key Managerial Personnel 
 
Following are the KMP of our Company: 
 

Names Designation 
Mr. Ashit Kukian Chief Executive Officer 
Ms. Arpita Kapoor Company Secretary 
Mr. Prashant Domadia Chief Finance Officer 

 
Shareholding of Key Managerial Personnel  
Certain of our Key Managerial Personnel may also be regarded as interested in our Company to the extent of the Shares, 
Stock Options and/or Share Appreciation Rights, if any, held by them and also to the extent of any dividend payable to 
them and other distributions in respect of such Shares held by them.  
 
None of our Key Managerial Personnel hold any Equity Shares as on the date of this Information Memorandum. 
 
Other confirmations  
 
None of the Directors, Promoter or Key Managerial Personnel of our Company has any financial or other material interest 
in the Issue.  
 
Our Company does not have any bonus or profit-sharing plan with its Directors or Key Managerial Personnel.  
 
Neither our Company, nor our Promoter or the companies with which our Promoter is or has been associated with a 
promoter or a person in control have been debarred from accessing capital markets under any order or direction passed 
by SEBI or any other governmental or regulatory or judicial authority.  
 
Neither our Company nor Promoter have been declared as a Wilful Defaulter in the last ten years.  
 
None of our Directors or Promoter have been declared as a Fugitive Economic Offender. 
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Related Party Transaction  
 
For details of the related party transactions for the Financial Years ending 2022, 2021 and 2020 in accordance with the 
requirements under Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended from time to time, see “Related Party 
Transactions” under “History and Certain Corporate Matters” on page 30. 
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OUR PROMOTER 
 

Jagran Prakashan Limited (JPL) is the Promoter of our Company. The details of our Promoter is provided below: 
 
Jagran Prakashan Limited  
Our Promoter was incorporated on July 18, 1975 having Corporate Identification Number L22219UP1975PLC004147. 
The registered office of our Company is situated at Jagran Building, 2, Sarvodaya Nagar, Kanpur 208 005. 
 
As on the date, the Promoter holds 25,59,89,649 Equity Shares representing 74.05% of the issued, subscribed and paid-
up capital of our Company.  

Name of the Promoter Jagran Prakashan Limited 
Date of Birth /Incorporation July 18, 1975 
Personal/ Registered Office Addresses Jagran Building, 2, Sarvodaya Nagar, Kanpur 208 

005, India 
Age  Not Applicable 
Educational Qualifications 
Experience in the business or employment 
Positions/Posts held in the past 
Directorships held 
Other Ventures of each Promoter As on December 31, 2022, Jagran Prakashan 

Limited has following: 
 
Subsidiary- 
Music Broadcast Limited 
Mid-day Infomedia Limited 
Associates- 
Leet OOH Media Private Limited 
X-Pert Publicity Private Limited 
MMI Online Limited 

Special achievements Not Applicable 
 

Business and Financial activities The principal business of JPL is publication of 
newspapers, magazines and journals, outdoor 
advertisement, event management, digital 
business including value added services through 
mobile and maintenance and running of web 
portals. 

Photograph  Not Applicable  
PAN AAACJ3404A 

 
Board of Directors 
 
The Board of Directors of JPL comprises of: 
 
1. Mr. Mahendra Mohan Gupta, Chairman and Managing Director; 
2. Mr. Dhirendra Mohan Gupta, Whole-Time Director; 
3. Mr. Sanjay Gupta, Whole-Time Director; 
4. Mr. Sandeep Gupta, Whole-Time Director; 
5. Mr. Shailesh Gupta, Whole-Time Director;  
6. Mr. Sunil Gupta, Whole-Time Director; 
7. Mr. Satish Chandra Mishra, Whole-Time Director; 
8. Mr. Devendra Mohan Gupta, Non-Executive Director; 
9. Mr. Shailendra Mohan Gupta, Non-Executive Director; 
10. Ms. Divya Rupchand Karani, Independent Director; 
11. Mr. Shailendra Swarup, Independent Director; 
12. Mr. Anuj Puri, Independent Director; 
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13. Mr. Shashidhar Sinha, Independent Director; 
14. Mr. Vijay Tandon, Independent Director; 
15. Mr. Dilip Cherian, Independent Director; 
16. Mr. Jayant Davar, Independent Director; 
17. Mr. Ravi Sardana, Independent Director; and 
18. Mr. Vikram Sakhuja, Independent Director. 
 
The equity shares of JPL are currently listed on BSE and NSE. 
 
Other Confirmations 
 
Our Promoter has confirmed that it has not been identified as wilful defaulter by any financial institution or bank or 
consortium in accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI. Our Promoter have not been identified as a wilful defaulter 
by any other governmental authority and are not Promoter of any such Company which has been identified as a wilful 
defaulter by the RBI or any other governmental authority or which has been in default of payment of interest or repayment 
of principal amount in respect of debt securities issued by it to the public, if any, for a period of more than six months.  
 
Further, no violation of securities laws has been committed by our Promoter in the past three years and no regulatory 
action before SEBI or RBI is currently pending against our Promoter.  
 
The Promoter have not been debarred or prohibited from accessing the capital markets or restrained from buying, selling, 
or dealing in securities under any order or directions passed for any reasons by the SEBI or any other authority or refused 
listing of any of the securities issued by any such entity by any stock exchange in India or abroad and are not promoters, 
directors or person in control of any other company which is prohibited from accessing or operating in capital markets 
under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority. 
  
Our Promoter has not been declared as a fugitive economic offender. 
 
Interest of our Promoter in our Company 
 
Other than as our shareholder, to the extent of promoter or the companies in which they are promoter holding Equity 
Shares and also to the extent of any dividend payable to them on the aforesaid shareholding, our Promoter does not have 
any other interest in our Company’s business.  
 
There are no Loans due by the Promoter to the Company.  
 
Promoter holding in the Company as on the date of Information Memorandum: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the 
Shareholder 

Total No. of 
Equity Shares 

held 

% of shareholding 
to the total equity 

share capital 

No. of 
Shares 
Pledged 

% of 
Shares 

Pledged 
1. Jagran Prakashan Limited 25,59,89,649 74.05 Nil  Nil  

*All Equity Shares held by the Promoter are in dematerialised form. 
For aggregate equity shareholding of the promoter refer to “Capital Structure” on page 16. 
 
Payment of benefit to the Promoter in last three years  
 
Except as stated on page 30, no amounts or benefits have been paid or given or intended to be paid or given to our 
Promoters within the three Financial Years preceding the date of this Information Memorandum.  
 
Except as mentioned under the chapter “Capital Structure” on page 16 of this Information Memorandum, our Promoter 
and Promoter Group of our Company have not purchased or sold any securities in our Company, in six months 
immediately preceding the date of this Information Memorandum. 
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GROUP COMPANIES 
 
As per Regulation 2(t) of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, Group companies, 
shall include such companies (other than promoter(s) and subsidiary/subsidiaries) with which there were related party 
transactions, during the period for which financial information is disclosed, i.e. March 31, 2022 and as covered under the 
applicable accounting standards, and also other companies as considered material by the board of the issuer.  
 
Midday Infomedia Limited (“Midday”) and MMI Online Limited (MMI) are our Group Companies, details of which are 
provided below: 
 
1. Midday Infomedia Limited (“Midday”) 

Corporate Information Midday was incorporated on January 16, 2008 under the Companies Act, 1956. The registered 
office of Midday is situated at 6th Floor, RNA Corporate Park, Off. Western Express Highway, Kalanagar, Bandra East, 
Mumbai 400 051. Midday is engaged in the business of printing and publishing of newspapers in English, Gujarati and 
Urdu Language. 
 
Shareholding Pattern  
 
The shareholding pattern of Midday is as follows: 

S. 
No. 

Name of shareholder No. of equity 
shares of Rs. 10 
each 

Percentage of issued 
capital (%) 

1. Jagran Prakashan Limited 2,98,70,321 100 
2. Mr. Sanjay Gupta  

(Nominee shareholder for Jagran Prakashan Limited) 
1 - 

3. Mr. Shailesh Gupta  
(Nominee shareholder for Jagran Prakashan Limited) 

1 - 

4. Mr. R. K. Agarwal  
(Nominee shareholder for Jagran Prakashan Limited) 

1 - 

5. Mr. Jimmy Oza  
(Nominee shareholder for Jagran Prakashan Limited) 

1 - 

6. Mr. Ashish Shah  
(Nominee shareholder for Jagran Prakashan Limited) 

1 - 

7. Ms. Tinaz Nooshian  
(Nominee sharholder for Jagran Prakashan Limited) 

1 - 

TOTAL 2,98,70,327 100% 
* Nominee shareholders for JPL 
 
Board of Directors  
 
The board of directors of Midday comprises the following persons: 

1. Mr. Sanjay Gupta 
2. Mr. Vikas Joshi 
3. Mr. Shailesh Gupta 
4. Mr. Shashidhar Sinha 
5. Ms. Anita Nayyar 
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Financial Information 
The following information has been derived from the audited financial statements of Midday for the last three audited 
Financial Years: 
 

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 
2022 2021 2020 

Equity Capital 2,987.03  2,787.03  1,987.03  
Reserves and surplus (excluding revaluation reserves) 2,849.62  3,792.35  4,767.34  
Sales/Turnover from operations 4,926.06  3,042.56  8,773.16  
Net Profit/(Loss) available to equity shareholders (1,100.90)  (1,792.73)  (807.27)  
Basic EPS (in ₹) (3.80)  (8.32)  (4.06)  
Diluted EPS (in ₹) (3.80)  (8.32)  (4.06)  
Net asset value per share (in ₹)) * 19.54  23.61  34.00 

(rounded off)  
* Net asset value per Equity Share (₹) is net worth at the end of the period/year excluding preference share capital but 
including share capital suspense account and shares held by Trust / total number of equity shares outstanding at the end 
of the year (including share capital suspense account). 
 
2.  MMI Online Limited (“MMI”) 
 
Corporate Information  
MMI was incorporated on November 03, 2008 under the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of MMI is situated 
at Jagran Building 2, Sarvodaya Nagar, Kanpur, Uttar Pradesh - 208005. MMI is engaged in the business of digital media 
& online content services in sectors like news, education, medicine, travel and tourism. 
 
Shareholding Pattern  
 
The shareholding pattern of MMI is as follows: 

S. 
No. 

Name of shareholder No. of equity 
shares of Rs. 10 
each 

Percentage of issued 
capital (%) 

1. Jagran Prakashan Limited 2,19,55,000 44.92 
2. Kanchan Properties Limited 2,39,22,230 48.95 
3. Sarvodaya MFD Services Private Limited 29,89,450 6.12 
4. Pramod Kumar Nigam 1,000 0.00 
5. Narendra Kumar Gupta 1,000 0.00 
6. Padam Kumar Jain 1,000 0.00 
7. Bhanwar Lal Kothiwal 1,000 0.00 
8. Anil Kothiwal 1,000 0.00 

TOTAL 4,88,71,680 100 
 
Board of Directors  
 
The board of directors of MMI comprises the following persons: 

1. Sanjay Gupta 
2. Shailesh Gupta 
3. Bharat Gupta 

Financial Information 
 
The following information has been derived from the audited financial statements of MMI for the last three audited 
Financial Years: 

Particulars For the year ended March 31,2022 
2022 2021 2020 

Equity Capital 4,88,71,680 4,88,71,680 4,88,71,680 
Reserves and surplus (excluding revaluation reserves)  -1,27,99,815 -1,62,55,201 -2,26,45,684 
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Particulars For the year ended March 31,2022 
2022 2021 2020 

Sales/Turnover from operations  27,86,47,192  23,80,93,259  25,83,16,591 
Net Profit/(Loss) available to equity shareholders  20,49,637  54,18,822 9,64,400 
Basic EPS (in ₹) 0.42 1.11 0.20 
Diluted EPS (in ₹) 0.42 1.11 0.20 
Net asset value per share (in ₹)) * 7.38 6.67 5.37 

* Net asset value per Equity Share (₹) is net worth at the end of the period/year excluding preference share capital but 
including share capital suspense account and shares held by Trust / total number of equity shares outstanding at the end 
of the year (including share capital suspense account). 
 
Interest of our Promoter in our Group Company 
Our Promoter has entered into certain transactions with our Group Companies, Midday and MMI in the ordinary course 
of business and may continue to do so, from time to time. Further, our Promoter is interested to the extent of its 
shareholding in our Group Companies, as detailed above. Except as aforesaid, our Promoter has no other interest therein. 
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KEY OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL PARAMETERS 
 
Our financial year commences on April 1 and ends on March 31 of the immediately subsequent year, and references to 
a particular financial year are to the 12 months ended March 31 of that year. Unless otherwise in dictated or the context 
otherwise requires, the financial information included herein is derived from our Financial Information included in this 
Information Memorandum. 
 
Key Performance Indicators 

(Rs. In lakhs) 
Particulars For period 

ended 
September 

30, 2022 

As at March 31, 
2022 

As at March 
31, 2021 

As at March 31, 
2020 

Balance Sheet 
Net Fixed assets  24,039.26     25,497.73     28,293.66  30,912.48   
Current assets 15,290.28         15,255.88     29,186.46         34,878.26 

Non-Current assets 25,708.24 
 

    24,653.01      8,187.09     2,986.20   

Total Assets 65,037.78        65,406.62    65,667.21         68,776.94 
Non-Current Liabilities (including 
maturities of long-term borrowings and 
short-term borrowings) 

    

Financial (borrowings, trade payables, 
and other financial liabilities) 

1,061.26 
 

       1,345.53  
 

     1,845.57         1,828.82   

Provisions - - - - 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) - - - - 
Other non-current liabilities 209.31              188.41          136.73             376.02  
Current Liabilities     
Financial (borrowings, trade payables, 
and other financial liabilities) 

2,489.42 2,459.41 1,923.00 2,721.04 

Provisions - - - - 
Current tax liabilities (net) - - - - 
Other current liabilities 892.25 1,053.78 785.27 672.24 
Equity (equity and other equity) 60,385.54      60,359.49   60,976.64          63,178.82 
Total equity and liabilities 65,037.78 65,406.62 65,667.21 68,776.94 
Profit and Loss 
Total revenue     
- Revenue from operations   9,278.41          16,843.02      12,759.48         24,782.14 
- Other income       932.46  1,679.85 1,492.34    1,630.54 

Total Expenses   10,194.97         19,279.04   17,527.55        23,520.93  
Profit / (loss) before tax       15.90 (756.17) (3,275.73)          2,891.75  
Total comprehensive income     
  -  Profit / (loss) after tax       11.34 (570.11) (2418.92)          2,820.75  
- Other comprehensive income       14.72 (47.04)         216.74 26.18 

Total comprehensive income       26.06           (617.15)    (2,202.18)           2,846.93  
Earnings per equity share: Basic; 
(Continuing operations) 

0.00 (0.16) (0.70) 0.82 

Earnings per equity share: Diluted 
(Continuing operations) 

0.00 (0.16) (0.70) 0.82 

Earnings per equity share: Basic 
(Discontinued operations) 

- - - - 

Earnings per equity share: Basic (Total 
Continuing and discontinued operations 

0.00 (0.16) (0.70) 0.82 
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Particulars For period 
ended 

September 
30, 2022 

As at March 31, 
2022 

As at March 
31, 2021 

As at March 31, 
2020 

Earnings per equity share: Diluted (Total 
Continuing and discontinued operations) 

0.00 (0.16) (0.70) 0.82 

Cash Flow 
Net cash (used in) operating activities 1,720.88 2,273.52 545.08           4,928.93  
Net cash generated from / (used in) 
investing activities 

(1,731.94) (1,761.36) 383.52           3,221.07 

Net cash generated from financing 
activities 

(392.00) (737.59) (700.60)         (8,870.52) 

Cash and cash equivalents (opening 
balance) 

763.94 989.37 761.37           1,481.89  

Balance as per statement of cash flows 360.88 763.94 989.37              761.37  
Additional Information 
Net worth 60,385.54      60,359.49   60,976.64  63,178.82 
Cash and Cash Equivalents      360.88  763.94 989.37              761.37 
Current Investments     5,481.43 4,519.80 18,139.87 21,331.82 
Net Sales 9,278.41         16,843.02      12,759.48  24,782.14 
EBITDA       831.51     1,102.59    (1,122.84 )    5,714.29  
EBIT (813.03)   (2,172.19)   (4,445.91)    2,235.88  
Dividend amounts - - - - 
Long term debt to working capital 0.09 0.11 0.07 0.06 
Current Liability ratio- Current 
Liabilities/Non-Current Liabilities 

2.66 2.29 1.37 1.54 

Total Debts to Total assets (times) 0.03 0.03 0.04 0.03 
Debt Service Coverage Ratios (times) 
(including lease liability) 

4.41 3.92 1.65 4.95 

Interest Income      867.37            1,282.69        737.38              477.33  
Interest Expense     103.53               263.83         322.16               974.67  
Interest service coverage ratio (times) 
(including interest on lease liabilities) 

8.03 4.18 (3.49) 5.86 
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COLUMNAR REPRESENTATION OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Rs. In lakhs) 

BALANCE SHEET 
As at March 

31, 2022 
As at March 

31, 2021 
As at March 

31, 2020 
ASSETS    
Non-current assets    
Property, plant and equipment  6,524.07   6,780.18  7,355.76 
Right-of-use assets  1,708.62   2,180.84  2,132.40 

Intangible assets  17,265.04   19,332.64  21,424.32 

Financial assets    
i. Investments  19,233.26   4,098.93  - 
ii.Other financial assets  2,416.86   1,285.60  1,135.94 

Deferred tax assets (net)  1,972.02   1,766.64  998.87 
Other non-current assets  326.36   370.19  403.3 
Non-current tax assets (net)  704.51   665.73  448.09 
Total non-current assets  50,150.74   36,480.75  33,898.68 

    
Current assets    
Financial assets    

i. Investments  2,676.20   16,093.53  20,835.83 
ii. Trade receivables  7,561.54   7,726.95  10,624.46 
iii. Cash and cash equivalents  763.94   989.37  761.37 
iv. Bank balances other than (iii) above  1,843.60   2,046.34  495.99 
v. Other financial assets  625.03   211.41  185.48 

Other current assets  1,785.57   2,118.86  1,975.13 
Total current assets  15,255.88   29,186.46   34,878.26  
Total assets  65,406.62   65,667.21   68,776.94  

    
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
Equity    
Equity share capital  6,913.71   6,913.71  6,913.71 
Other equity    

Reserves and surplus  39,248.44   39,865.59  42,067.77 
Other reserves  14,197.34   14,197.34  14,197.34 

Total equity  60,359.49   60,976.64   63,178.82  

    
LIABILITIES    

Non-current liabilities    
Financial liabilities    
   Lease liabilities  1,345.53   1,845.57  1,828.82 
Employee benefit obligations  188.41   136.73  376.02 
Total non-current liabilities  1,533.94   1,982.30   2,204.84  

    
Current liabilities    
Financial liabilities    

i. Trade payables    
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 
 50.99   48.74  35.42 
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(Rs. In lakhs) 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
As at March 

31, 2022 
As at March 

31, 2021 
As at March 

31, 2020 
Income    
Revenue from operations  16,843.02   12,759.48  24,782.14 
Other income (net)  1,282.69   737.38  477.33 
Other gains/(losses) - net  397.16   754.96   1,153.21  
Total income  18,522.87   14,251.82   26,412.68  
Expenses    
License fees  1,910.00   1,860.97  1,967.99 
Employee benefit expense  5,309.61   4,740.57  5,538.74 
Depreciation and amortisation expense  3,274.78   3,323.07  3,478.41 
Other expenses  8,520.82   7,280.78  11,561.12 
Finance costs  263.83   322.16   974.67  
Total expenses  19,279.04   17,527.55   23,520.93  
Profit/(Loss) before tax  (756.17)  (3,275.73)  2,891.75  
Income tax expense    
     -Current tax  -     -     616.64  
     -Deferred tax  (186.06)  (856.81)  (545.64) 
Total tax expense  (186.06)  (856.81)  71.00  
Profit/(Loss) for the year  (570.11)  (2,418.92)  2,820.75  
Other comprehensive income    
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss    
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations  (66.36)  305.78  36.94 
Income tax relating to this item  19.32   (89.04) (10.76) 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  (47.04)  216.74   26.18  
Total comprehensive income for the year  (617.15)  (2,202.18)  2,846.93  

    
Earnings per equity share attributable to owners of Music 
Broadcast Limited: 

   

Nominal value of shares (Rs. per share)  2.00   2.00   2.00  
Basic earnings Rs. per share   (0.16)  (0.70)  (0.82) 
Diluted earnings Rs. per share  (0.16)  (0.70)  (0.82) 

 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
As at March 

31, 2022 
As at March 

31, 2021 
As at March 

31, 2020 
Cash flows from operating activities    
Profit before tax  (756.17)  (3,275.73) 2891.75  

   

(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

 1,593.68   1,166.89  2,043.02 

ii. Lease liabilities  599.43   497.38  383.64 
iii. Other financial liabilities  215.31   209.99  258.46 

Employee benefit obligations  111.46   33.71  44.6 
Other current liabilities  942.32   751.56  628.14 
Total current liabilities  3,513.19   2,708.27   3,393.28  
Total liabilities  5,047.13   4,690.57   5,598.12  
Total equity and liabilities  65,406.62   65,667.21   68,776.94  
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Adjustments for:    
Depreciation and amortisation expense  3,274.78   3,323.07   3,478.41  
Finance costs  263.83   322.16   974.67  
Interest income   (1,230.50)  (667.43)  (427.72) 
Interest on income tax refund  -     (22.49)  3.78  
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss 

 (22.67)  (358.24)  (72.61) 

Unwinding of discount on security deposits  (52.19)  (47.46)  (49.61) 
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (7.16)  (1.49)  (19.86) 
Net gain on sale of investments   (362.23)  (392.90)  (1,055.31) 
Bad debts written off  254.90   -     -    
Lease liabilities no longer required written back  (37.47)  (80.60)  -  
Loss allowance for doubtful debts and advances  418.54   452.46   557.78  

  2,499.83  2,527.08 3389.53 
Operating Profit Before Change in Operating Assets and 
Liabilities  1,743.66  (748.65) 6281.28 
Change in operating assets and liabilities:    
 - (Decrease)/Increase in trade payables  429.04   (862.81)  (388.80) 
 - Increase in other current liabilities   190.76   123.42   (426.40) 
 - (Decrease) in other financial liabilities   (27.81)  (97.37)  (840.57) 
 - (Decrease)/Increase in employee benefit obligations  129.43   (250.18)  (71.57) 
 - (Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets  56.91   (30.13)  (8.32) 
 - Decrease in other non-current assets  31.41   35.79   38.60  
 - Decrease in other current assets  266.93   125.11   (191.87) 
 - (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables  (508.03)  2,445.05   1,640.91  

  568.64  1488.88 (248.02) 
Cash generated from operations  2,312.30  740.23 6,033.26 
Income taxes (paid)/refund received (net)  (38.78) (195.15) (1,104.33) 
 Net cash inflow from operating activities    2,273.52  545.08 4,928.93 

    
Cash flows from investing activities    
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment  (320.83)  (22.24) (548.90) 
Payments for purchase of intangible assets - - (39.39) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  7.95  5.98   19.86  
Proceeds from sale of investments  24,801.68  20,112.97   18,861.20  
Payments for purchase of investments   (26,133.80)  (18,718.68)  (21,400.00) 
Investment in bank deposits  (906.41)  (1,551.57)  5,909.55  
Interest received  790.05  557.06   418.75  
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities  (1,761.36) 383.52 3,221.07 
    
Cash flows from financing activities    
Repayment of borrowings    (7,378.54) 
Principal element of lease payments  (473.76)  (378.44)  (489.49) 
Interest and other finance costs paid  (263.83)  (322.16)  (1,002.49) 
Net cash outflow from financing activities  (737.59) (700.60) (8,870.52) 
    

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (225.43)  228.00  (720.52) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  989.37  761.37 1,481.89 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  763.94    989.37 761.37 
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Page Nos. 

1. Audited Financial Statements of the Company for Financial Year 2022 F 1 – F 62 
2. Audited Financial Statements of the Company for Financial Year 2021 F 63 – F 104 
3. Audited Financial Statements of the Company for Financial Year 2020 F 105 – F 160 
4. Limited Review Report for the period ended September 30, 2022  F 161 – F 165 
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 (a) 6,780.18 7,355.76
Right-of-use assets 3 (b) 2,180.84 2,132.40
Intangible assets 4 19,332.64 21,424.32
Financial assets

i. Investments 5 (a) (i) 4,098.93 -
ii.Other financial assets 5 (e) 1,285.60 1,135.94

Deferred tax assets (net) 1212 1,766.64 998.87
Other non-current assets 6 370.19 403.30
Non current tax assets (net) 7 (a) 665.73 448.09
Total non-current assets 36,480.75 33,898.68

Current assets
Financial assets

i. Investments 5 (a) (ii) 16,093.53 20,835.83
ii. Trade receivables 5 (b) 7,726.95 10,624.46
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 5 (c) 989.37 761.37
iv. Bank balances other than (iii) above 5 (d) 2,046.34 495.99
v. Other financial assets 5 (e) 211.41 185.48

Other current assets 8 2,118.86 1,975.13
Total current assets 29,186.46 34,878.26
Total assets 65,667.21 68,776.94

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 9 (a) 6,913.71 6,913.71
Other equity

Reserves and surplus 9 (b) 39,865.59 42,067.77
Other reserves 9 (c) 14,197.34 14,197.34

Total equity 60,976.64 63,178.82

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Lease liabilities 10(b) 1,845.57 1,828.82
Employee benefit obligations 1111 136.73 376.02
Total non-current liabilities 1,982.30 2,204.84

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i. Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

10 (a)
48.74 35.42

(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

10 (a)
1,166.89 2,043.02

ii. Lease liabilities 10(b) 497.38 383.64
iii. Other financial liabilities 10 (c) 209.99 258.46

Employee benefit obligations 1111 33.71 44.60
Other current liabilities 1313 751.56 628.14
Total current liabilities 2,708.27 3,393.28
Total liabilities 4,690.57 5,598.12
Total equity and liabilities 65,667.21 68,776.94

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Anurag Khandelwal
Partner
Membership Number: 078571

Ashit Kukian Prashant Domadia Chirag Bagadia
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 20, 2021 Dated: May 20, 2021

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET

Shailesh Gupta Apurva Purohit Anuj Puri Madhukar Kamath
Director Director Director Director
DIN: 00192466 DIN: 00190097 DIN: 00048386 DIN: 00230316
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended

March 31, 2021

Year ended

March 31, 2020

Revenue from operations 1414 12,759.48 24,782.14
Other income (net) 15 (a) 737.38 477.33
Other gains/(losses) - net 15 (b) 754.96 1,153.21
Total income 14,251.82 26,412.68

Expenses

License fees 1,860.97 1,967.99
Employee benefit expense 1616 4,740.57 5,538.74
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1717 3,323.07 3,478.41
Other expenses 1818 7,280.78 11,561.12
Finance costs 1919 322.16 974.67
Total expenses 17,527.55 23,520.93

Profit before tax (3,275.73) 2,891.75
Income tax expense

-Current tax - 616.64
-Deferred tax (856.81) (545.64)

Total tax expense (856.81) 71.00
Profit for the year (2,418.92) 2,820.75

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

-Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 305.78 36.94
Income tax relating to this item (89.04) (10.76)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 216.74 26.18
Total comprehensive income for the year (2,202.18) 2,846.93

Earnings per equity share for profit from operation

attributable to owners of Music Broadcast Limited:
Nominal value of shares (Rs. per share) 2.00 2.00
Basic earnings Rs. per share (0.70) 0.82
Diluted earnings Rs. per share (0.70) 0.82

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Anurag Khandelwal
Partner
Membership Number: 078571

Ashit Kukian Prashant Domadia Chirag Bagadia
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 20, 2021 Dated: May 20, 2021

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

2020

2727

Shailesh Gupta Apurva Purohit Anuj Puri Madhukar Kamath
Director Director Director Director
DIN: 00192466 DIN: 00190097 DIN: 00048386 DIN: 00230316
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MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Notes

A.A. Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax (3,275.73) 2,891.75

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1717 3,323.07 3,478.41
Finance costs 1919 322.16 974.67
Interest income 15 (a) (667.43) (427.72)
Interest on income tax expense/(refund) (22.49) 3.78
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 (b) (358.24) (72.61)
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 15 (a) (47.46) (49.61)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 15 (b) (1.49) (19.86)
Net gain on sale of investments 15 (b) (392.90) (1,055.31)
Lease liabilities no longer required written back (80.60) -
Loss allowance for doubtful debts and advances 1818 452.46 557.78

2,527.08 3,389.53

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (748.65) 6,281.28

Change in operating assets and liabilities :
- (Decrease)/Increase in trade payables 10(b) (862.81) (388.80)
- (Decrease)/Increase in other current liabilities 1313 123.42 (426.40)
- (Decrease) in other financial liabilities 10 (c) (97.37) (840.57)
- (Decrease)/Increase in employee benefit obligations 1111 (250.18) (71.57)
- (Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets (30.13) (8.32)
- Decrease in other non-current assets 35.79 38.60
- (Increase)/Decrease in other current assets 125.11 (191.87)
- (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 2,445.05 1,488.88 1,640.91 (248.02)
Cash generated from operations 740.23 6,033.26

Income taxes paid (net) (195.15) (1,104.33)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 545.08 4,928.93

B.B. Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment (22.24) (548.90)
Payments for purchase of intangible assets 4 - (39.39)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 5.98 19.86
Proceeds from sale of investments 20,112.97 18,861.20
Payments for purchase of investments (18,718.68) (21,400.00)
(Investment in)/proceeds from bank deposits (1,551.57) 5,909.55
Interest received 557.06 418.75
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 383.52 3,221.07

C.C. Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings - (7,378.54)
Principal element of lease payments (378.44) (489.49)
Interest and other finance costs paid (322.16) (1,002.49)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (700.60) (8,870.52)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 228.00 (720.52)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 761.37 1,481.89
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 989.37 761.37

Non-cash investing activities
- Acquisition of right-of-use assets 640.28 -

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Bank balances 5 (c)

- in current accounts 989.32 661.27
- in Fixed Deposits (Less than three months maturity) - 100.00

Cash on hand 5 (c) 0.05 0.10
989.37 761.37

Notes :
1. Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.
2. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 7 - ''Statement of Cash Flows".

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Anurag Khandelwal Shailesh Gupta Apurva Purohit Anuj Puri Madhukar Kamath

Partner Director Director Director Director

Membership Number: 078571 DIN: 00192466 DIN 00190097 DIN 00048386 DIN 00230316

Ashit Kukian Prashant Domadia Chirag Bagadia
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 20, 2021 Dated: May 20, 2021

Year ended March 31, 2021 Year ended March 31, 2020
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Note 3 (a) : Property, plant and equipment
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Freehold

land

Buildings Towers, antenna and

transmitters

Furniture and

fixtures

Studio

equipment

Vehicles Office

equipment

Computers Total

Year ended March 31, 2020
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 1.86 3,569.11 1,804.65 1,000.61 1,006.16 43.72 765.93 784.57 8,976.61
Additions - - 74.07 39.78 175.04 - 158.23 119.24 566.36
Disposals - - - 9.56 - 3.12 1.22 0.42 14.32
Closing gross carrying amount 1.86 3,569.11 1,878.72 1,030.83 1,181.20 40.60 922.94 903.39 9,528.65

Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation - 2.66 361.60 284.38 179.00 21.93 242.24 400.14 1,491.95
Depreciation charge during the year - 74.90 152.73 108.63 76.52 6.42 111.04 165.02 695.26
Disposals - - - 9.56 - 3.12 1.22 0.42 14.32
Closing accumulated depreciation - 77.56 514.33 383.45 255.52 25.23 352.06 564.74 2,172.89

Net carrying amount 1.86 3,491.55 1,364.39 647.38 925.68 15.37 570.88 338.65 7,355.76

Year ended March 31, 2021
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 1.86 3,569.11 1,878.72 1,030.83 1,181.20 40.60 922.94 903.39 9,528.65
Additions - - 31.87 - 3.18 - 30.22 3.19 68.46
Disposals - - - 6.49 - - 14.72 1.24 22.45
Closing gross carrying amount 1.86 3,569.11 1,910.59 1,024.34 1,184.38 40.60 938.44 905.34 9,574.66

Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation - 77.56 514.33 383.45 255.52 25.23 352.06 564.74 2,172.89
Depreciation charge during the year - 74.33 143.72 108.40 82.05 5.19 102.56 123.30 639.55
Disposals - - - 2.00 - - 14.72 1.24 17.96

Closing accumulated depreciation - 151.89 658.05 489.85 337.57 30.42 439.90 686.80 2,794.48

Net carrying amount 1.86 3,417.22 1,252.54 534.49 846.81 10.18 498.54 218.54 6,780.18

Note:
Contractual obligations - Refer note 26 (a) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Note 3 (b) : Right-of-use assets

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Opening balance 2,132.40 -
Reclassification on account of adoption of IND AS - 2,790.06
Additions during the year 640.28 -
Depreciation during the year (591.84) (657.66)
Closing balance 2,180.84 2,132.40

Note:
(i) The aggregate depreciation expense on right-of-use assets is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendments to Ind AS 116)
Effective April 1, 2020, Ind AS 116 was amended to provide a practical expedient for lessees accounting for rent concessions that arise as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
satisfy the following criteria:
(a) The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;
(b) The reduction in use lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before June 30, 2021; and
(c) There are no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.
Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be accounted for in accordance with the practical expedient, which means the lessee does not assess whether the rent concession meets the
definition of a lease modification. Lessee applies other requirements in Ind 116 in accounting for the concession.

The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient introduced by the amendments to Ind AS 116 to all rent concessions that satisfy the criteria. Substantially all of the rent concessions
entered into during the year satisfy the criteria to apply the practical expedient.

The application of the practical expedient has resulted in the reduction of total lease liabilities of Rs. 80.60 lakhs. The effect of this reduction has been recorded in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurred.

(iii) Extension and termination options are included inin a number ofof property leases across the Company. These are used toto maximise operational flexibility inin terms ofof managing the assets used inin
the Company's operations. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Company and not by the respective lessor.

(iv) InIn determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create anan economic incentive toto exercise anan extension option, oror not exercising a termination option.
Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated)

For leases of buildings, the following factors are normally the most relevant:

E�!1�?30=0�,=0�>429414.,9?�;09,7?40>�?: �?0=849,?0�	: =�9: ?�0C?09/
��?30�� : 8;,9D�4>�?D;4.,77D�=0,>: 9,-7D�.0=?,49�?: �0C?09/�	: =�9: ?�?0=849,?0
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Most extension options in building/ office leases have been included in the lease liability, because the Company could not replace the assets without significant cost or business disruption.

The assessment ofof reasonable certainty isis only revised ifif a significant event oror a significant change inin circumstances occurs, which affects this assessment, and that isis within the control ofof the
lessee.

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ii) The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended March 31, 2021 INR 596.59 (March 31, 2020 was INR 719.57).

Category of right-of-use assets
Building leases
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 5: Financial assets
5 (a) Investments As at As at
(i) Non-current Investments March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Quoted
Investment in bonds [refer note 5(a)(i)(A)] (at amortised cost) 4,098.93 -

Total (bonds) 4,098.93 -

Total non-current investments 4,098.93 -
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 4,131.69 -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - -
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments - -

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(ii) Current Investments

Quoted
Investment in mutual funds [refer note 5(a)(ii)(A)] 8,623.53 20,835.83
Unquoted
Investment in corporate fixed deposits [refer note 5(a)(ii)(B)] 7,470.00 -

Total (mutual funds and corporate deposits) 16,093.53 20,835.83

Total current investments 16,093.53 20,835.83
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 8,623.53 20,835.83
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 7,470.00 -
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments - -

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5(a)(i)(A) Details of investment in bonds As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars
8.70% Bank of Baroda Perpetual Bond (ISIN code INE028A08174) 1,032.35 -
8.50% State Bank of India Perpetual Bond (ISIN code INE062A08223) 1,038.58 -
8.15% Bank of Baroda Perpetual Bond (ISIN code INE028A08240) 1,005.90 -
7.73% State Bank of India Perpetual Bond (ISIN code INE062A08272) 1,022.10 -

Total 4,098.93 -

5(a)(ii)(A) Details of investment in mutual funds As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
38,86,298.62 (March 31, 2020: Nil) units in Axis Dynamic Bond Fund -Direct
Plan- Growth

964.25 -

Nil (March 31, 2020: 12,244,588.38) units in IDFC Ultra Short Duration Fund -
Direct Plan - Growth

- 1,396.67

Nil (March 31, 2020: 12,53,983.15) units in UTI FTIF - Series XXVII - VI -
Direct Plan - Growth

- 140.70

Nil (March 31, 2020: 66,711.08) units in DSP Ultra Short Fund -Direct Plan -
Growth

- 1,815.65

Nil (March 31, 2020: 129,324.45) units in Axis Banking and PSU Debt Fund -
Direct Plan - Growth

- 2,510.19

59,27,774.52 (March 31, 2020: 4,551,662.61) units in L&T Triple Ace Bond
Fund - Direct Plan- Growth

3,535.27 2,515.55

Nil (March 31, 2020: 125,314.36) units in Edelweiss Overnight Fund - Direct
Plan - Growth

- 1,296.82

44,54,687.99 (March 31, 2020: Nil) units in Edelweiss Arbitrage Fund - Direct
Plan - Growth

701.49 -

43,71,787.30 (March 31, 2020: Nil) units in Kotak Dynamic Bond - Direct Plan-
Growth

1,334.29 -

48,50,476.60 (March 31, 2020: Nil) units in Nippon India Short Term Fund -
Direct Plan - Growth

2,088.23 -

Nil (March 31, 2020: 303,912.83) units in Kotak Overnight Fund - Direct Plan -
Growth

- 3,239.29

Nil (March 31, 2020: 3,706,461.41) units in Nippon India Overnight Fund -
Direct Plan - Growth

- 3,972.84

Nil (March 31, 2020: 3,664,192.75) units in ICICI Overnight - Direct Plan -
Growth

- 3,948.12

8,623.53 20,835.83
5(a)(ii)(B) Details of investment in corporate fixed deposits

7.5% LIC Housing Finance Limited -1 year fixed deposits 1,990.00 -
7.0% LIC Housing Finance Limited -1 year fixed deposits 3,980.00 -
6.0% LIC Housing Finance Limited -1 year fixed deposits 1,500.00 -

7,470.00 -

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5 (b) Trade receivables As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trade receivables 9,868.43 12,413.21
Trade receivables from related parties (refer note 24) 157.47 57.74
Less: Loss allowance 2,298.95 1,846.49
Total trade receivables 7,726.95 10,624.46
Current portion 7,726.95 10,624.46

Non-current portion - -
As at As at

Break up of security details March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Trade receivables considered good - Secured - -
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 10,025.90 12,470.95
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade receivables - credit impaired - -
Total 10,025.90 12,470.95

Loss allowance (2,298.95) (1,846.49)

Total trade receivables 7,726.95 10,624.46

5 (c) Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balances with banks
- in current accounts 989.32 661.27
- in fixed deposits (maturity less than three months) - 100.00

Cash on hand 0.05 0.10
Total cash and cash equivalents 989.37 761.37

5 (d) Other bank balances
- in fixed deposits held as margin money [refer note below] 565.01 478.68
- in fixed deposits with original maturity for more than 3 month and less than 12 months 1,450.00 -
- interest accrued on fixed deposits 31.33 17.31

Total other bank balances 2,046.34 495.99

Note : These deposits are under lien against the guarantees & overdraft facilities issued by banks.

5 (e) Other financial assets

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Security deposits

-Secured, considered good - - - -
-Unsecured, considered good 115.06 1,041.19 185.48 906.77
-Doubtful 280.42 83.97 280.42 83.97

395.48 1,125.16 465.90 990.74
Less : Loss allowance 280.42 83.97 280.42 83.97

115.06 1,041.19 185.48 906.77
Others:

- in fixed deposit with bank held as margin money [refer note below] - 244.41 - 229.17
- interest accrued on investment in bonds 96.35 - - -

Total other financial assets 211.41 1,285.60 185.48 1,135.94

Note : These deposits are under lien against the guarantees issued by banks.

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
As atAs at
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 6: Other non-current assets As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Capital advances 7.54 4.86
Prepayments 362.65 398.44
Total other non-current assets 370.19 403.30

Note 7: Non-current tax assets/current tax liability (net) As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(a) Non-current tax assets (net)
Opening balance 448.09 169.84
Less: Current tax payable for the year (net of MAT credit utilised) - (616.00)
Add: Taxes paid (net of refund received INR 5.78
(March 31, 2020: Nil)

217.64 894.89

Less: Provision for earlier years - (0.64)
Total non-current tax assets 665.73 448.09

(b) Current tax liability (net)
Opening balance - 205.67
Current tax payable for the year (net of MAT credit utilised) - -
Less; Taxes paid during the year - (205.67)
Total current tax liability - -

Note 8: Other current assets As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Prepayments 808.53 786.29
Balances with statutory/government authorities 168.97 266.24
Advances to others
- Considered good 50.25 62.22
- Considered doubtful 26.67 26.67
Less: Loss allowance for advance to others 26.67 26.67
Advance with gratuity fund 308.14 45.98

Advance paid under protest (including INR 200
(March 31, 2020: INR 200) referred in note 25 (a))

490.70 490.70

Less: Loss allowance for advance paid under protest 290.70 290.70

Other receivables [including related party balances refer note 24 (h)] 582.97 614.40
Total other current assets 2,118.86 1,975.13

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 9: Equity share capital and other equity

As at As at
9(a) Equity share capital March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Authorised equity share capital
Particulars Number of shares Amount
As at April 1, 2019 335,000,000 6,700.00
Increase on account of issue of bonus shares [refer note (viii) below] 65,000,000 1,300.00
As at March 31, 2020 400,000,000 8,000.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 400,000,000 8,000.00

Authorised preference share capital
Particulars Number of shares Amount
As at April 1, 2019 50,000 5.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2020 50,000 5.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 50,000 5.00

(i) Issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital

Particulars
Number of shares

Equity share

capital

(par value)
As at April 1, 2019 276,548,500 5,530.97
Increase on account of issue of bonus shares [refer note (viii) below] 69,137,125 1,382.74
As at March 31, 2020 345,685,625 6,913.71
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 345,685,625 6,913.71

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

(ii) Shares of the Company held by holding company

Particulars As at

March 31, 2021

As at

March 31, 2020

Number of shares Number of shares
Jagran Prakashan Limited, the holding company 253,074,137 253,074,137

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars Number of shares % holding Number of shares % holding

Jagran Prakashan Limited, the holding company (face value
Rs. 2 per share (March 31, 2020: Rs. 2 per share))

253,074,137 73.21% 253,074,137 73.21%

Franklin Templeton Mutual Fund (face value Rs. 2 per share
(March 31, 2020: Rs. 2 per share))

24,421,468 7.06% 24,421,468 7.06%

Total 277,495,605 80.27% 277,495,605 80.27%

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

The Company has only one class ofof equity shares having a face value ofof Rs. 2 per share (March 31, 2020: Rs. 2 per share). Each shareholder isis
eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed, ifif any, byby the Board ofof Directors isis subject toto the approval ofof the shareholders inin the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

InIn the event ofof liquidation ofof the Company, the equity shareholders are eligible toto receive the remaining assets ofof the Company after distribution ofof all

preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

As at

March 31, 2021

As at

March 31, 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(iv) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash
(a) 3,125,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up were allotted as consideration on November 24, 2016 pursuant to the scheme of

(v) Preference share capital
The Company has only one class of preference shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share.

(vi) Sub-division of equity shares

(vii) Buy Back of equity shares

(viii) Issue of bonus shares

(ix) Proposed issue of non-convertible non-cumulative redeemable preference shares

+63�� =/@2�=4�� 7@31B=@A�/B�7BA�; 33B7<5 �63:2�=<�' 1B=03@�� � ��� � � � �/> > @=D32�/�* 163; 3�=4�� @@/<5 3; 3<B�	HB63�* 163; 3I
�C<23@�* 31B7=<�� � � �=4�B63�

Companies Act, 2013, for issuance of Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares ("NCRPS") to the non-promoter shareholders
=4�B63�� =; > /<G�0G�E/G�=4�0=<CA�=CB�=4�7BA�@3A3@D3A�7<�B63�@/B7=�=4�� �� � �7
3
�=<3�& � ) ( * �1/@@G7<5 �/�27D723<2�=4�� 
� �� �6/D7<5 �B63� /13�,/:C3�=4�Q�� � �

3/16�7AAC32�/B�/�> @3; 7C; �=4�Q�� � �4=@�3D3@G�B3<�3?C7BG�A6/@3A�63:2��B=�03�@3233; 32�=<�3F> 7@G�=4�� � �; =<B6A�/B�/�> @3; 7C; �=4�Q�� � �> 3@�& � ) ( * ��/A�> 3@�B63�

terms and conditions mentioned in the Scheme. The Scheme shall become effective upon obtaining requisite approvals from regulatory authorities and
National Company Law Tribunal.

arrangement with Shri Puran Multimedia Limited. These were converted into 15,625,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid-up.

(c) 69,137,125 equity shares of Rs. 2 each as fully paid up were issued to shareholders in March 2020 on account of issue of bonus shares.

The Board ofof Directors atat its meeting held onon January 27, 2020 recommended issue ofof one bonus share for every four equity shares held byby the equity
shareholders. The shareholders approved such issue ofof bonus shares onon March 03, 2020. Accordingly onon March 16, 2020 69,137,125 equity shares ofof
Rs. 2 each as fully paid up were allotted to the members.
Further, the Company has transferred a sum equal toto the nominal value ofof the shares soso issued, i.e., INR 1,382.74, from the securities premium and
capital redemption reserve amounting to INR 1,208.23 and INR 174.51 respectively.

The Board ofof Directors atat its meeting held onon December 31, 2018 approved the sub-division ofof equity shares ofof the Company from the face value ofof
Rs. 1010 per share toto face value ofof Rs. 2 per share, subject toto the approval ofof the shareholders ofof the Company. The shareholders approved such sub-
division ofof shares onon February 6,6, 2019. Accordingly, onon February 21, 2019, 221,238,800 equity shares ofof Rs. 2 each fully paid-up were allotted against
55,309,700 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up remaining outstanding after completion of buy back [refer note (vii) below].

The Board ofof Directors atat its meeting held onon July 24, 2018 approved the buyback ofof fully paid-up equity shares ofof the Company for anan aggregate
amount not exceeding INR 5,700, for a price not exceeding Rs. 385 per equity share, out ofof free reserves / securities premium account. The Company
completed the buyback ofof 1,745,079 equity shares atat anan average price ofof Rs. 326.61 per equity share inin December 2018 and, accordingly, utilised INR
5,699.63 (excluding transaction costs) towards the buyback of shares.
Further, the Company has transferred a sum equal toto the nominal value ofof the shares soso purchased, i.e., INR 174.51, from the general reserve toto the
capital redemption reserve account.

(b) 221,238,800 equity shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid up were allotted in February 2019 on account of sub-division of 55,309,700 equity shares of Rs.
10 each fully paid up.
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 9 (b) : Reserves and surplus As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Capital reserve 1,482.73 1,482.73
Securities premium 34,002.35 34,002.35
General reserve 4,908.50 4,908.50
Retained earnings (527.99) 1,674.19
Total reserves and surplus 39,865.59 42,067.77

(i) Capital reserve
Opening balance 1,482.73 1,482.73
Closing balance 1,482.73 1,482.73

(ii) Capital redemption reserve
Opening balance - 174.51
Utilised for issue of bonus shares - (174.51)
Closing balance - -

(iii) Securities premium
Opening balance 34,002.35 35,210.58
Utilised for issue of bonus shares - (1,208.23)
Closing balance 34,002.35 34,002.35

(iv) Debenture redemption reserve
Opening balance - 1,020.83
Appropriations during the year - 229.17
Transfer to general reserve - (1,250.00)
Closing balance - -

(v) General reserve
Opening balance 4,908.50 3,658.50
Transfer from debenture redemption reserve - 1,250.00
Closing balance 4,908.50 4,908.50

(vi) Retained earnings
Opening balance 1,674.19 (943.57)
Net profit for the year (2,418.92) 2,820.75
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings

-Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligation, net of tax 216.74 26.18
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve - (229.17)
Closing balance (527.99) 1,674.19

Nature and purpose of reserves

Capital reserve

Capital redemption reserves

Securities premium

Debenture redemption reserve

Note 9 (c): Other reserves As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Other reserves 14,197.34 14,197.34
Total other reserves 14,197.34 14,197.34

Nature and purpose of reserves
Reserve created on cessation of a loan in an earlier year.

The Company isis required toto create a debenture redemption reserve out ofof the profits. During the year ended March 31, 2020 the
Company transferred the balance from debenture redemption reserve toto general reserve onon account ofof repayment ofof non-
convertible debentures.

The profits earned byby the Company through a special transaction, which isis not available for distribution asas dividend toto
shareholders. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Securities premium isis used toto record the premium received onon issue ofof shares. The same isis utilised inin accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

A sum equal toto the nominal value ofof the shares purchased transferred toto the capital redemption reserve inin accordance with the
provisions ofof Section 6969 ofof the Act [refer note 9(a)(vii)]. The capital redemption reserve isis utilised byby the Company inin accordance
with the provisions of the Act.
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 10: Financial liabilities

Note 10 (a): Trade payables As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 28)
48.74 35.42

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small

enterprises
1,165.66 2,020.42

Trade payables to related parties [refer note 24(h)] 1.23 22.60
Total trade payables 1,215.63 2,078.44

Note 10 (b): Lease liabilities

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Lease liabilities 497.38 1,845.57 383.64 1,828.82

497.38 1,845.57 383.64 1,828.82

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021 :

Particulars
As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening balance 2,212.46 -
Additions during the year 589.53 2,701.95
Finance cost accrued during the year 218.15 230.08
Payment of lease liabilities (including interest) (596.59) (719.57)
Lease liability concessions (80.60) -
Closing balance 2,342.95 2,212.46

Note 10 (c): Other financial liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current
Capital creditors 88.84 39.94
Employee benefits payable 121.15 218.52
Total other current financial liabilities 209.99 258.46

Note 10 (d): Net debt reconcilation

Total

Particulars Current

investments

Cash and cash

equivalents

Fixed deposits

with banks

Lease

obligation

Non -current

borrowings

Others

Net surplus/(debt) as at April 1, 2019 17,030.46 1,481.89 5,000.00 - (7,410.14) - 16,102.21
Recognised on adoption of Ind AS 116 [refer note 10] - - - (2,701.95) - - (2,701.95)
Cash flows 3,805.37 (720.52) (5,000.00) 489.49 7,378.54 - 5,952.88
Interest expense - - - (230.08) (663.43) - (893.51)
Interest paid - - - 230.08 695.03 - 925.11

Net surplus/(debt) as at March 31, 2020 20,835.83 761.37 - (2,212.46) - - 19,384.74
Recognised on adoption of Ind AS 116 [refer note 10] (589.53) - - (589.53)
Cash flows (4,742.30) 228.00 1,450.00 378.44 - - (2,685.86)

Lease liability concessions - - - 80.60 - - 80.60
Interest expense - - - (218.15) - (32.06) (250.21)
Interest paid - - - 218.15 - 32.06 250.21

Net surplus/(debt) as at March 31, 2021 16,093.53 989.37 1,450.00 (2,342.95) - - 16,189.95

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at As at

Other assets Liabilities from

financing activities

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 12: Deferred tax assets (net)

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Deferred tax liabilities (DTL)
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 3,589.54 3,371.63
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 200.12 -
Employee benefit obligations 46.84 -

Total 3,836.50 3,371.63
Deferred tax assets (DTA)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 8.39
Unused tax credits (MAT credit) 3,559.05 3,549.69
Loss allowance on financial assets 738.32 631.99
Employee benefit obligations - 105.86
Right-of-use assets 40.80 20.15
Tax losses 1,106.01 -
Others 158.96 54.42

Total 5,603.14 4,370.50

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 1,766.64 998.87

Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities

Property, plant and

equipment and

intangible assets

Loss allowance

on financial

assets

Tax losses Unused tax

credits

(MAT credit)

Other items Total

At April 1, 2019 [DTA/(DTL)] (4,127.51) 657.36 - 3,810.08 124.07 464.00
(Charged)/credited -

- to profit or loss 755.88 (25.37) - (260.39) 75.51 545.63
- to other comprehensive income - - - - (10.76) (10.76)

At March 31, 2020 (3,371.63) 631.99 - 3,549.69 188.82 998.87
(Charged)/credited

- to profit or loss (217.91) 106.33 1,106.01 9.36 (146.98) 856.81
- to other comprehensive income - - - - (89.04) (89.04)
- transfer from other reserve to retained earnings
- directed to equity

At March 31, 2021 (3,589.54) 738.32 1,106.01 3,559.05 (47.20) 1,766.64

Note 13: Other current liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Advance from customers 8.74 19.61
Statutory dues payable 242.92 240.12
Refund liabilities [refer note below] 34.04 35.82
Other liabilities [including related party balances refer note 24 (h)] 465.86 332.59
Total other current liabilities 751.56 628.14

Note: Refund liabilities are recognised for volume discounts payable to customers

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

The Finance Act, 2019 reduced the 8VTWHU`cZ applicable tax rate from 30% toto 25% plus applicable surcharge and cess %aBLK\JLK BH[Lb&) Additionally, the newly inserted
Section 115BAA byby the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019 effective from April 1,1, 2019, provided anan option toto pay taxes atat 22% plus applicable surcharge and cess %a?L^

& ,?0F
��>@-50.?�?: �.: 8;7D492�B4?3�.0=?,49�.: 9/4?4: 9>


Based onon the assessment ofof future taxable profits, the Company has decided toto continue with the Reduced Rate until the Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit asset balance isis
utilised and opt for the New Rate thereafter.

Accordingly, basis the THUHNLTLU[cZ assessment ofof future taxable profits, the Company has remeasured its deferred tax balance asas onon March 31, 2021, which resulted inin
increase in deferred tax liability by Rs. 123.08 for the year ended March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020: decrease in deferred tax liability by Rs. 750.57).
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 14: Revenue from operations Notes Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from contract with customers
Sale of services
Advertisement income 12,759.48 24,782.14
Total revenue from operations 12,759.48 24,782.14
*Including revenue from exchange of services of INR 1,432.35 (March 31, 2020: INR 3,157.11)

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Performance obligation satisfied at a point in time
Advertisement income 12,759.48 24,782.14
Total revenue from operations 12,759.48 24,782.14

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Advertisement income
Revenue as per contract price 12,939.38 25,672.50
Less: Rebates and discounts (179.90) (890.36)
Total revenue from operations 12,759.48 24,782.14

Note 15 (a): Other income Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest on fixed deposits and bonds 5 (d) 667.43 427.72
Interest on income tax refund 22.49 -

Unwinding of discount on security deposits 5 (e) 47.46 49.61

Total other income 737.38 477.33

Note 15 (b): Other gains/(losses) Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Net fair value gains on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair
value through profit or loss

358.24 72.61

Net gain on sale of investments 392.90 1,055.31
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 (a) 1.49 19.86
Miscellaneous income 2.33 5.43
Total other gains/(losses) 754.96 1,153.21

Note 16: Employee benefit expense Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Salaries, wages and bonus 4,626.45 5,085.80
Contribution to provident and other funds 223.54 255.24
Gratuity 1111 88.45 105.87
Leave compensation (228.09) 40.59
Staff welfare expenses 30.22 51.24
Total employee benefits expense 4,740.57 5,538.74

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 (a)

(ii) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price on account of adjustments
made to the contract price is as follows:

(i) The Company derives its revenue from contracts with customers for transfer ofof services atat a point inin time. The Company isis
engaged inin the business ofof radio broadcasting and other related activities through its radio channels operating under brand
name 'Radio City' in India.
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 17: Depreciation and amortisation expense Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3 (a) 639.55 695.26
Depreciation on right of use assets 3 (b) 591.84 657.66
Amortisation of intangible assets 4 2,091.68 2,125.49
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 3,323.07 3,478.41

Note 18: Other expenses Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Repairs and maintenance:
Buildings 31.88 27.44
Plant and machinery 176.06 168.66

Office maintenance charges 462.79 518.16
Power and fuel expenses 783.21 945.17
Rates and taxes 35.90 56.56
Travelling and conveyance 71.55 157.60
Telephone and communication charges 113.98 123.84
Marketing and advertisement expenses 1,545.18 4,154.35
Insurance 32.94 32.48
Corporate social responsibility expenditure [refer note (b) below] 136.00 -
Loss allowance for doubtful debts and advances 452.46 277.36
Loss allowance for doubtful deposits - 280.42
Payments to auditors [refer note (a) below] 46.31 63.13
Royalty 243.80 687.63
Programming costs 1,055.03 1,413.43
Rent [refer note 3(b)] (45.80) -
Common transmission infrastructure usage charges 956.53 941.97
Annual software license maintenance fee 363.17 378.05
Legal and professional fees 228.17 434.10
Professional fees to director - 21.85
Commission on sales 172.23 224.78
Procurement of air time 144.75 341.23
Miscellaneous expenses 274.64 312.91
Total other expenses 7,280.78 11,561.12

Note
(a) Details of payments to auditors (excluding tax)

Payments to auditors
As auditor:

Audit fees 43.00 44.00

In other capacities
Certification fees (including other services) 3.00 10.50
Reimbursement of expenses 0.31 8.63

Total payments to auditors 46.31 63.13

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

InIn addition toto the above, during the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company paid anan amount ofof INR 8.00 toto the
auditors for issuing certificates relating to the proposed issue of NCRPS, which is included under other current assets.
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Corporate social responsibility expenditure

136.00 -

Total 136.00 -

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 136.00 -
Amount spent during the year on

(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset - -

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 136.00 -

Note 19: Finance costs Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss

32.06 663.43

Interest expense on lease liabilities 218.15 230.08
Other borrowing costs 71.95 81.16
Total finance costs 322.16 974.67

Note 20: Income tax expense Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(a) Income tax expense
Current tax
Current year tax on profits - 616.00
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods - 0.64
Total current tax expense - 616.64

Deferred tax
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets (1,212.34) 307.35
(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities 364.89 (961.16)
Adjustments for deferred tax of prior periods (9.36) 108.17
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) (856.81) (545.64)
Income tax expense (856.81) 71.00

	.
�( 1/98/565-=598�92�=-?�1?: 18<1�-80�=41�-//9> 8=583�: ;925=�7 > 6=5: 6510�.@�"805-B<�=-?�;-=1��

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Profit before income tax expense (3,275.73) 2,891.75
Tax rate 29.12% 29.12%
* -?�-=�=41�"805-8�=-?�;-=1�92�� � 
� � � �	$-;/4�� � ��� � � � �A�� � 
� � � 
 (953.89) 842.08

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in
calculating taxable income
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 39.60 -
Re-measurement of net deferred tax asset /(liability) on account of
changes in tax rate [refer note 12]

123.08 (751.00)

Other items (20.20) 25.32

Expenses allowed under tax but not debited to statement of profit
and loss

(45.40) (45.40)

Income tax expense (856.81) 71.00

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Promotion ofof Education and Livelihood Skills toto Visually Impaired and
Orphan Students with better infrastructure facilities along with support toto
Cancer Patients and neglected senior citizens
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Note 22: Financial risk management (All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Risk

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

& .?82A�?6@ 8�H�3<?264;�

exchange risk

(A) Credit risk

The credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows, mutual fund investments carried atat fair value through profit oror loss, bonds and corporate
deposits carried at amortised cost and deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to customers including outstanding receivables.

The Company considers factors such asas track record, size ofof the institution, market reputation and service standards toto select the banks with which balances are maintained.
The Company does not maintain significant cash and deposit balances other than those required for its day to day operations.

The Company extends credit toto customers inin normal course ofof business. The Company considers factors such asas credit track record inin the market and past dealings with the
Company for extension of credit to customers. The Company monitors the payment track record of the customers.

The Company's investments inin mutual funds, bonds and corporate deposits are considered toto bebe low risk investments. The credit rating ofof the investments are monitored for
credit deterioration.

The Company considers the probability ofof default upon initial recognition ofof asset and whether there has been a significant increase inin credit risk onon anan ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. ToTo assess whether there isis a significant increase inin credit risk, the Company compares the risk ofof a default occurring onon the asset asas atat the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonably available current and forwarding-looking information.

A default onon a financial asset isis when the counterparty fails toto make contractual payments when they fall due oror when the extended credit period expires. This definition ofof
default is determined by considering the business environment in which the Company operates and other macro-economic factors.

The Company provides for expected credit loss when there isis nono reasonable expectation ofof recovery, such asas a debtor declaring bankruptcy oror failing toto engage inin a
repayment plan with the Company. Where receivables have been impaired, the Company continues toto engage inin enforcement activity toto attempt toto recover the receivable
due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

� 99�<3�A52�2;A6AFI@ �12/A�6;C2@ A: 2;A@ �.A�.: <?A6@ 21�0<@ A�.?2�0<;@ 612?21�A<�5.C2�9<D�0?216A�?6@ 8
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strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.

Cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, financial assets measured at
amortised cost and fair value through
profit or loss

Ageing analysis
Credit ratings

Diversification of bank deposits,
credit limits and periodic
monitoring of market/fair value
of mutual fund investments,
corporate deposits and bonds.

Borrowings and other liabilities Cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit
lines and borrowing facilities

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The ;XVYJWbe\ activities expose itit toto a variety ofof financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
;XVYJWbe\ overall risk management programme focuses onon the unpredictability ofof financial markets and seeks toto minimise potential adverse
23320A@ �<;�A52�� <: =.;FI@ �36;.;06.9�=2?3<?: .;02�

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the board of directors which provide principles for overall risk management.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Future commercial transactions,
recognised financial assets and liabilities
not denominated in Indian rupee (INR)

Cash flow forecasting
Sensitivity analysis

By minimising the exposure in
foreign currency
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(i) Reconciliation of loss allowance - Deposits

#&(+'*

Loss allowance on April 1, 2019

Changes in loss allowances

Loss allowance on March 31, 2020

Changes in loss allowances -

Loss allowance on March 31, 2021

�22	�& .,87,252*=287�8/�58< < �*558@*7,.�C�( ;*-.�;.,.2?*+5.<

Loss allowance on April 1, 2019 1,569.13

Changes in loss allowance 277.36

Loss allowance on March 31, 2020 1,846.49

Changes in loss allowance 452.46

Loss allowance on March 31, 2021 2,298.95

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

The Company is also exposed to credit risk in relation to mutual fund investments that are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Significant estimates and judgements

Impairment of financial assets

(B) Liquidity risk

(i) Financing arrangements

The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

As at

March 31, 2021

As at

March 31, 2020

Floating rate

- Fund based 10,100.00 9,000.00

- Non fund based 234.00 -

Expiring beyond one year - -

10,334.00 9,000.00

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

Less than 1 year Between 1 and 2

years

Between 2 and

5 years
Above 5 years

Total

March 31, 2021

Non-derivatives

Trade payables 1,215.63 - - - 1,215.63

Other financial liabilities 209.99 - - - 209.99

Lease liabilities 689.25 712.77 1,311.70 138.01 2,851.73

Total non-derivative liabilities 2,114.87 712.77 1,311.70 138.01 4,277.35

Less than 1 year Between 1 and 2

years

Between 2 and

5 years
Above 5 years

Total

March 31, 2020

Non-derivatives

Trade payables 2,078.44 - - - 2,078.44

Other financial liabilities 258.46 - - - 258.46

Lease liabilities 571.55 535.43 1,436.53 253.17 2,796.68

Total non-derivative liabilities 2,908.45 535.43 1,436.53 253.17 5,133.58

Expiring within one year (bank overdraft and
other facilities)

The cash credit / overdraft facilities and bank guarantee may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.

The tables below analyse the ;XVYJWbe\ financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based onon their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities.
There are no derivative financial instruments in respect of reporting periods disclosed under these financial statements.

The amounts disclosed inin the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 1212 months equal their carrying balances asas the impact ofof discounting isis
not significant.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

The loss allowance for financial assets disclosed above are based onon assumptions about risk ofof default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement inin making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs toto the impairment calculation, based onon the Company's past history, existing market conditions asas well asas forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

The Company relies onon a mix ofof excess operating cash flows, investments inin marketable securities, borrowings and capital infusion toto meet its needs for funds. The current
committed lines ofof credit are sufficient toto meet its short toto medium term expansion needs. The Company monitors rolling forecasts ofof the liquidity position, cash and cash
equivalents onon the basis ofof expected cash flows toto ensure itit has sufficient cash toto meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom onon its undrawn committed
borrowing facilities at all times.

364.39

364.39

-

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

364.39

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(C) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

(a) Foreign currency risk exposure:

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, is as follows

As at

March 31, 2021

As at

March 31, 2020
April 1, 2015

3.87 5.95 10.13

3.87 5.95 10.13

(b) Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

0.08 0.12

(0.08) (0.12)

*Holding all other variables constant

Particulars Impact on profit after tax

INR/USD Increase by 2% (March 31, 2020 - 2%)*

INR/USD Decrease by 2% (March 31, 2020 - 2%)*

The Company isis exposed toto foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect toto the USD. Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated inin a currency that isis not the ;XVYJWbe\ functional currency (INR). The risk isis measured through a
forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows.

Financial assets:

Trade receivables

Net exposure to foreign currency risk

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars
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Note 23: Capital management (All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Risk management

The net debt to equity position at the reporting date is as follows:

As at As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2015
Net debt including lease liabilities 1,353.58 1,451.09
Total equity 60,976.64 63,178.82
Net debt to equity ratio 0.02 0.02

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's objective when managing capital are toto safeguard the 5JHK<ISTN ability toto continue asas a going
concern soso that they can continue toto provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain
anan optimal capital structure toto reduce the cost ofof capital. InIn order toto maintain oror adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Consistent with the industry standards the Company monitors capital onon the basis ofof debt toto equity ratio where net debt
comprises total borrowings and lease liabilities net ofof cash and cash equivalents and equity comprises ofof equity share
capital, reserves and surplus and other reserves.

Particulars
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 25: Contingent liabilities

Note 26: Capital and other commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

As at

March 31, 2021

As at

March 31, 2020

16.18 23.51
Total 16.18 23.51

Note 27: Earnings per share

Particulars Year ended

March 31, 2021

Year ended

March 31, 2020
a Basic earnings Rs. per share

(0.70) 0.82

b Diluted earnings Rs. per share
(0.70) 0.82

c

Basic earnings Rs. per share

(2,418.92) 2,820.75

Diluted earnings Rs. per share:

(2,418.92) 2,820.75

d

345,685,625 345,685,625

Note:

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

Property, plant and equipment

Particulars

a)a) Claim against the Company not acknowledged asas debt: The Company has received certain claims towards royalty for use ofof sound recordings over
its radio stations amounting toto INR 429.17 (March 31, 2020: INR 429.17). Out ofof the above, the Company has paid INR 200 (March 31, 2020: INR 200)
under protest (refer note 8)8) and issued bank guarantee for remaining amount. Based onon the external legal counsel advice, the Company believes that
more likely than not, no outflow of resources will be required.
b) Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt: In respect of defamation cases, it is either not quantifiable or cannot be reliably estimated.
Hence the same has not been disclosed.

Basic earnings Rs.per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company
[refer note below]

Diluted earnings Rs.per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company
[refer note below]

Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings Rs. per share

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating basic
earnings Rs. per share

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating diluted
earnings Rs. per share

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator

The per share calculations for all periods presented reflect changes in the number of shares retrospectively on account of issue of bonus shares [refer
note 9(a)(viii)].

c) The amount of provident fund payable, if any, in relation to certain allowances cannot be estimated reliably, though not likely to be significant. Hence,
this amount has not been disclosed.

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating
basic/diluted earnings Rs. per share [refer note below]

F 102



MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 28: Dues to micro and small enterprises
Disclosures pursuant to The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act') are as follows :-

1
48.74 35.42

2
- -

3
- -

4
- -

5
- -

6

7 - -

8

- -

Note 29 Utilisation of Initial Public Offering ('IPO') Proceeds

Year ended

March 31, 2021

Year ended

March 31, 2020
Issue proceeds - 40,000.00
Less: Transaction costs arising on share issue - 1,773.41

- 38,226.59

- 38,226.59

- -

Sr.

No.

Particulars As at

March 31, 2021

As at

March 31, 2020

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining
unpaid as at year end.

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at
year end.

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year.

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of the MSMED Act, to suppliers registered
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year.

Interest paid, under Section16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year.

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making (which have been
paid but beyond the appointment day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under MSMED Act.

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise,
for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the
MSMED Act.

Net proceeds from IPO

Less: Amount utilised as per the objects of the issue as per
prospectus
Total
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MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 30 Segment information

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Anurag Khandelwal
Partner
Membership Number: 078571

Ashit Kukian Prashant Domadia Chirag Bagadia
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram Place: Mumbai
Date: May 20, 2021 Date: May 20, 2021

DIN: 00192466 DIN 00190097 DIN 00048386 DIN 00230316

The Company is engaged primarily in the business of operating private FM radio stations in India, which constitutes single reportable segment.
Revenues of approximately Nil (March 31, 2020: INR 1,556.56) are derived from a single external customer.

Shailesh Gupta Apurva Purohit Anuj Puri Madhukar Kamath
Director Director Director Director
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FINANCIAL INDEBTEDNESS 
 
Details of the outstanding borrowings of our Company as on September 30, 2022: 
 

S. No. Nature of Borrowing Amount (in ₹ lakh) Percentage 
1. Secured Borrowings Nil Nil 
2. Unsecured Borrowings Nil Nil 
 Total Nil Nil 

 
Standalone Amount (in ₹ lakh) 
Debt Securities Nil 
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) Nil 
Total Nil 

 
Set forth below, is a brief summary of the borrowings by our Company as on September 30, 2022, together with a brief 
description of certain significant terms of such financing arrangements.  
 
Secured Loan Facilities 
 
Our Company’s secured borrowings as on September 30, 2022 is NIL.  
 
The details of the secured borrowings are set out below:  
 
Term Loans- Nil 
 
Security for the above term loans/ facilities: Nil 
 
Working Capital Demand Loans and Cash Credit facilities from Banks:  
The total sanctioned amount of working capital demand loans and cash credit facility and overdraft availed from banks 
as on September 30, 2022 is ₹ 1,100 Lakhs. However, the same has not been utilized. The details of the working capital 
demand loans and cash credit facilities are set out below: 
 

Sr. 
No
. 

Lender 
Name Facility 

Date of 
Disburseme
nt 

Sanctione
d 
Amount 
(₹ in 
lakh) 

Amount 
Outstandi
ng (As per 
Ind-AS) (₹ 
in lakh)  

Principal 
Amount 
Outstandi
ng (₹ in 
lakh) 

Maturit
y Date 

Repayme
nt 
Schedule 

1 HDFC 
Bank 

OD against 
FD N.A. 1,000 NIL NIL N.A. On 

Demand 

2 Axis Bank OD against 
FD N.A. 100 NIL NIL N.A. On 

Demand 
 
Security for the above working capital demand loans and cash credit facilities 
 
Overdraft facilities are secured against Fixed Deposit from banks. 
 
Details of rest of the secured borrowings (if any, including but not limited to, hybrid debt like FCCB, Optionally 
Convertible Debentures/Preference Shares) as on September 30, 2022: 
 
Nil 
 
External Commercial Borrowings of the Company:  
 
Nil  
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Other Secured Borrowings  
 
Nil 
 
Details of Unsecured Loan Facilities: 
 
Term Loans: 
 
Our Company has not availed any Term Loans from Financial Institutions as on September 30, 2022 
 
Commercial Papers: 
 
Our Company has not issued any Commercial Papers. 
  
Loan from Directors and Relatives of Directors  
 
Our Company has not taken any loan from Directors or relative of Directors.  
 
Inter-Corporate Deposits  
 
As on September 30, 2022, our Company has not borrowed any amount by way of inter-corporate deposits. 
 
Inter Corporate Loans  
 
As on September 30, 2022, our Company has not borrowed any amount in the nature of demand loans from companies 
under same management.  
 
Servicing behavior on existing debt securities, payment of interest on due dates on financing facilities or securities  
 
Our Company has not defaulted upon or delayed in payment of any interest and/or principal in the past. The Company 
has not issued any corporate guarantee.  
 
Restrictive Covenants under our Financing Arrangements:  
 
We have not availed any financial arrangements, therefore, our Company is not required to take the prior approval of the 
lenders before carrying out such activities.  
 
Events of Default under our Financing Arrangements:  
 
Since, we have not availed any financing arrangements, the events of default are not applicable on Our Company.  
  



52  

OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS  
 
Our Company, Directors, Promoter and Group Companies are subjected to various legal proceedings from time to time, 
mostly arising in the ordinary course of its business. The legal proceedings are initiated by us and also by customers and 
other parties. These legal proceedings are primarily in the nature of (a) civil suits (b) criminal complaints (c) business 
operations related litigations. We believe that the number of proceedings in which we are involved in is not unusual for 
a company of our size in the context of doing business in India. Except as disclosed below, there is no outstanding 
litigation including, suits, criminal or civil prosecutions and taxation related proceedings against our Company, Directors, 
Promoters and Group Companies that would have a material adverse effect on our operations or financial position. 
 
For the purposes of above, our Bonus Committee has considered and adopted a policy of materiality for identification of 
material litigations (“Material Threshold”), for the purpose of the present issue of NCRPS. In terms of materiality 
policy, any outstanding litigation: 
 
a. involving the Company, in which the aggregate monetary claim by or against our Company exceeds one percent of 

the net worth for as per the recent audited financial statements of the Company for Fiscal year ended March 31, 2022 
has been considered material. The total Networth of the Company for Fiscal year ended March 31, 2022 is ₹ 603.59 
crore. Accordingly, all litigation involving monetary amount of claim exceeding ₹ 6 crore has been considered as 
material; 

b. involving the Directors of the Company whose outcome may have a bearing on the business, operations or reputation 
of the Company, has been considered as material; and 

c. involving the Promoter, in which the aggregate monetary amount of claim by or against the Promoter exceeds an 
amount equivalent to one percent of the consolidated net worth as per the recent audited financial statements of the 
Promoter Company for Fiscal year ended March 31, 2022 has been considered as material. The consolidated 
Networth of the Promoter Company for Fiscal year ended March 31, 2022 is Rs. 2137.42 crore. Accordingly, all 
litigation involving monetary amount of claim exceeding ₹ 21 crore has been considered as material; 

d. all criminal proceedings whether complaints, first information reports, bail applications or otherwise wherein our 
Company, Directors, Promoter and Group Company is a party;  

e. in relation to the Group Companies, for the purpose of disclosures in this Information Memorandum, all pending 
proceedings whether civil, arbitral, or otherwise, of claim exceeding ₹ 6 crore have been identified as material. 
 

Save as disclosed below, there are no:  
 
➢ outstanding civil or tax proceedings involving our Company, Directors and Promoter in which the pecuniary amount 

involved is in excess of the Materiality Threshold.  
➢ outstanding actions initiated or show-cause notices issued by regulatory authorities such as SEBI or RBI or the Stock 

Exchanges or MCA, Registrar of Companies or any other such similar authorities, involving our Company, 
Directors, Promoters and Group Companies.  

➢ outstanding criminal proceedings filed by or against our Company, Directors, Promoter and Group Companies.  
➢ defaults in or non-payment of any statutory dues by our Company.  
➢ litigations or legal actions pending or taken against our Promoter by a Government department or a statutory body 

during the last three years immediately preceding the year of this Information Memorandum.  
➢ inquiries, inspections or investigations initiated or conducted under the Securities laws or Companies Act or any 

previous companies’ law in the last three years immediately preceding the year of issue of this Information 
Memorandum against our Company and if there were any prosecutions filed (whether pending or not); fines imposed 
or compounding of offences done in the last three years immediately preceding the year of this Information 
Memorandum for the Company.  

➢ outstanding litigation involving our Company, Directors, Promoter, or any other person, whose outcome could have 
material adverse effect on the position of our Company, or which may affect the Issue or an investor’s decision to 
invest in the Issue.  

➢ pending proceedings initiated against our Company for economic offences.  
➢ material frauds committed against our Company in the last three years preceding the date of this Information 

Memorandum and actions taken by our Company in this regard. 
 
There are no pending material litigations, involving our Company, our Promoter and Director, except the following: 
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I. Litigations Involving our Company  
 
➢ Litigations against our Company 

 
A. Criminal Proceedings 

 
NIL  
 

B. Material Civil Proceedings 
 
Other than disclosed below there are no material civil proceedings against our Company. 
 

1. Rajdeep Sardesai and TV Today Network Limited (together, the “Plaintiffs”) have filed a suit before the 
Bombay High Court against our Company and two of our radio jockeys, alleging defamation. It is alleged that, 
in a radio show anchored by two of our Company’s radio jockeys, who are respondents in the suit, certain 
comments were made in respect of Rajdeep Sardesai and Lalit Modi, who is presently in exile, amounting to 
defamation (the “Comments”). The Plaintiffs have sought for directions, inter alia, to restrain our Company 
and radio jockeys from re-broadcasting the Comments and broadcasting any content that is defamatory to 
Rajdeep Sardesai. The Plaintiffs have also sought for a direction for a public apology and claimed damages 
amounting to ₹ 100 crore. The matter is pending.  
 

2. The Indian Performing Right Society Limited (“IRPS”) has instituted commercial intellectual property suit 
against our Company before Bombay High Court. IPRS has alleged that it is the only legal entity authorised to 
collect and distribute the right to royalty on behalf of authors of literary and musical works incorporated in 
cinematography films and sound recording. Therefore, IPRS has claimed that our Company is under obligation 
to make payment of royalty towards utilisation of the underlying works incorporated in sound recording and has 
sought interim order seeking deposit of the royalties as per the prevailing published tariff computed by IPRS 
amounting to ₹ 38.89 crore from November 28, 2017 to December 31, 2021 and permanent injunction 
restraining (preventing) our Company from using the IPRS repertoire of literary and musical works included in 
form of sound recording. Further damages/compensation amounting to ₹ 5 crore has also been sought 
additionally. The Company has filed its affidavit of reply as per the direction of the court and IPRS has filed it's 
rejoinder statement. Association of Radio Operators for India (AROI) has filed it's intervention application 
before the Bombay High Court. Our Company has filed it's written statement in the matter and the matter is 
pending for arguments. 
 

3. Maharashtra Theatre Private Limited (“Applicant”) has filed case inter alia, against Collector, Mumbai 
Suburban District, (“Collector”), VRSM Enterprises LLP, Bank of Baroda (formerly Dena Bank), Indian Bank 
(formerly Allahabad Bank) and our Company and Midday Infomedia Limited (collectively “Defendants”). The 
Collector vide its order dated July 13, 2022 has asked the Applicant to deposit the amount of ₹ 2.15 crore for 
construction extension to the Government, license fee amount of ₹ 7.10 crore for the period from January 01, 
2007 to July 06, 2022 and deposit of 50% unearned amount of ₹ 58.11 crore for the area transferred by bank 
auction on the Government land.  The Applicant has challenged the order of the Collector before the Additional 
Commissioner, Kokan Division, Mumbai (“Additional Commissioner”), by filing application for setting aside 
and quashing the order dated July 13, 2022 passed by the Collector. Additionally, the Company, VRSM 
Enterprises LLP and Midday Infomedia Limited (“Jagran Entities”) have filed an appeal against Collector 
order dated July 13, 2022 to protect their occupation of premises under the Government land, as they have 
purchased the said premises through bank's e-auction notice and are bonafide purchaser of the premises. During 
the pendency of the appeal filed by Jagran Entities, the Additional Commissioner vide its order dated January 
17, 2023 has partially allowed the appeal filed by Applicant and has directed the Appellant to deposit ₹ 2.15 
crore with the Government. Further, Collector has been directed for re-trial on liability to pay licence amount 
of ₹ 7.10 crore and to take action to recover unearned amount of ₹ 58.11 crore from Defendants. The Company 
is in process of filing revision application against order of the Additional Commissioner. The matter is currently 
pending. 
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4.  MRT Music has filed a suit before city civil court at Bangalore against our Company and its directors namely, 
Ms. Anita Nayyar, Mr. Shailesh Gupta, and key managerial personnel of our Company Mr. Ashit Kukian and 
an ex-employee Mr. Chirag Bagadia, seeking an injunction restraining the Company from broadcasting the 
repertoire of MRT Music. On December 24, 2020, the court has granted an ex-parte ad-interim injunction in 
favor of MRT Music, further the court also instructed ceasing and desisting from un-authorized use of the 
copyrighted work owned by MRT. The Company has filed its written submission in the matter. The matter was 
schedule for hearing on several dates.  The court vide its order dated October 22, 2021 has allowed an interim 
application and the stay order against the Company now stands vacated. Thus, the Company have commenced 
exploitation of the repertoire of MRT Music. The original suit is still pending before the court. The Company 
has earlier also made an Interim Application (IA) for deleting the name of all respondents, however, IA was 
dismissed by the court vide its order dated December 12, 2022 and thus the matter is now listed for framing of 
issues.  

C. Material Tax proceedings  
 
Indirect tax proceedings (consolidated) 

 NIL 
 
Direct tax proceedings (consolidated) 

Sr. 
No. Type of Direct Tax No. of Cases Amount in demanded (in ₹ crore) 

1. Income tax 8 6.060 
Total 8 6.060 

 
D. Regulatory and Statutory proceedings  

NIL   
 

E. Details of any inquiries, inspections or investigations initiated or conducted under the securities laws or 
Companies Act or any previous companies law in the last three years immediately preceding the year of 
issue of this Information Memorandum in the case of Company; and if there were any prosecutions filed 
(whether pending or not); fines imposed or compounding of offences done in the last three years 
immediately preceding the year of this Information Memorandum for the Company.  
NIL 
 

➢ Litigations by our Company 
A. Criminal Proceedings 

NIL  
 

Proceedings under Section 138 of Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 
 

Our Company has filed 4 (four) complaints and notices under Section 138 of Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 
(“NI Act”) and Section 25 of the Payment and Settlement Systems Act, 2007 (“PSS Act”) for recovering 
amounts due from various entities on account of dishonoring of cheques issued/electronic funds by such entities 
pending before various courts. The aggregate amount involved in these matters is ₹ 1.58 crore.  
 

B. Material Civil Proceedings 
NIL  
 
Arbitration Proceedings initiated by our Company 
NIL  
 
Insolvency Proceedings initiated by our Company 
NIL  
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Notices issued by the Company for recovery of loans  
 

NIL 
 

II. Litigations involving our Directors   
 
➢ Litigations against our Directors 

 
Except as disclosed below, there are no other proceedings against our Directors   

 
A. Criminal proceedings  

 
NIL  
 

B. Material Civil proceedings  
 

MRT Music has filed a suit before city civil court at Bangalore against our Company and its directors namely, 
Ms. Anita Nayyar, Mr. Shailesh Gupta, and key managerial personnel of our Company Mr. Ashit Kukian and 
an ex-employee Mr. Chirag Bagadia, seeking an injunction restraining the Company from broadcasting the 
repertoire of MRT Music. For details, see “Outstanding Litigations – Litigations involving our Company – 
Litigations against our Company- Material Civil Proceedings” on page 50. 

C. Material Tax proceedings  
 

NIL  
 

D. Statutory and Regulatory proceedings  
 

NIL   
 

➢ Litigations by our Directors 
 

NIL  
 

III. Involving our Promoter  
 
➢ Litigations against our Promoter 

 
A. Criminal proceedings  

 
1. Various third parties have filed 69 separate criminal complaints pertaining to alleged defamation pursuant to 

various news reports, news articles or other contents published in different newspapers of Jagran Prakashan 
Limited (“JPL”), against certain directors of JPL and employees of JPL including editors, reporters and senior 
management. These matters are presently pending before various forums at various stages for adjudication.  
   

2. The Central Bureau of Investigation (“CBI”) has initiated criminal proceedings in 2011 against Jagran Solution 
(“JS”), a unit of JPL (through its directors), an employee of JS (the “JS Employee”) and others before the Court 
of the Special Judge, Prevention of Corruption (CBI), Ghaziabad (“Special Court”), in relation to alleged 
misappropriation of funds of National Rural Health Mission (“NRHM”). In 2013, CBI filed a charge sheet 
before the Special Court alleging criminal conspiracy between several officials of the UP Government and 
private operators of mobile medical units (“MMUs”) including JS, for misappropriation of NRHM funds (the 
“Charge Sheet”). The Charge Sheet alleged that JS had unjustly gained a pecuniary advantage aggregating to 
₹ 4.899 crore (the “Disputed Amount”) by submitting inflated bills for the fabrication and instrumentation of 
MMUs. The Disputed Amount has been deposited with the Special Court. The charges have been framed against 
JS and JS Employee and the evidence for the prosecution has started. The matter is pending for recording of 
prosecution evidence. 
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JS has filed two writ petitions before the Allahabad High Court against the State of Uttar Pradesh and others, 
regarding certain outstanding dues to be paid to JS in relation to the MMU agreements. Further JS has filed a 
writ petition dated November 21, 2016 before the Allahabad High Court, inter alia, seeking that (i) an order of 
mandamus be issued requiring the Outstanding Amount aggregating to ₹ 9.856 crore be released to JS; and (ii) 
an order of certiorari be issued striking down the order dated June 23, 2016 passed by Joint Director, Health and 
Family Welfare, MNU Lucknow. The matter is currently pending. 
 
Further, pursuant to the above CBI case the Enforcement Directorate, Lucknow Zone (“ED”) initiated 
investigation under the Prevention of Money Laundering Act and notices under section 50 of the Prevention of 
Money Laundering Act, 2002 for producing of records/documents and for recording of statements were issued. 
It was informed to ED that the case of money-laundering is not made out as the amount of ₹ 4.899 crore on 
account of alleged wrongful gain have already been deposited with the Special Court in terms of orders of the 
high court. The ED has filed criminal complaint before the Special Court (PMLA), Lucknow that has been 
registered as Sessions Case No. 2791 of 2022 with the title Assistant Director of Enforcement Vs. Jain Video 
on Wheels and Others., wherein JS Employee and JPL through its directors has been arrayed as accused No.3 
and accused No. 4, respectively. Special Court (PMLA) vide order dated December 17, 2022 issued summons 
to JS Employee and JPL through its Directors. Pursuant to aforesaid summons, JS Employee has been sent to 
judicial custody and matter is listed for appearance of accused persons. 
 

3. Krishna Mohan Agarwal (the “Complainant”) had filed a first information report with the Cantt Police Station, 
Gorakhpur against a director of JPL and another (the “Accused”) alleging that the Accused had physically 
assaulted the Complainant when the Complainant had gone to office of the Accused for demanding certain 
monetary dues. In this regard, a criminal proceeding has been instituted before the Chief Judicial Magistrate, 
Gorakhpur against the Accused by the police. The matter is pending.  
 

4. H. B. Singh, Returning Officer, Election Commission (the “Complainant”) had filed a first information report 
with the Kotwali Police Station, Pilibhit against certain employees of JPL and the printer (the “Accused”) 
alleging that ‘Dainik Jagran’, a newspaper published by JPL, had published a part of a ballot paper in an article 
on an election. In this regard, a criminal proceeding has been instituted before the Chief Judicial Magistrate, 
Pilibhit against the Accused by the police. The matter is pending.  
 

5. Sanjeev Verma (the “Complainant”) has filed a criminal complaint before the 6th Additional Chief Judicial 
Magistrate, Moradabad against a director, reporter and certain employee of JPL (the “Accused”) alleging that 
one of the Accused, the reporter, has demanded ₹ 5,000 from the Complainant for not publishing some news 
against the Complainant. Since the Complainant didn’t pay the money demanded, the news was published 
against the Complainant. The matter is pending. 
 

6. Labour Enforcement Officer, Labour Department, Varanasi (the “Labour Officer”) has filed a criminal 
complaint before the Chief Judicial Magistrate Court, Varanasi against JPL and another for not adhering to the 
order of Ministry of Labour and Employment, Government of India to implement the recommendations of the 
Majithia Wage Board and also for non-production of documents as demanded by the Labour Officer. The matter 
is pending.  
 

7. The Inspector under the Working Journalist Act, 1955 has filed two separate criminal complaints before the 
Metropolitan Magistrate, Patiala House, New Delhi and Metropolitan Magistrate Tees Hazari Court, New Delhi, 
respectively, against certain directors and other senior officials of JPL alleging that JPL has failed to maintain 
record of details pertaining to the implementation of the recommendations of the Majithia Wage Board. The 
matter is pending. 
 

8. Sri Krishna Prasad (Advocate) (“Complainant”) has filed FIR No. 131/20 at Kotwali Police Station Munger 
against our senior most functionaries of JPL alleging that ‘Dainik Jagran’ has no Registration of Newspapers 
for India (RNI) for Munger Edition and collecting payment of advertisement in the name of Munger Edition 
from Government, whereas there is no Munger Edition.  Similar case was also filed by the Complainant in 
Muzaffarpur Civil Court but the same has gone in favour of JPL. Munger District is covered under Bhagalpur 
unit. JPL have all formal documents required by Directorate of Advertisement and State Government and 
Central Government. Investigation is going on by police and matter is pending. 
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B. Material Civil proceedings  

1. Sanjeev Mohan Gupta, director of Jagran Publications Private Limited (the “Applicant”) has filed an arbitration 
application before the Madhya Pradesh High Court, Principal Seat at Jabalpur (the “High Court”) against JPL 
and others. It is claimed by the Applicant that in terms of a contractual arrangement with JPL, it has the exclusive 
right to publish the newspaper ‘Dainik Jagran’ from Madhya Pradesh. The Applicant has alleged that JPL has 
violated the terms of the contractual arrangement by acquiring the newspaper ‘Nai Duniya’, which is published 
in Madhya Pradesh. In this regard, the Applicant has sent a notice to JPL invoking arbitration under the 
agreement. Since JPL has not appointed an arbitrator pursuant to the said notice, the Applicant has filed an 
arbitration application for the appointment of the arbitrator. The matter is pending. 
 

2. Madan Mohan Gupta and others (the “Applicants”) have filed a suit in 2007 before the Delhi High Court against 
JPL and another, challenging the ownership of the trade name/ mark ‘Dainik Jagran’ by JPL. The trademark 
‘Dainik Jagran’ is registered in the name of JPL since 2005. It has been claimed by the applicants that the 
publication business of the descendants of P. C Gupta was taken over by JPL upon its incorporation in 1975 and 
the shareholding of the descendants of P. C. Gupta in JPL has since been diluted by the sale of their shares to 
another entity and pursuant to an initial public offering by JPL. The Applicants, who are the descendants of G. 
D. Gupta, brother of P. C. Gupta, inter alia, seek (i) a declaration that the lineal descendants of the P. C. Gupta 
and his brother are joint owners of the trade name/ mark ‘Dainik Jagran’ and JPL has no rights over the same; 
and (ii) a permanent injunction restraining JPL from using the trade name/ mark ‘Dainik Jagran’. The matter is 
pending. 
 

3. Sapna Gupta and Priyanka Gupta (collectively the “Petitioners”), erstwhile directors and present shareholders 
of Jagran Publications Limited (“JPPL”) have filed a petition in the year 2007 before the Company Law Board, 
New Delhi (the “CLB) against JPPL and JPL (a shareholder of JPPL), seeking that the name of JPL be struck 
off from the register of members of JPPL. In terms of its order dated August 22, 2008 (the “Order”), the CLB 
held that the name of JPL cannot be struck from the register of members of JPPL and dismissed the CLB petition. 
The Petitioners have filed an appeal against the Order before the High Court of Madhya Pradesh, at Jabalpur 
(the “High Court”), seeking quashing of the Order and CLB petition be allowed by the High Court. Sapna 
Gupta has subsequently withdrawn herself as an appellant from the said appeal. No interim reliefs have been 
granted by the High Court of Madhya Pradesh at Jabalpur in the said appeal. The matter is pending.  
 

4. Hari Mohan Gupta and others (collectively the “Petitioners”) have filed a petition before the Company Law 
Board, Mumbai Bench (“CLB”) against JPL, Jagran Publications Private Limited (“JPPL”) and others, seeking 
that the name of JPL (a shareholder of JPPL) to be struck down from the register of members of JPPL, and a 
declaration that the petitioners are the rightful title holders of JPL’s shareholding in JPPL (the “Petition”). After 
the formation of the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) in place of the CLB, the Petition has been 
transferred to the Ahmedabad Bench of the NCLT. The matter is pending.  
 
In this regard, JPL has filed an application before the CLB, objecting to the maintainability of the Petition (the 
“Application”). In terms of its order dated May 22, 2014, the CLB has dismissed the Application (the “Order”). 
JPL has filed an appeal against the Order before the High Court of Madhya Pradesh, Jabalpur Seat (the “High 
Court”) seeking that the Petition be dismissed. By the order dated November 24, 2014, proceedings relating to 
the Petition were stayed till January 12, 2015, and such stay has been continued from time to time. Further, due 
to the constitution of the NCLT replacing the CLB, the matter was transferred to the Ahmedabad Bench of 
NCLT, which exercises jurisdiction over the States of Gujarat and Madhya Pradesh. The matter was dismissed 
by the NCLT for non-prosecution on July 09, 2021.  
 

C. Material Tax proceedings  
 

Indirect tax proceedings (consolidated)  
 
 NIL 

 
 



58  

Direct tax proceedings (consolidated)  
Sr. 
No. Type of Direct Tax No. of Cases Amount demanded (in ₹ crore) 

1. Income tax 1 1.120 
Total 1 1.120 

In respect to one of the cases on re-assessment proceedings under Section 147 of Income Tax Act, 1961 (“IT Act”) for the assessment year 
2015-2016, by way of issuance of notice under Section 148 of IT ACT, whereby disallowance under Section 14A of IT Act & investment 
of ₹ 140.78 crore by JPL are under challenge by the tax department. The amount in demand is not ascertainable at the current stage. 
 

D. Statutory and Regulatory proceedings  
NIL  
 

➢ Litigations by our Promoter 
A. Criminal proceedings  

1. JPL has filed 699 separate complaints against various third parties including advertisers and/or advertising 
agencies, in relation to dishonour of cheques issued by such various third parties on account of dues recoverable 
for, inter alia, advertisements published in newspapers published by JPL. These matters are presently pending 
before various forums at various stages of adjudication. The aggregate amount involved in these matters is ₹ 
11.087 crore.  
 

2. JPL has filed 153 criminal complaints pertaining to criminal breach of trust, criminal conspiracy and/or cheating 
against various third parties including advertisers and/or advertising agencies for alleged non-payment of dues 
arising out of advertisements published in different newspapers published by JPL. These matters are presently 
pending before various forums at various stages for adjudication.  
 

3. Crystal Sound and Music Private Limited (“Crystal”) has filed a criminal complaint before the LVIII 
Metropolitan Magistrate’s Court, Mumbai against Nine Winds Media and Entertainment Private Limited for 
alleged dishonour of cheque issued to Crystal for on-ground activation services provided. The aggregate amount 
involved in this matter is ₹ 0.122 crore. Crystal got amalgamated in Jagran Prakashan Limited. The matter is 
pending.  
 

4. JPL has filed 7 (seven) first information reports with different police stations pertaining to criminal breach of 
trust and/or cheating against various third parties including advertisers for alleged non-payment of dues arising 
out of advertisements published in different newspapers published by JPL, which are presently pending at 
various stages of investigation.  
 

5. JPL has filed eight first information reports with different police stations pertaining to criminal breach of trust, 
criminal conspiracy and/ or cheating against various third parties including employees, agents and other 
intermediaries (the “Accused”) for alleged misappropriation of money, which are either presently pending at 
various stages of investigation, or criminal proceedings have been instituted before different forum of 
adjudication by the police. In this regard, Accused involved in two first information reports out of the eight 
aforesaid first information reports had filed separate writ petitions before Allahabad High Court for quashing of 
the first information reports/ charge sheets. The Allahabad High Courts by its respective orders has stayed the 
proceedings in respect of the aforesaid two first information reports. However, the said matters are still pending 
before the Allahabad High Court.  
 

6. JPL has filed a criminal complaint before the II Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, Kanpur against 
Sanjeev Mohan Gupta and Jagran Entertainment Media Private Limited (the “Accused”) for alleged 
unauthorised usage of the name ‘Jagran Prakashan Limited’ on the Accused’s website and wrongfully claiming 
to be owners of the newspaper ‘Dainik Jagran’, a newspaper which is published by JPL. The matter is pending.  
 

7. JPL had filed a first information report with the Patel Nagar police station, Dehradun against Surendra Singh 
Bisht (the “Accused”) for availing a personal loan on basis of a guarantee letter on the letter-head of JPL, 
allegedly obtained by fraud. In this regard, a criminal proceeding has been instituted before the II Chief Judicial 
Magistrate, Dehradun against the Accused by the police. The matter is pending.  
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8. JPL has filed a first information report before the Civil Lines police station, Hisar, alleging the theft of a laptop 
from its premises. No accused has been identified in the matter. The matter is pending.  
 

B. Material Civil proceedings 

1. JPL and Shri Puran Chandra Gupta Smarak Trust (collectively the “Petitioners”) have filed a suit before the 
District Judge, Kanpur against Jagran Social Welfare Trust and others (collectively the “Defendants”) seeking, 
inter alia, a permanent injunction restraining the Defendants from use of the trade name ‘Jagran’, which is a 
registered trademark of JPL. Shri Puran Chandra Gupta Smarak Trust runs several educational institutions under 
the name of ‘Jagran’, including Jagran Institute of Management and Mass Communication. The Defendants 
have manage Jagran Institute of Communication and Management (“JICM”). The Petitioners have alleged 
infringement of the intellectual properties of JPL, in managing the affairs of JICM, by the Defendants. In this 
regard, Hari Mohan Gupta, president of Jagran Social Welfare Trust, has filed rectification application before 
the Intellectual Property Appellate Board, Chennai against JPL to strike off the trademark ‘Jagran’ in Hindi and 
English from its rolls. The matters are pending. 
 

2. JPL has filed six separate suits for permanent injunction against different entities and their directors (the 
“Defendants”) alleging, inter alia, infringement of trademark, dilution of trademark, unfair competition and/ or 
passing off. Pursuant to the said suits, JPL has sought for, inter alia, a direction to restrain the Defendants from 
usage of the mark ‘Jagran’, which is a registered trademark of JPL, or any other similar or identical mark and 
claim of monetary amount for profits illegally earned by the Defendants by selling their goods using the mark 
‘Jagran’. These cases are pending before Trademark registry and various high courts at various stages of 
adjudication. The aggregate amount involved in these matters is ₹ 1.2 crore. 
 

3. JPL has filed a petition before the Company Law Board, New Delhi (“CLB”) against Jagran Publications Private 
Limited (“JPPL”) and certain shareholders of JPPL (the “Members”), alleging that the Members have been 
mismanaging the affairs of JPPL and oppressing the rights of JPL (a shareholder of JPPL). JPL has, inter alia, 
sought for a direction that the Members should sell the shares held by them in JPPL on a price determined by 
an independent valuer, to JPL, or in the alternative, for the framing of a scheme of management whereby the 
management rights over JPPL are vested with JPL. By its order dated November 29, 2007, the CLB has 
restrained the Members from encumbering or alienating the capital assets, properties and valuable investments 
of JPPL other than in the ordinary course of its business. After the formation of the National Company Law 
Tribunal (“NCLT”) in place of the CLB, the petition has been transferred to the Ahmedabad Bench of the 
NCLT. The matter is pending.  
 

4. Jagran Solution, a unit of JPL has filed two writ petitions before the High Court against the State of Uttar Pradesh 
and others. For details, see “Outstanding Litigations – Litigation involving our Promoter – Litigation against 
our Promoter – Criminal proceedings” on page 51. 
 

5. JPL filed a suit for infringement and passing off against Telegram and undisclosed persons vide suit no.  
146/2020 before Delhi High Court. The Delhi High Court vide its order dated May 29, 2020 has directed 
Telegram to disclose the identities of the infringing channel owners and also to take down the infringing channels 
involved in circulation of e-paper of Jagran. Telegram has been taking down the infringing channels after court 
order as and when intimation of such channels given by JPL. Telegram didn’t disclose the identities to JPL.  
Therefore, there have been many suits against Telegram since 2020, and JPL have been successful in  obtaining 
an order dated November 23, 2022, confirming the directions of order dated May 29, 2022, wherein Telegram 
has been directed by the court to submit the identities of the infringing channel owners before the court within 
3 weeks. The matter is currently pending. 
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IV. Litigations involving our Group Company  
 
Litigations involving Midday Infomedia Limited 
 
➢ Litigations filed against Midday Infomedia Limited  

 
A. Criminal proceedings  

Various third parties have filed 27 separate criminal complaints pertaining to alleged defamation / alleged 
indecent content pursuant to various news reports, news articles or other contents published in the newspaper 
of Midday Infomedia Limited (“Midday”), against Midday and employees of Midday including certain 
reporters, photographers and editors, directors of Midday and/ or printers and publishers. These matters are 
presently pending before various forums at various stages of adjudication 
 

B. Material Civil proceedings  
 

Maharashtra Theatre Private Limited (“Applicant”) has filed case inter alia, against Collector, Mumbai 
Suburban District, (“Collector”), VRSM Enterprises LLP, Bank of Baroda (formerly Dena Bank), Indian Bank 
(formerly Allahabad Bank) and our Company and Midday Infomedia Limited (collectively “Defendants”). For 
details, see “Outstanding Litigations – Litigation Involving our Company – Litigation against our Company – 
Material Civil Proceedings” on page 49. 

 
C. Material Tax proceedings  

 
NIL  

 
D. Statutory and Regulatory proceedings  

 
NIL  
 

➢ Litigations by Midday Infomedia Limited 
 
Chief Metropolitan Magistrate Court has directed kherwadi Police Station vide its order dated December 24, 
2019 to register FIR against Maharashtra Theatre Private Limited, Anubhav Anilkumar Aggarwal, Gokul 
Anilkumar Aggarwal, Vipul Bansal, and Nilesh Kadam, for abruptly stopping essential services and the FIR 
was  registered at Kherwadi Police Station MECR no. 06/2019 dated December 31, 2019.  
 

 
Litigations involving MMI Online Limited 
 

➢ Litigations against MMI Online Limited 
 

A. Criminal proceedings 
 
NIL  
 

B. Material Civil proceedings  
 

NIL  
 

C. Material Tax proceedings  
 

NIL  
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D. Statutory and Regulatory proceedings  
 

NIL  
 

➢ Litigations by MMI Online Limited 
 
Other than disclosed below there are no litigations filed by MMI Online Limited:  
 
MMI Online Limited has filed criminal suit against Bibha Cargo Private Limited under Section 138 of 
Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 for dishonor of amount of ₹ 0.03 crore. 
 

V. Details of acts of material frauds committed against our Company in the last three years, if any, 
 

NIL 
 

VI. Details of proceedings by Ministry of Information and Broadcasting  
 

NIL 
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MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS 
 

In the opinion of our Board, except for approval of Scheme by the Hon’ble NCLT, there have not arisen since the date 
of the last audited financial statements, i.e., March 31, 2022, any circumstances that materially or adversely affect or are 
likely to affect our profitability taken as a whole or the value of our assets or our ability to pay our material liabilities 
within the next 12 months. 
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ISSUE STRUCTURE 
 

The following are the key terms of the NCRPS: 
 

 
Security Name Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 
Issuer Music Broadcast Limited 
Type of Instrument Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 
Nature of Instrument 
(Secured or Unsecured) 

Unsecured 

Seniority Claims of the NCRPS Holder shall rank senior to claims by any holder of equity 
shares of the Company and shall rank pari passu with all other preference shares 
issued by the Company. Claims of the NCRPS Holder shall be subordinate to the 
both secured and unsecured creditors of the Company. 

Eligible Investors Shareholder residing outside India and Resident Shareholders except Promoter and 
Promoter Group, as defined under the Scheme, holding equity shares of the 
Company as on Record Date i.e., Friday, January 13, 2023 

Listing (including name of 
stock Exchange(s) where it 
will be listed and timeline for 
listing) / Designated Stock 
Exchange) 

The NCRPS shall be listed on BSE and NSE.  
BSE Limited shall be the Designated Stock Exchange. 

Rating of the Instrument “CRISIL AA/Stable” by CRISIL Ratings Limited vide rating letter dated September 
13, 2022 

Issue Bonus Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of face 
value of ₹ 10/- each for an amount aggregating up to ₹89,69,59,700/- 

Issue Size The Company proposes to issue 89,69,597 NCRPS of the face value of ₹10/- each 
at a premium of ₹90/- aggregating to ₹89,69,59,700/- 

Minimum Subscription Not Applicable 
Option to Retain 
Oversubscription Amount 

Not Applicable 

Objects of the Issue The Board of Directors of the Company formulated the Scheme of Arrangement for 
issuance of NCRPS to its non-promoter shareholders on a preferential basis by way 
of bonus to ensure that it continues to get the support of its esteemed public 
shareholders who have supported the company so far. 
 
Kindly refer the Section “Scheme of Arrangement” on Page 26. 
 

Details of the utilisation of 
the Proceeds 

Not Applicable since this is a bonus issue of NCRPS 

Dividend Rate 0.1% per annum 
Step Up/Step Down Coupon 
Rate 

Not Applicable 

Dividend Payment 
Frequency 

The dividend shall be paid out of profits, as and when declared by the Board. 

Dividend Payment Date The dividend shall be paid as and when declared by the Board. 
Cumulative / non cumulative, 
in case of dividend 

Non-Cumulative 

Coupon Type (Fixed, floating 
or other structure) 

Not Applicable 

Coupon/ Reset Process 
(including rates, spread, 
effective date, interest rate 
cap and floor etc.) 

Not Applicable 

Day Count Basis Not Applicable 
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Interest on application 
money 

Not Applicable 

Default Interest rate Not Applicable 
Tenor 36 months from the Date of Allotment 
Redemption Date(s) 36 months from the Date of Allotment i.e., January 19, 2026 
Redemption Amount ₹ 107,63,51,640/- 
Redemption Premium / 
Discount 

At a premium of ₹ 20/-    

Issue Price ₹ 100/- per NCRPS (including ₹ 90/- per NCRPS as premium) as Bonus 
Discount at which security is 
issued and the effective yield 
as a result of such discount 

Not Applicable 

Put Date Not Applicable 
Put Price Not Applicable 
Call Date Not Applicable 
Call Price Not Applicable 
Put Notification Time 
(Timelines by which the 
investor need to intimate 
Issuer before exercising the 
put) 

Not Applicable 

Call Notification Time 
(Timelines by which the 
investor need to intimate 
Issuer before exercising the 
call) 

Not Applicable 

Face Value ₹ 10/- per NCRPS 
Minimum Application size 
and in multiples of NCRPS 
thereafter 

One Bonus NCRPS 

Issue Timing Not Applicable 
Issue Opening Date Not Applicable 
Issue Closing Date Not Applicable 
Date of earliest closing of the 
issue, if any 

Not Applicable 

Pay-in date Not Applicable 
Deemed Date of Allotment January 19, 2023 
Settlement mode of the 
Instrument 

Payment of dividend and Redemption Amount will be made by way of RTGS / 
NEFT / any other electronic mode / any other permissible mode of payment. 

Depositories National Securities Depository Limited & Central Depository Services Limited 
Disclosure of Dividend / 
redemption dates 

Dividend shall be given only in case of profits. The Redemption Date shall be 36 
months from the Date of Allotment i.e., January 19, 2023. 

Record Date for issuance of 
NCRPS 

January 13, 2023 

All covenants of the issue 
(including side letters, 
accelerated payment clause, 
etc.) 

NA 

Description regarding 
Security (where applicable) 
including type of security 
(movable/immovable/tangible 
etc.), type of charge (pledge/ 
hypothecation/ mortgage 
etc.), date of creation of 

NA 
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security/ likely date of 
creation of security, 
minimum security cover, 
revaluation, replacement of 
security, interest to the 
debenture holder over and 
above the coupon rate as 
specified in the Trust Deed 
and disclosed in the 
Disclosure Document 
Transaction Documents This Information Memorandum read with the Scheme of Arrangement 
Conditions Precedent to 
Disbursement 

Not Applicable 

Conditions Subsequent to 
Disbursement 

Not Applicable 

Events of Defaults (including 
manner of voting /conditions 
of joining Inter Creditor 
Agreement) 

Not Applicable 

Creation of recovery expense 
fund 

The Issuer hereby undertakes and confirms that it shall, within the time period 
prescribed under the SEBI Recovery Expense Fund Circular, establish and maintain 
the Recovery Expense Fund in such manner/mode as is prescribed under the SEBI 
Recovery Expense Fund Circular. 

Conditions for breach of 
covenants (as specified in 
Debenture Trust Deed) 

Not Applicable 

Role and Responsibilities of 
Debenture Trustee 

Not Applicable 

Risk factors pertaining to the 
issue 

As specified in Annexure B (Management’s Perception of Risk Factors) of this 
Disclosure Document 

Governing Law and 
Jurisdiction 

The NCRPS are governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the existing 
laws of India. Any dispute arising thereof will be subject to the exclusive 
jurisdiction of the courts at Mumbai in India. 
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OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 
 
Authority of Listing 
 
The Hon’ble NCLT has approved the Scheme, vide its Order dated December 23, 2022 (certified copy received by the 
Company on December 27, 2022). For more details relating to the Scheme please refer to the Section titled “Scheme of 
Arrangement” on page 26 of this Information Memorandum. In accordance with the said Scheme, the NCRPS of our 
Company issued pursuant to the Scheme shall be listed and admitted to trading on the BSE and NSE. Such listing and 
admission for trading is not automatic and is subject to fulfillment by the Company of criteria of BSE and NSE and also 
subject to such other terms and conditions as may be prescribed by BSE and NSE at the time of application by our 
Company seeking listing. 
 
The Company has received approval for listing of its equity shares on BSE vide their letter no. [●] dated [●] and NSE 
vide their letter no. [●] dated [●]. Further, the Company has also received a letter bearing no. [●] dated [●] from the SEBI 
in relation to relaxation from applicability of Rule 19(2)(b) of the SCRR for listing of the NCRPS of the Company on 
Stock Exchanges.  
 
Eligibility Criterion 
 
There being no Initial public offering or rights issue, the eligibility criteria in terms of Chapter II of SEBI ICDR 
Regulations do not become applicable. However, SEBI vide its master circular 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021, as amended from time to time, has subject to 
certain conditions, permitted unlisted issuer companies to make an application for relaxing from the strict enforcement 
of Rule 19(2)(b) of SCRR, as amended. Our Company has submitted its Information Memorandum, containing 
information about itself, making disclosure in line with the disclosure requirement for public issues, as applicable, to 
BSE and NSE for making the said Information Memorandum available to public through their website viz. 
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively. Our Company has made the said Information Memorandum 
available on its website www.radiocity.in. Our Company has published an advertisement in the newspapers containing 
its details in line with the details required as per the above-mentioned circular on [●]. The advertisement draws specific 
reference to the availability of this Information Memorandum on its website.  
 
Disclaimer Clause of SEBI  

 
IT IS TO BE DISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD THAT FILING OF INFORMATION DOCUMENT TO THE 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (SEBI) SHOULD NOT IN ANY WAY BE DEEMED OR 
CONSTRUED THAT THE SAME HAS BEEN CLEARED OR APPROVED BY SEBI. SEBI DOES NOT TAKE 
ANY RESPONSIBILITY EITHER FOR THE FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF ANY SCHEME OR THE 
PROJECT FOR WHICH THE ISSUE IS PROPOSED TO BE MADE OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF THE 
STATEMENTS MADE OR OPINIONS EXPRESSED IN THE OFFER DOCUMENT. THE COMPANY 
ENSURES THAT THE DISCLOSURES MADE IN THE OFFER DOCUMENT ARE GENERALLY 
ADEQUATE AND ARE IN CONFORMITY WITH THE SEBI (ISSUE AND LISTING OF NON-
CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES) REGULATIONS, 2021. THIS REQUIREMENT IS TO FACILITATE 
INVESTORS TO TAKE AN INFORMED DECISION FOR MAKING INVESTMENT IN THE PROPOSED 
ISSUE.  
 
Disclaimer Clause of NSE  

 
BASED ON THE DRAFT SCHEME AND OTHER DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED BY THE COMPANY, 
INCLUDING UNDERTAKING GIVEN IN TERMS OF REGULATION 11 OF SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 
2015, WE HEREBY CONVEY OUR “NO-OBJECTION” IN TERMS OF REGULATION 94 OF SEBI (LODR) 
REGULATIONS, 2015, SO AS TO ENABLE THE COMPANY TO FILE THE DRAFT SCHEME WITH NCLT. 
 
HOWEVER, THE EXCHANGE RESERVES ITS RIGHTS TO RAISE OBJECTIONS AT ANY STAGE IF THE 
INFORMATION SUBMITTED TO THE EXCHANGE IS FOUND TO BE INCOMPLETE/ INCORRECT/ 
MISLEADING/ FALSE OR FOR ANY CONTRAVENTION OF RULES, BYE-LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.radiocity.in/
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OF THE EXCHANGE, LISTING REGULATIONS, GUIDELINES / REGULATIONS ISSUED BY 
STATUTORY AUTHORITIES.  

 
Disclaimer Clause of BSE  

 
THE EXCHANGE RESERVES ITS RIGHT TO WITHDRAW ITS ‘NO ADVERSE OBSERVATION’ AT ANY 
STAGE IF THE INFORMATION SUBMITTED TO THE EXCHANGE IS FOUND TO BE INCOMPLETE / 
INCORRECT / MISLEADING / FALSE OR FOR ANY CONTRAVENTION OF RULES, BYE-LAWS AND 
REGULATIONS OF THE EXCHANGE, LISTING AGREEMENT, GUIDELINES/REGULATIONS ISSUED 
BY STATUTORY AUTHORITIES.  
 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THE AFORESAID OBSERVATIONS DOES NOT PRECLUDE THE COMPANY 
FROM COMPLYING WITH ANY OTHER REQUIREMENTS. 

 
Disclaimer Statement of CRISIL Ratings Limited 
 
CRISIL Ratings Limited (CRISIL Ratings) has taken due care and caution in preparing the Material based on the 
information provided by its client and / or obtained by CRISIL Ratings from sources which it considers reliable 
(Information). A rating by CRISIL Ratings reflects its current opinion on the likelihood of timely payment of the 
obligations under the rated instrument and does not constitute an audit of the rated entity by CRISIL Ratings.  CRISIL 
Ratings does not guarantee the completeness or accuracy of the information on which the rating is based. A rating by 
CRISIL Ratings is not a recommendation to buy, sell, or hold the rated instrument; it does not comment on the market 
price or suitability for a particular investor. The Rating is not a recommendation to invest / disinvest in any entity covered 
in the Material and no part of the Material should be construed as an expert advice or investment advice or any form of 
investment banking within the meaning of any law or regulation. CRISIL Ratings especially states that it has no liability 
whatsoever to the subscribers / users / transmitters/ distributors of the Material. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, nothing in the Material is to be construed as CRISIL Ratings providing or intending to provide any services 
in jurisdictions where CRISIL Ratings does not have the necessary permission and/or registration to carry out its business 
activities in this regard. Music Broadcast Limited will be responsible for ensuring compliances and consequences of non-
compliances for use of the Material or part thereof outside India.  Current rating status and CRISIL Ratings’ rating criteria 
are available without charge to the public on the website, www.crisilratings.com. For the latest rating information on any 
instrument of any company rated by CRISIL Ratings, please contact Customer Service Helpdesk at 1800-267-1301. 
 
Disclaimer statement from the Issuer  
 
THE ISSUER ACCEPTS NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR STATEMENTS MADE OTHER THAN IN THIS 
INFORMATION MEMORANDUM OR IN ADVERTISEMENT OR ANY OTHER MATERIAL ISSUED BY 
OR AT THE INSTANCE OF OUR COMPANY IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUE OF THE NCRPS AND 
ANYONE PLACING RELIANCE ON ANY OTHER SOURCE OF INFORMATION WOULD BE DOING SO 
AT THEIR OWN RISK.  
 
Disclaimer in Respect of Jurisdiction  
 
THE ISSUE IS BEING MADE IN INDIA, TO NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY AS 
ON THE RECORD DATE ie, JANUARY 13, 2023, DECIDED BY THE BONUS COMMITTEE OF THE 
DIRECTORS. THIS INFROMATION MEMORANDUM WILL NOT, HOWEVER CONSTITUTE AN OFFER 
TO SELL OR AN INVITATION TO SUBSCRIBE FOR THE NCRPS OFFERED HEREBY IN ANY 
JURISDICTION OTHER THAN INDIA TO ANY PERSON TO WHOM IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE AN 
OFFER OR INVITATION IN SUCH JURISDICTION. ANY PERSON INTO WHOSE POSSESSION THIS 
INFORMATION MEMORANDUM COMES IS REQUIRED TO INFORM HIMSELF OR HERSELF ABOUT, 
AND TO OBSERVE, ANY SUCH RESTRICTIONS.  
 
Undertaking by the Issuer  
 
INVESTORS ARE ADVISED TO READ THE RISK FACTORS CAREFULLY BEFORE TAKING AN 
INVESTMENT DECISION IN THIS ISSUE. FOR TAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS 
MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER AND THE OFFER INCLUDING THE 
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RISKS INVOLVED. THE NCRPS HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED OR APPROVED BY ANY 
REGULATORY AUTHORITY IN INDIA, INCLUDING THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF 
INDIA (SEBI) NOR DOES SEBI GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT. 
SPECIFIC ATTENTION OF INVESTORS IS INVITED TO THE STATEMENT OF THE “RISK FACTORS” 
CHAPTER ON PAGE 8 OF THE INFORMATION MEMORANDUM.  
 
OUR COMPANY, HAVING MADE ALL REASONABLE INQUIRIES, ACCEPTS RESPONSIBILITY FOR, 
AND CONFIRMS THAT THIS INFROMATION MEMORANDUM CONTAINS ALL INFORMATION WITH 
REGARD TO THE ISSUER AND THE ISSUE, THAT THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS 
INFROMATION MEMORANDUM IS TRUE AND CORRECT IN ALL MATERIAL ASPECTS AND IS NOT 
MISLEADING IN ANY MATERIAL RESPECT, THAT THE OPINIONS AND INTENTIONS EXPRESSED 
HEREIN ARE HONESTLY HELD AND THAT THERE ARE NO OTHER FACTS, THE OMISSION OF 
WHICH MAKE THIS INFROMATION MEMORANDUM AS A WHOLE OR ANY OF SUCH INFORMATION 
OR THE EXPRESSION OF ANY SUCH OPINIONS OR INTENTIONS MISLEADING IN ANY MATERIAL 
RESPECT.  
 
OUR COMPANY DECLARES THAT NOTHING IN THE INFROMATION MEMORNDUM IS CONTRARY 
TO THE PROVISIONS OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (18 OF 2013), THE SECURITIES CONTRACTS 
(REGULATION) ACT, 1956 AND THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA ACT, 1992 AND 
THE RULES AND REGULATIONS MADE THEREUNDER. 
 
Filing 
 
Copy of this Information Memorandum has been filed with BSE and NSE. 
 
Listing 
 
Application has been made to Stock Exchanges for permission for listing and trading in and for an official quotation of 
the NCRPS of the Company. The Company has nominated BSE as the Designated Stock Exchange for the aforesaid 
listing of shares. The Company shall ensure that it will take all steps for the completion of necessary formalities for 
listing and commencement of trading at BSE within such period as approved by SEBI. 
 
Expert Opinions 
 
Save as stated elsewhere in this Information Memorandum, we have not obtained an expert opinion. 
 
Recovery Expense Fund  
 
Our Company has created a recovery expense fund in the manner as specified by SEBI in circular no. 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/CRADT/CIR/P/2020/207 dated October 22, 2020, as amended from time to time, and Regulation 11 
of the SEBI NCS Regulations with the Designated Stock Exchange for the purpose of this Issue. 
 
Kindly note, any default committed by the Company in terms of the NCRPS proposed to be issued shall be reckoned at 
the International Securities Identification Number level assigned to the NCRPS issued under the Issue.  
 
Underwriting  
 
This Issue shall not be underwritten.  
 
Change in Auditors of our Company during the last three years  
 

Name of the 
Auditor 

Address Date of 
Appointment 

Date of 
cessation, if 
applicable 

Date of 
Resignation, 
if applicable 

M/s Price 
Waterhouse 

Building 8, Tower B,  
DLF Cyber City,  

September 
15, 2020 

- - 
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Chartered 
Accountants LLP 
(FRN: 012754N / 
N500016) 

Gurgaon - 122 002 

 
Public issue of Equity Shares  
 
Our Company has not made any public issue of Equity Shares in the last five years. 
 
Previous Issue(s)  
 
The Company has not issued any NCRPS in the past. 
 
Benefit/ interest accruing to Promoters/ Directors out of the Issue  
 
Neither the Promoter nor the Directors of our Company are interested in the Issue.  
 
Details regarding the Company, its Subsidiaries and other listed companies which are associate companies as 
described under the Companies Act, 2013, which made any capital issue during the last three years  
 
There are no Subsidiaries and/or other listed companies under the same management or associate companies as described 
under the Companies Act, which have made any capital issuances during the previous three years from the date of this 
Information Memorandum.  
 
Details regarding the Company and other listed companies under the same management within the meaning of 
Section 370(1B) of the Companies Act, which made any capital issue during the last three years  
 
Nil  
 
Debentures or bonds and redeemable preference shares and other instruments issued by our Company and 
outstanding  
 
As on the date of this Information Memorandum, our Company does not have any outstanding Debentures or bonds or 
redeemable preference shares. 
 
Mechanism for redressal of investor grievances  
 
The Registrar Agreement dated January 3, 2023, between the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent to the Issue and our 
Company will provide for retention of records with the Registrar to the Issue for a period of at least eight years from the 
last date of dispatch of the Allotment Advice and demat credit to enable the investors to approach the Registrar to the 
Issue for redressal of their grievances. All grievances relating to the Issue may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, 
giving full details such as name, address of the Applicant, number of NCRPS applied for, amount paid on application 
and the bank branch or collection center where the application was submitted. 
 
The contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent to the Issue are as follows:  
 
KFin Technologies Limited 
SEBI Registration No: INR000000221 
Karvy Selenium Tower B 
Plot 31-32 Gachibowli, Financial District 
Nanakramguda, Hyderabad 500 032 
Tel: (91 40) 6716 2222 
Fax: (91 40) 2343 1551 
E-mail: einward.ris@karvy.com 
Website: www.kfintech.com 
Contact Person: Mr Anandan K 

http://www.kfintech.com/
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The Registrar shall endeavour to redress complaints of the investors within three (3) days of receipt of the complaint 
during the currency of this agreement and continue to do so during the period it is required to maintain records under the 
RTA Regulations and our Company shall extend necessary co-operation to the Registrar for its complying with the said 
regulations. However, the Registrar shall ensure that the time taken to redress investor complaints does not exceed fifteen 
(15) days from the date of receipt of complaint. The Registrar shall provide a status report of investor complaints and 
grievances on a fortnightly basis to our Company. Similar status reports should also be provided to our Company as and 
when required by our Company.  
 
The details of the person appointed to act as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for the purposes of this Issue 
are set out below: 
 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
 
Ms. Arpita Kapoor 
Music Broadcast Limited 
5th Floor, RNA Corporate Park 
Off Western Express Highway 
Kalanagar, Bandra (East) 
Mumbai 400 051 
Tel: (91 22) 6696 9100 
Fax: (91 22) 2642 9113 
E-mail: cs@myradiocity.com 
 
Investors may contact the Registrar and Transfer Agent to the Issue or Ms. Arpita Kapoor, Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer in case of any pre-issue or post Issue related issues. 
 
Reservations / Qualifications / Adverse Remarks or Emphasis of Matter by Auditors  
There are no reservations or qualifications or adverse remarks or emphasis of matter by the Statutory Auditors in the 
financial statements of our Company in the last three financial years immediately preceding this Information 
Memorandum. 
 
The amount of corporate guarantee issued by the Issuer along with details of the counterparty (viz. name and 
nature of the counterparty - subsidiary, Joint Venture entity, group company etc) on behalf of whom it has been 
issued: Nil 
 
Details of any other contingent liabilities of the issuer based on the last audited financial statements including 
amount and nature of liability: Nil 
 
Any material event / development or change having implications on the financials/credit quality (e.g. any material 
regulatory proceedings against the Issuer/promoters, litigations resulting in material liabilities, corporate 
restructuring event etc) at the time of issue which may affect the issue or the investor's decision to invest / continue 
to invest in the debt securities: Nil, except as disclosed in this Information Memorandum 
 
Project details: gestation period of the project; extent of progress made in the project; deadlines for completion 
of the project; the summary of the project appraisal report (if any), schedule of implementation of the project: 
Not Applicable 
 
Except as mentioned under the chapter “Capital Structure” on page 16 of this Information Memorandum, our 
Promoter and Promoter Group or Directors of our Company has not purchased or sold any securities in our 
Company, in six months immediately preceding the date of this Information Memorandum. 
  
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:cs@myradiocity.com
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION 
 
The following contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business carried on by our Company 
or entered into more than two years before the date of the Information Memorandum), which are or may be deemed 
material have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company. These contracts and also the documents for 
inspection referred to hereunder, may be inspected at the Registered Office of our Company situated at 5th Floor, RNA 
Corporate Park, Off Western Express Highway, Kalanagar, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051 from 10.00 a.m. to 02.00 
p.m. on working days from the date of the Information Memorandum. 
 
1. Certificate of Incorporation of our Company. 
2. Memorandum and Articles of Association of our Company, as amended to date. 
3. Original Certificate of Incorporation dated November 4, 1999, issued by Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. 
4. Revised certificate of incorporation consequent upon conversion to public limited company was issued by the 

Registrar of Companies, Mumbai on June 25, 2015. 
5. Copy of the Fairness Report provided by Sundae Capital Advisors Private Limited dated October 20, 2020. 
6. Copy of the resolution passed by the Board of directors dated October 20, 2020 approving the scheme. 
7. Scheme of Arrangement among Music Broadcast Limited and their respective Shareholders. 
8. Letter under Regulation 37 of SEBI LODR Regulations issued by BSE vide DCS/AMAL/PB/R37/1888/2020-21 

dated January 29,2021 and NSE vide NSE/LIST/25142_II dated January 29, 2021. 
9. Copy of the Resolution dated June 23, 2022 passed by the Equity Shareholders for approving the Scheme of 

Arrangement. 
10. Copy of the Resolution dated June 23, 2022 passed by the Unsecured Creditors for approving the Scheme of 

Arrangement. 
11. Order dated December 23, 2022 (certified true copy recieved on December 27, 2022) of the Hon’ble National 

Company law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench sanctioning the Scheme of Arrangement under Section 230 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Act. 

12. Tripartite Agreement dated July 08, 2016 among our Company, the Registrar and CDSL. 
13. Tripartite Agreement dated September 22, 2016 among our Company, the Registrar and NSDL. 
14. Rating Letter dated September 13, 2022 by CRISIL Ratings Limited assigning a rating of “CRISIL AA/Stable 

(pronounced as CRISIL double A rating with stable outlook)” for the Issue with rating rationale. 
15. Annual Reports of our Company for the last three financial years ended March 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020. 
16. The Limited Review Report dated January 24, 2023 in relation to the nine months period ended December 31, 2022 

on the Unaudited Financial Information of our Company. 
17. BSE letter no. [●] dated [●] and NSE letter no. [●] dated [●] granting in-principle listing approval. 
18. SEBI Relaxation letter no. [●] dated [●] granting relaxation for listing from the applicability of Rule 19(2)(b) of the 

Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957. 
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ANNEXURE I - DAY COUNT CONVENTION 

ILLUSTRATION FOR GUIDANCE IN RESPECT OF THE DAY COUNT CONVENTION DEPICTING 
COMPUTATION OF DAYS REGARDING REDEMPTION 

Name of the issuer Music Broadcast Limited 
Face Value per NCRPS (in ₹) 10 
Issue Price per NCRPS (in ₹) 100 (including a premium of 

₹90) 
Day and Date of Allotment (tentative) Thursday, January 19, 2023 
Date of redemption Date occurring on expiry of 36 

(Thirty-six) months from the 
Date of Allotment, that is, 

January 19, 2026 
Tenure and Dividend Rate 36 Months; 0.1% p.a. 
Frequency of the dividend payment At the discretion of the Board of 

Directors 
Day Count Convention Actual / Actual 

Investors should note that the below examples are solely for illustrative purposes 

Cash Flows Due Date Date of Redemption No. of days Amount (in 
Rupees) 

Date of allotment January 19, 2023 1095 100.00 
Redemption Value January 19, 2026 January 19, 2026 120.00 

Notes: 
1. The payment of dividend shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made

thereunder, as and when declared by the Board, at its discretion.
2. Date of Allotment is January 19, 2023.
3. The redemption amount shall be paid at the redemption date.



Ratings CRISIL 
CONFIDENTIAL 

An S&P Global Company 

RL/MUBRPL/301135/PRFSHR/0922/42761/119788506 
September 16, 2022 

Mr. Prashaut Domadia 

Chief Financial Officer 
Music Broadcast Limited 

5th FloorR N A Corporate Park, 
Off Western Express Highway, 
Kalanagar, Bandra (E), 
Mwnbai City - 400051 
9004663130 

Dear Mr. Prashant Domadia, 

Re: CRISIL Rating on the Rs. 120 Crore Preference Shares of Music Broadcast Limited 

We refer to your request for a rating for the captioned Debt insuument. 

CRISIL Ratings has, after due consideration, assigned a CRI:SIL AA/Stable (pronounced as CRISIL double A rating with 
Stable outlook) rating to the captioned Debt insuument. lns01.llllents witl1 this rating are considered to have high degree of 
safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. Such insuuments cany ve1y low credit lisk. 

Further, in view of your decision to accept tlle CRISIL Ratings, we request you to apprise us of tlle insnument details (in 
the enclosed fonnat) as soon as it has been placed. In tl1e ev,ent of your company not making tlle issue within a pe1iod of 
180 days from the above date, or in tl1e event of any change in the size or suucture of your proposed issue, a fresh letter of 
revalidation from CRISIL Ratings will be necessary. 

As per our Rating Agreement, CRISIL Ratings would dissemilllate the rating along witl1 outlook through its publications and 
other media, and keep the rating along witll outlook under surveillance for the life of tlle insuument. CRISIL Ratings 
reserves tl1e light to withdraw, or revise the rating / outlook assigned to the captioned instrwnent at any time, on the basis of 
new infonnation, or unavailability of information, or other ,circumstances which CRISIL Ratings believes may have an 
impact on the rating. Please visit www.crisilratings.com and search witl1 the name of the rated entity to access the latest 
rating/s. 

Should you require any claiification, please feel free to get in touch witll us. 

With waim regards, 

Yours sincerely, 

) ,;-:< 
(;<" 

Rakshit Kachhal Nivedita Shibu 
Associate Director - CRISIL Ratings Associate Director - CRISIL Ratings 

�-
CRISIL 

�£51 <'I:) 

Disclaimer: A rating by CR/SIL Ratings reflects CR/SIL Ratings' c1HTent opinion on the likelihood of timely payment of the obligations under the rated instrument, and does not 
constitute an audit of the rated entity by CR/SIL Ratings. Our ratings are based on inJ'ormation provided by the issuer or obtained by CR/SIL Ratings from sources it considers 
reliable. CR/SIL Ratings does not guarantee the completeness or accuracy of the information on which the rating is based. A rating by CR/SIL Rarings is not a 
recommendation to buy I sell or hold the rated instrument; it does not comment on the market price or suitability for a particular investor. CR/SIL Ratings has a practice of 
keeping all its rarings under surveillance and ratings are revised as and when circumstances so warrant. CR/SIL Ratings is not responsible for any errors and especially states 
that it has no financial liability whatsoever to the subscribers I users I transmitters I distributors of its ratings. CR/SIL Ratings' criteria are available without charge to the public 
on the web site, www.crisilratings.com. CR/SIL Ratings or its associates may have oU-rer commercial transactions with the company/entity. For the latest rating information on 
any instrument of any company rated by CR/SIL Ratings, please visitwww.crisilratingll.com or contact Customer Service He/pdesk at CR/S/Lratinqdesk@crisil.com or at 1800--
267-1301 

CRISIL Ratings Limited 
( A subsidiary of CRISIL Limited) 

Corporate Identity Nwnber: U6'7100MH2019PLC326247 

Registered Office: CRISIL House, Central Avenue, Hiranandani Business Park, Powai, MlDllbai- 400 076. Phone: +91 '22 3342 3000 I Fax: +91 22 3342 3001 
www.crisilratings.com 
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Ratings 

Insflument Series: 

Amount Placed: 

!Maturity Period:

IPut or Call Options (if any): 

Coupon Rate: 

!Interest Payment Dates:

Principal Repayment Details: 

Investors: 

T111stees: 

Details of the Rs.120 Cror,e Preference Shares of 

Music Broadcast Limited 

lsttmnche 2nd trauclw 

Date Amount Date Amount 

CRISIL 
An S&P Global Company 

3rd tranclw 

Date Amount 

ltt case tht!re is an offer document for tile capti:oned Debt issue, please send us a copy of it 

Disclaimer: A rating by CR/SIL Ratings reflects CR/SIL Ratings' c1HTent opinion on the likelihood of timely payment of the obligations under the rated instrument, and does not 
constitute an audit of the rated entity by CR/SIL Ratings. Our ratings are based on inJ'ormation provided by the issuer or obtained by CR/SIL Ratings from sources it considers 
reliable. CR/SIL Ratings does not guarantee the completeness or accuracy of the information on which the rating is based. A rating by CR/SIL Rarings is not a 
recommendation to buy I sell or hold the rated instrument; it does not comment on the market price or suitability for a particular investor. CR/SIL Ratings has a practice of 
keeping all its rarings under surveillance and ratings are revised as and when circumstances so warrant. CR/SIL Ratings is not responsible for any errors and especially states 
that it has no financial liability whatsoever to the subscribers I users I transmitters I distributors of its ratings. CR/SIL Ratings' criteria are available without charge to the public 
on the web site, www.crisilratings.com. CR/SIL Ratings or its associates may have oU-rer commercial transactions with the company/entity. For the latest rating information on 
any instrument of any company rated by CR/SIL Ratings, please visitwww.crisilratingll.com or contact Customer Service He/pdesk at CR/S/Lratinqdesk@crisil.com or at 1800-
267-1301 

CRISIL Ratings Limited 
( A subsidiary of CRISIL Limited) 

Corporate Identity Nwnber: U6'7100MH2019PLC326247 

Registered Office: CRISIL House, Central Avenue, Hiranandani Business Park, Powai, MlDllbai- 400 076. Phone: +91 22 3342 3000 I Fax: +91 22 3342 3001 
www.crisilratings.com 
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Rating Rationale
September 13, 2022 | Mumbai

Music Broadcast Limited
'CRISIL AA/Stable' assigned to Preference Shares

Rating Action
Total Bank Loan Facilities Rated Rs.135 Crore
Long Term Rating CRISIL AA/Stable (Reaffirmed)
Short Term Rating CRISIL A1+ (Reaffirmed)

Rs.120 Crore Preference Shares CRISIL AA/Stable (Assigned)
1 crore = 10 million
Refer to Annexure for Details of Instruments & Bank Facilities

Detailed Rationale
CRISIL Ratings has assigned its ‘CRISIL AA/Stable’ rating to the Rs 120 crore of preference shares of Music Broadcast
Limited (MBL). CRISIL Ratings has also reaffirmed its ‘CRISIL AA/Stable/CRISIL A1+’ ratings on the bank facilities of MBL.

The ratings continue to reflect strong market position of MBL in the FM radio broadcasting industry, healthy financial risk
profile and managerial, operational and financial linkages with the parent, Jagran Prakashan Ltd (JPL; ‘CRISIL
AA+/Stable/CRISIL A1+’). These strengths are partially offset by susceptibility to economic activity and moderate
competition.

Advertisement (ad), the major source of revenue for the company, is strongly correlated with the level of economic activity in
the country. The nationwide lockdowns, owing to the Covid-19 pandemic, and weak economic activity in fiscal 2021 and the
first half of fiscal 2022 led to a significant drop in ad revenue. However, with economic activity picking up gradually in the
latter half of fiscal 2022, operating performance started recovering; revenue was Rs 44 crore and earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation, and amortization margin was ~9.6% for the quarter ended June 30, 2022, compared to Rs 20 crore and
operating losses, respectively, in the corresponding period of fiscal 2022. Operating performance should continue to recover
in line with the uptick in economic activity in fiscal 2023, though a full recovery to the pre-pandemic level is expected beyond
fiscal 2023.

CRISIL Ratings notes that MBL plans a bonus issue of ~Rs 90 crore of non-convertible redeemable preference shares to its
non-promoter shareholders. These are to be redeemed three years after the issue date with a redemption premium of ~Rs
18 crore. The free reserves as on date will be sufficient and MBL will service both the nominal preference share dividend as
well as the redemption amount in a timely manner.

The financial risk profile of MBL remains supported by strong liquidity of over Rs 275 crore as on August 21, 2022, nil debt
and high financial flexibility.

Analytical Approach
CRISIL Ratings has applied its parent notch-up framework to factor in the strong operational, financial and managerial
linkages between MBL and JPL.

Key Rating Drivers & Detailed Description
Strengths:

Strong market position and healthy financial risk profile: MBL has a healthy portfolio of 39 radio stations, built
through organic and inorganic expansion over fiscals 2016 and 2017. The 11 stations acquired during the phase III
auctions have begun to contribute modest operating profit. The company is estimated to report positive operating profit
in fiscal 2022, as against operating losses incurred in fiscal 2021. Going forward, performance is likely to rebound in
fiscal 2023, in line with economic recovery even as full recovery to pre-pandemic high may not be possible within fiscal
2024. 

Financial risk profile will remain supported by a debt-free balance sheet and ample liquidity with cash and liquid
investments of over Rs 275 crore as on August 31, 2022. The financial risk profile should remain healthy over the
medium term, driven by improvement in cash accrual and the absence of debt.

Established linkages with JPL: MBL has helped JPL diversify its reach into the radio broadcasting segment and thus,
remains strategically important to the latter. It complements the print business of JPL and enables it to offer a strong and
differentiated product to advertisers. It further enhances the geographical reach by adding cities where JPL has limited
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presence in print. Furthermore, radio stations of MBL acquired during the phase III auctions are in areas where JPL has
a strong reach, thereby providing synergies to the former.

In past, JPL had facilitated the issuance of non-convertible debentures by providing a corporate guarantee to MBL, and
later replaced it with a letter of comfort. It has also offered liquidity support through a debt service reserve account
covering six months of debt obligation. Extensive experience of the management of JPL in the media and entertainment
business will continue to strengthen the business risk profile.

Weakness:
Susceptibility to economic activity and moderate competition: Operating performance of radio operators remains
vulnerable to economic downturns, as ad revenue is linked to the overall macroeconomic scenario. Therefore,
operations were significantly impacted during the pandemic in fiscal 2021 and the first half of fiscal 2022, after weak
performance was reported in fiscal 2020, due to the subdued macroeconomic environment. Recovery in ad revenue will
be a key monitorable going forward.

Moreover, limited scope to differentiate offerings results in price-led competition among the radio players, for the
available advertising revenue.  In the current economic environment, wherein radio revenue is witnessing a gradual
recovery, players might need to calibrate ad rates to maintain inventory utilisation. Thus, competitive intensity is
expected to remain moderate in the near term.

Liquidity: Strong
Liquidity is supported by cash and liquid investments of over Rs 275 crore as on August 31, 2022 and the debt-free status of
MBL. Capital expenditure (capex) is expected to remain moderate. Furthermore, MBL has high financial flexibility and can
rely upon its parent, JPL, for support in case of exigencies.

Outlook: Stable
MBL will continue to benefit from the strong market position of Radio City, robust liquidity and linkages with JPL

Rating Sensitivity factors
Upward factors

Upgrade in the credit rating of JPL by one or more notches
Strong revenue growth leading to healthy cash accrual and return on capital employed ratio

Downward factors
Change in stated stance of support from JPL
Downgrade in the credit rating of JPL by one or more notches
Large, debt-funded capex or acquisition weakening the capital structure

About the Company
MBL was the first private FM radio broadcaster in India; it operates FM radio channels under the Radio City brand. In fiscal
2016, the company acquired 11 new stations in batch I of FM phase III auctions. Also, eight radio stations under the Radio
Mantra brand, operated by promoters of JPL under Shri Puran Multimedia Ltd, were merged with the company and
rebranded as Radio City in fiscal 2016. The company is present in 39 cities across India. It also operates 17 web-based
stations.

For the quarter ending June 2022, revenue was Rs 44 crore with net profit of Rs 1 lakh compared to Rs 20 crore and net
loss of Rs 13 crore, respectively, for the corresponding period in the previous fiscal.

Key Financial Indicators
Particulars Unit 2022 2021
Operating revenue Rs crore 168 128
Profit after tax (PAT) Rs crore -5.7 -24
PAT margin % -3.4 -18.9
Adjusted debt / adjusted networth Times 0 0
Interest coverage Times 10.5 -0.82

The table above reflects CRISIL Ratings-adjusted numbers

Any other information: Not applicable

Note on complexity levels of the rated instrument:
CRISIL Ratings' complexity levels are assigned to various types of financial instruments. The CRISIL Ratings' complexity
levels are available on www.crisil.com/complexity-levels. Users are advised to refer to the CRISIL Ratings' complexity
levels for instruments that they consider for investment. Users may also call the Customer Service Helpdesk with queries
on specific instruments.

Annexure - Details of instruments

ISIN Name of instrument Date of
allotment

Coupon
rate (%)

Maturity
date

Issue
size
(Rs

crore)

Complexity
level

Rating
assigned

with outlook
NA Bank Guarantee NA NA NA 23.95 NA CRISIL A1+

NA Proposed Working Capital
Facility NA NA NA 79 NA CRISIL

AA/Stable
NA Proposed Bank Guarantee NA NA NA 21.05 NA CRISIL A1+76

http://www.crisil.com/complexity-levels
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NA Overdraft Facility NA NA NA 11 NA CRISIL A1+

NA Preference Shares* NA NA NA 120 NA CRISIL
AA/Stable

*Yet to be issued

Annexure - Rating History for last 3 Years
Current 2022 (History) 2021  2020  2019  Start of

2019

Instrument Type Outstanding
Amount Rating Date Rating Date Rating Date Rating Date Rating Rating

Fund Based
Facilities ST/LT 90.0

CRISIL
A1+ /

CRISIL
AA/Stable

21-04-22
CRISIL
A1+ /

CRISIL
AA/Stable

23-07-21 CRISIL
AA/Stable 23-04-20 CRISIL

AA/Stable 30-07-19 CRISIL
AA/Stable --

Non-Fund
Based
Facilities

ST 45.0 CRISIL
A1+ 21-04-22 CRISIL

A1+ 23-07-21 CRISIL
A1+ 23-04-20 CRISIL

A1+ 30-07-19 CRISIL
A1+

CRISIL
A1+

-- -- -- -- 06-06-19 CRISIL
A1+ --

Non
Convertible
Debentures

LT -- -- -- 23-04-20 Withdrawn 30-07-19 CRISIL
AA/Stable

CRISIL
AA/Stable

-- -- -- -- 06-06-19 CRISIL
AA/Stable --

Preference
Shares LT 120.0 CRISIL

AA/Stable -- -- -- -- --

All amounts are in Rs.Cr.

Annexure - Details of Bank Lenders & Facilities
Facility Amount (Rs.Crore) Name of Lender Rating

Bank Guarantee 2.29 Central Bank Of India CRISIL A1+
Bank Guarantee 21.66 HDFC Bank Limited CRISIL A1+
Overdraft Facility 1 Axis Bank Limited CRISIL A1+
Overdraft Facility 10 HDFC Bank Limited CRISIL A1+

Proposed Bank Guarantee 21.05 Not Applicable CRISIL A1+
Proposed Working Capital

Facility 79 Not Applicable CRISIL AA/Stable

This Annexure has been updated on 13-Sep-2022 in line with the lender-wise facility details as on 18-Aug-2021 received from the rated
entity.

Criteria Details

Links to related criteria
CRISILs Approach to Financial Ratios
Rating criteria for manufaturing and service sector companies
Criteria for Notching up Stand Alone Ratings of Companies based on Parent Support
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Note for Media:
This rating rationale is transmitted to you for the sole purpose of dissemination through your newspaper/magazine/agency. The rating rationale may be
used by you in full or in part without changing the meaning or context thereof but with due credit to CRISIL Ratings. However, CRISIL Ratings alone has
the sole right of distribution (whether directly or indirectly) of its rationales for consideration or otherwise through any media including websites and portals.

About CRISIL Ratings Limited (A subsidiary of CRISIL Limited)

CRISIL Ratings pioneered the concept of credit rating in India in 1987. With a tradition of independence, analytical rigour and
innovation, we set the standards in the credit rating business. We rate the entire range of debt instruments, such as bank loans,
certificates of deposit, commercial paper, non-convertible/convertible/partially convertible bonds and debentures, perpetual
bonds, bank hybrid capital instruments, asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities, partial guarantees and other structured
debt instruments. We have rated over 33,000 large and mid-scale corporates and financial institutions. We have also instituted
several innovations in India in the rating business, including ratings for municipal bonds, partially guaranteed instruments and
infrastructure investment trusts (InvITs).

CRISIL Ratings Limited ('CRISIL Ratings') is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRISIL Limited ('CRISIL'). CRISIL Ratings Limited is
registered in India as a credit rating agency with the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI").

For more information, visit www.crisilratings.com 

About CRISIL Limited

CRISIL is a global analytical company providing ratings, research, and risk and policy advisory services. We are India's leading
ratings agency. We are also the foremost provider of high-end research to the world's largest banks and leading corporations.

CRISIL is majority owned by S&P Global Inc, a leading provider of transparent and independent ratings, benchmarks, analytics
and data to the capital and commodity markets worldwide.

For more information, visit www.crisil.com

Connect with us: TWITTER | LINKEDIN | YOUTUBE | FACEBOOK

CRISIL PRIVACY NOTICE

CRISIL respects your privacy. We may use your contact information, such as your name, address and email id to fulfil your request and service your
account and to provide you with additional information from CRISIL. For further information on CRISIL’s privacy policy please visit www.crisil.com.

DISCLAIMER

This disclaimer is part of and applies to each credit rating report and/or credit rating rationale (‘report’) that is provided by
CRISIL Ratings Limited (‘CRISIL Ratings’). To avoid doubt, the term ‘report’ includes the information, ratings and other content
forming part of the report. The report is intended for the jurisdiction of India only. This report does not constitute an offer of
services. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, nothing in the report is to be construed as CRISIL Ratings providing
or intending to provide any services in jurisdictions where CRISIL Ratings does not have the necessary licenses and/or
registration to carry out its business activities referred to above. Access or use of this report does not create a client
relationship between CRISIL Ratings and the user.

We are not aware that any user intends to rely on the report or of the manner in which a user intends to use the report. In
preparing our report we have not taken into consideration the objectives or particular needs of any particular user. It is made
abundantly clear that the report is not intended to and does not constitute an investment advice. The report is not an offer to
sell or an offer to purchase or subscribe for any investment in any securities, instruments, facilities or solicitation of any kind to
enter into any deal or transaction with the entity to which the report pertains. The report should not be the sole or primary
basis for any investment decision within the meaning of any law or regulation (including the laws and regulations applicable in
the US).

Ratings from CRISIL Ratings are statements of opinion as of the date they are expressed and not statements of fact or
recommendations to purchase, hold or sell any securities/instruments or to make any investment decisions. Any opinions
expressed here are in good faith, are subject to change without notice, and are only current as of the stated date of their
issue. CRISIL Ratings assumes no obligation to update its opinions following publication in any form or format although CRISIL
Ratings may disseminate its opinions and analysis. The rating contained in the report is not a substitute for the skill, judgment
and experience of the user, its management, employees, advisors and/or clients when making investment or other business
decisions. The recipients of the report should rely on their own judgment and take their own professional advice before acting
on the report in any way. CRISIL Ratings or its associates may have other commercial transactions with the entity to which the
report pertains.
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Neither CRISIL Ratings nor its affiliates, third-party providers, as well as their directors, officers, shareholders, employees or
agents (collectively, ‘CRISIL Ratings Parties’) guarantee the accuracy, completeness or adequacy of the report, and no CRISIL
Ratings Party shall have any liability for any errors, omissions or interruptions therein, regardless of the cause, or for the
results obtained from the use of any part of the report. EACH CRISIL RATINGS PARTY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, SUITABILITY OR FITNESS
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE. In no event shall any CRISIL Ratings Party be liable to any party for any direct, indirect,
incidental, exemplary, compensatory, punitive, special or consequential damages, costs, expenses, legal fees or losses
(including, without limitation, lost income or lost profits and opportunity costs) in connection with any use of any part of the
report even if advised of the possibility of such damages.

CRISIL Ratings may receive compensation for its ratings and certain credit-related analyses, normally from issuers or
underwriters of the instruments, facilities, securities or from obligors. Public ratings and analysis by CRISIL Ratings, as are
required to be disclosed under the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (and other applicable regulations,
if any), are made available on its website, www.crisilratings.com (free of charge). Reports with more detail and additional
information may be available for subscription at a fee – more details about ratings by CRISIL Ratings are available here:
www.crisilratings.com.

CRISIL Ratings and its affiliates do not act as a fiduciary. While CRISIL Ratings has obtained information from sources it believes
to be reliable, CRISIL Ratings does not perform an audit and undertakes no duty of due diligence or independent verification of
any information it receives and/or relies on in its reports. CRISIL Ratings has established policies and procedures to maintain
the confidentiality of certain non-public information received in connection with each analytical process. CRISIL Ratings has in
place a ratings code of conduct and policies for managing conflict of interest. For details please refer to:
https://www.crisil.com/en/home/our-businesses/ratings/regulatory-disclosures/highlighted-policies.html.

Rating criteria by CRISIL Ratings are generally available without charge to the public on the CRISIL Ratings public website,
www.crisilratings.com. For latest rating information on any instrument of any company rated by CRISIL Ratings, you may
contact the CRISIL Ratings desk at crisilratingdesk@crisil.com, or at (0091) 1800 267 1301.

This report should not be reproduced or redistributed to any other person or in any form without prior written consent from
CRISIL Ratings.

All rights reserved @ CRISIL Ratings Limited. CRISIL Ratings is a wholly owned subsidiary of CRISIL Limited.

CRISIL Ratings uses the prefix ‘PP-MLD’ for the ratings of principal-protected market-linked debentures (PPMLD) with effect
from November 1, 2011, to comply with the SEBI circular, "Guidelines for Issue and Listing of Structured Products/Market Linked

Debentures". The revision in rating symbols for PPMLDs should not be construed as a change in the rating of the subject
instrument. For details on CRISIL Ratings' use of 'PP-MLD' please refer to the notes to Rating scale for Debt Instruments and

Structured Finance Instruments at the following link: https://www.crisil.com/en/home/our-businesses/ratings/credit-ratings-scale.html
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